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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Tao the Members of ASHY FINANCE LIMITED {formerly known as JATN SONS FINLEASE
LIMITED}

Report on the Audit-of the Financiz] Statements
Opinion

We have andited the accompanying financial statements of ASHY FINANCE LIMITED (“the Company™),
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022, the Statement of Prafit ahd Loss (incloding Other
Comprchensive Inenme), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year
ended on thar date, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and othes explanatory information
{hereinafter referred 10 as the “financial staternents™).

In-our opinion and to the hest of ape information and aceording to the ‘explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”} in the manner so
required and give a truc and fair view in eonformity with the Tndian Acnmmhnu ndards prescribed wnider
section 133 of the Act repd with the Companies.(indizn Accounting Standards) Rules, 20 1%, az amended, (*“Ind
A3"}and other accounting prtnclp]cs gencrally acecpied in Indiz, of the state af affairs of i the Company as at
March 31, 2022, the profit and total comprehensive income, changes in equity and @is cash flows for the vear
tnded on that date.

"Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified
“under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities uider those Standards are further described in dre
* Auditor's Respunsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements® section of ouf report. We are independént
of the Company in accirdance witly the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chantered Accountants of
Indiz (ICAT) (opether with the independence requireinents that are relevant 1o audit of the financial
statesnients under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we ave fulfilled our other
cthical respousibilitics in accordanioe with these requirements and the JCAI’s Code of Erhics. We believe that
the dudit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for oir audit apinion on
the financial statements.

Key Andit Matter

Key andit matters are those matters that, in our professional judegment, were of mosi significance m our aodit
of the financal statements of the cwTent penud. These matters were addiessed it ibé context vl vur audit of
the financial statements as a whole, and in forming tur opioion thereon, and we do pot provide a separate
opinion on these matiers. We have determined the matters described below to be tHe key aidit matters to be
commumicated in our report,




Our-opinion on the financial statements does not cover the ather information and we do nol express any form

of assurance conclusion thereon,

In ennnection with our audit of the financ ial statements, our responsibility is to read
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
our knowledge obtained during the conrse of our andit or otherwise appears to be

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there s a material
information, we arc required to report that fact, We have nothing to report in this &

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in sectio
respect to the praparation of these financial statements that give a troc and fair vie
financial performance, totel comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash
accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting. ]IJ.I]'B]]:I]I:S generlly aceepled in
also includes maintenance of adequate accounting recards in accordance with the
saféguarding the agsets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making Judgmm
reasuazble anid ;:mdmt and design, implementation and makntenance of adequate i
that were uperaling effeclively {or ensuring the accuracy and :umplctcneﬁs ofthe a
‘1o the prepuration snd preseniation of the financial statements that give-a tiue arid
matersal pnisstatenzot, whelher due io fraud or emor,

In preparing the fihancial statsments, manhzgement is rusponsible for assessing ¢
continue as a going cemcern, disclosing, as applicable, matlers selated v going o,
eoncem hasis of accounting uniess managenent either intends to liguidate the Comp
ar has no realistic altemative but 10 do so.

other infonmation und,
e financial statements or
erially misstated.

isstatement of this other
ard.

134(5). of the Act with
of the financial position,
s of the Company in

din. This responsihility
rovisions of the Act for
and ather trr::gu[nrmm
and estimates that are
al financial controls,
ounting records, relevant
ir view and are fiee from

he Company’s ability
sern and using the going
11y 01 1v cedie uperaliuns,

The: [oard. of Directors are responsible for averseeing the Company’s financial repariing process.

Auditar’s Responsibitities for the Andit of the Finzncial Statements

Our abjectives arc tn-ohtain reasonable assurance about whethsr the financial stale
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or errar, and to issue an auditor’

ents as a whole are fice
report that includes our

apinion. Reasonahle assuranes s a high Jevel of assurance, but is not-a guarantee-that an audit condutted in

accordance with SAs will always deteet a material misstatément when it exists. Mi
fraud or error and are considered mupterial if, individually or in the aggregate, t

tements can arise from
hey could reasonably be

expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the hasis of these fioaneial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professionat judgment and maintain professional

sceplicism throughout the audic. We also:

[dendify and asscss the risks of material misstatement of the fAnancial statemel

nts, whether due to fraud

or errar, design and perform audit procedures responsive m those risks, and ubtu:: andit evidence that is

sufficient. and appropriate o provide a hasis for owr opinion. The risk of
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher then for one resulting from ern
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of]

Obtain an understanding of internal finaneial contrals relevant to the audit
procedures that are appropriste in the sircomstances. Under section 143(3)(i)

- defecting a material
r, a5 frond may involve
mtcmat eontrol,

in order to design audi
of the Act, we are alsa

responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate foternal financial controls

system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.




d} In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements eomply with the Ind AS specified under Section

€)

f

h)

133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014

On the basis of the wrilien representations received from the directors as

on March 31, 2022 and

taken on record by the Bouard oT Directors, none of the directots is disqualified as on March 31, 2022

from being eppointed as a direcior in terms of Sectlon 164 (2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over finuncial

apd the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate RJaptI:l

reporl expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and opersl
Cumpany’s internal financial controls over financial reporting.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditar’s Report

requisements ol section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:.

In-our opinion mnd to Uk best of our information and according to-the exp

reporting of the Company
in *Annexure B Our
2 cifeetivencas of the

i accordance with the

anations given tous, the

remuneration paid’ provided by the Cumpany to its directors during the year is in accordance with

the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

With respect to the ofher inatters to be incleded in the Auditor's Report in pecordance with Rule 11
ofthe Companies {Audit mul Auditors) Rules, 21] t4, 2z amended in our opirjion and 1o the best of our
information and according to the &xplulmuum givem Lo us;
i "The Company does not have any pending litigalion which would mi;ram: its financial position
as at 3] March 2022,
i The Company did not have any long-term contracts fnicludlig decivative contructs for which
there were amy material foreseeabls Josses.
ili. Therc were no amannts which were required to be transfened 1o the Tnvestor Education and
Protection Fond by the Company during the year ended March 31, 20
w.  {a) The Management has cepresenled (hut, o the best of its knowledpe and belief, no funds.

(which are material ¢ither individually ag in the agerepale) have
invested (erther from borrowed funds o share premiun or any other
by the Company to or in any other person o eutity, ncluding foreign
with the understanding, wheiher recorded m writing or otherwise,
whether, directly or indicectly lend or invest in other persons or entitie
whatsnever by or on behalf of -the Company (‘Ultinate Benpels

guarames, 5ﬁmity i the like on behalf of the Lilmate Boneliciaries;

(h) The Mmagement has represented, that, to the best of its knowl
(which are material either individually orin the aggregate) have been
from any person or entity, including foreign entity (“Funding Parties'
whether reeorded in wrting or otherwise, that the Company sh
indirectly, lend or invest in other persons cremtities identified in any
on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide
the like on hehalf of the TTitimate Beneficiacies;

advaneed or loaded or
urces or kind of funds)
Lity (“Intermediaries™),
the Intermeidiary shafl,
:Idt.nilful inany manner
es”™) or provide any

ge and belief, no funds
eived by the Company

with the understanding,
U, whether, dirgctly or
amner whalsocver by or
guaraniee, securily or

Bascd on the andit procedures that have been considered rca.smlabﬂ: and apprepridle in the

circumstances, noihing has come tn our notice that has caused

representations under sub-clause (i) and {ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided

contain any matepial misstatement.

us to believe that the
under {a) and (b} above,

(%3]




Annexure - A to the Independent Avditors® Report
{Referred to wnder “Report on Other Legal and Regulatéry Requirements” section of gur report to the members
of Ashy Finauce Limited of even daie)

I

iii

In respect of the Company's Property, Plant and Equipment and Tniangible

{a) (A)

{B)

(b)

{c)

e

(e}

(a}

(B)

The Company lLas inaintained proper recurds showing full pa
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equig
details of nglj.l—uf—l.lsa assets.

Asspis:

ticulurs, including
ment amd relevant

The Compuny has mainiained proper records showing full parti¢ulars of intangibile

aznels,

The property, plant and equipment were physically verified dur

ng the year by the

management in accordance with a regolar programme of verifieption which, in our

wpinion, provides Tor physical yerification of all the property, p
el reasonable inervals., According lp-the informastion wnd expl
material discrepancies were noliced va sucl verilication,

According to the information and explanations given to us and

-and equipinent
ion given to us, o

o the basis of our-

exasminalion of the records of the Company, the Company does siot have ownsrship

of any immovabie propeny.

The Company has not rgvalued any of fts Fropersy, Plant and E
Right of Use: assets) or intangible asssts during the year. Acc
3(i)(d) of the Order is not applicable.

Accordmg o the infummation and explanations given Lo us, no pro

ripment (in¢luding
dingly, paragraph

ceedings have been

initiated, or were pending, during the year against the Compasy for bolding any

benami property under the:Bevami Transactions {Prohibition} Act,

and rules made thereunder.

1988 (450l 1988)

The Compmny docs.not haveany inventory and honee reporting under clause 34i1)(R)

of the Order i3 not applicable.

During, the year, the Campany had existing sanctioned workin

ekeess of five crore rupecs, in ageregats; from varions banks on t
of iz current asscts. The quarterly statements. fied by the Compa

were in agreement with unaudited books of account of the (O

g capital limils in
he basis of security
ny with such banks
inmpany as at the

respective quarters ended June 30, 2021; September 30, 2021, Decomber 31, 2021

and March 31, 2022,

The Company has granted secured and unsecured loans to other

wear, in respect of which:

parties, during the




viil

ix

(2)

(h)

(a)

{b)

{c)

@

(e)

©

(a)

According Lo 'the inflomation and explanations given to us and
procedures petfonned by us, the Compiny did nol raise any mont

According to the information and explanations given to us and pn the basis of our

examination of thie r#cords, the Company has generdlly been
undisputed statutory dues, including Goods and Services ta i

matetrial statutory dues applicable 1o it with the appropriste antivqriti

thc information and explanations given to us, no undisputed a

were in arrears a5 at March 31, 2022 for a period of more than s
date they became pavable.

According to information and explanations given to us, there are|

respect of income tax, goods and service tax, cess and other matgrial staintory dues

% months from the

ne dnes of income

tax, sales-tox, wealth tax, goods and service tax, customs duty, ckeisc duty and cess

which have nat been depasited on acéount of any dispute.

According 1o the iInformation znd explanations oiven to us, no
surrendered or disclused as income during (he year in the L asy
Tncomie Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961) whicli wius nol recorded o th
Accordingly, paragraph 3{viil) of the Ordet 1s 1ot applicable..

Based on our audit procedures and as per the infornsation and ex

sactions have been
ssments under the
bocks of account.

wations given by

the management, we are of the opinton that the Company hds niot defaulied in

repayment of loans to hanks.
According to the information and explanations given to us and

1 the basis of our

audit procedures, we report that the Company has not been declajed wilful defaulter
by any bank or financial lustivtion or goveinment or any governlnznt authority.

In our opinion and according ta the information and explanatic
Compdny has utilized the money obtaired by way of term lozns
the purposes. for which they were obtained,

ns given 1o us, the
during the year for

According 16 the information and cxplanations given 1o us, Id the procedutes

performed by us, and on an overall examination of the finanici
Company, wereport thatno fundssafaed on short-term basis have
tenm purposss by the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and
procedures performed by ug, the Company dozs not have any
ventures-or associate companies, Accordingly, paragraph 2(ix)(e]
applicable.

Accordinp to-the information and explanations given to-us and
procedures performed by us, the Company does not have any
ventures or associate companizs. Accordingly, paragraph 3{ix}f}
applicable. '

public offer or further public offer (Including debt instruments
Accordmgly, paragraph 3(x){a) of the Order is not applicable.

statements of the
been used for long-

bazed on the aodit
subsidiaries, joint
af the Order (5 not

based on the andit
subsidiaries, joint
of the Order is not

bhased on the audil
by by way of inilial
) during, the year.




(d)
Core Investment Com par_nf:s_ (Reserve Baok) Direction 2016) do-
Investment Companies (C1Cs).

In our opinion and zccdrding. ta' e infomnalion and explanati
Compaty has not incurred cash Josses during the financial yearc
and the immediately preceding financial vear.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the
paragraph 3(xviiiy of the Order is not applicable.

xvil

xviil

On the basis of the financial raties, ageing and expected data
financial assets and payment of financial ljabilities, other informal
the financial statements and our knowledge of the Board
Management plans and based on our examination of the evide

According 1o the information and explanations given o us, the Group (as dzfined the

s nol have an Core

3 given to us, the
ered by our audit

vear. Accordingly,

q of realisation of
Hon accompanying
of Directors and
nce supporting the

asswnplions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us
material uncertainly exisls as on the date-of the audit report indi

ta betieve that any
ing that Company

iz not capable of meeting its Jabilities exisling al the date of balange sheet as and
when they fall due within a pericd of cue yeéur (rom the balange sheet date. We,
however, state that this Is nof an assurarice as Ly the felure viability of the Company.

‘We further state that our reporting is Dased on tlw [ols up o
report and we jieither give any guarantes nor any assurance that
dne within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will
the Company as and'when they fall due..

dute of the audit
Il liabilities falling
et discharped Ly

{a)
procadures perfonmicd by us. the Company was oot required Lo
terms of Section 135 of the Act during, the vear. Acvordimgly, sec
section {3) of section 135 of the said Act and paragiaph 3(xx)a)
applicable.

(b}
procedures performed by us, the Company did nat have amy ong

of Section 133 of the Act during the year. Accordingly, provision

J any -amouwsnt in
"provise to sub-
of e Ouder 5 ok

According to the inforimation and explanalions given 1w us %ﬂ:ﬂsed on aodit

According to the fnformation and explanations given to us a.Ild based on audit
o

a project interms
af sub-scetion (B)

of section 135 of the sald Act and paragraph 3(x)}(h) of the Ordar is not applicable.

For BATLARO & PUROITIT
Charered Acomiriiants
ICAT Firm Reg, No. 101048W

Janak Wchia

Parmer

Membership Na. 116976
Place: Mumbai

Date: Mav 5, 2022

ICAI UDIN:

i1



Meaniug of Internal Financial Cantrols over Financial Reporting

A company's Internal Financial Control over Finaocial Reporting is a process
reasonahle assurance regarding the reliability. of Financial Reporfing and the: pay
Statements - for sxterpal purposes In accordance with geperally accepted  Acc

designed o provide
sparation of Financial
ting Principles. A

company's Internal Financial Contrel over Financial Reporting includes those policies and procedures that
(1) perain to the mainienance of records that, in ressonable detail, aceurately |and fairly reflect the
ransactions snd dispositions .of the assets of the costtpany; (2} pnwule e assutance that
transactions ace recorded as necessary 1o permit preparation of Financial Statemes = in accerdance with
generally m.u:pied amuntmg prml::lplt'a, and that receipts and aup-cnd:“mms of tije company are being

disposition ﬂfﬂl'E i;umpaﬁ_'-"s assels that courld have a material effect on the Financi

Imherent Limitations of Internal Financial Contrals Over Financial Repuriing

Because of the mhereot limilalions of intetual financia! controls over [Inancial w including the

possibility of collusion or improper management overside of controls, material miss
ar fraud may occur and not be detected. Alse, projeciions of any evakuntion of the inte
vver financial reporting o future pedods 2re subject fo the risk that the intemal 4
financial. reporting may become inadequate bocanse of chaages in conditicns, d
compliance with the policies or procedores may deteriorate.

Cpinion

In our apinion, fhe Company has, in all material respzefs, an adequate inlemal fina

atcmients due to error
mizl financial controls
inancizl conirol over
r that the degree of

cial controls system

over financial reporting and such internal financial comtrols over financial rop
effeclively as at March 31, 2072, based on the internal control aver financial reporti:
by the Company considering tle essential components of intemal control stated in
Andit of Internal Finaucizl Controls Over Financial Repoting issued by the
Accountants ol fndia.

For BATLIBO1 & PUROHIT
Chartersd Accomntants
iCAI Finn Rez. Mo 101048W

Janak Mehta

Parfner

Membership No. 1 16976
Place: Mombai

Date: May 5, 2022
JCATUDIN :

ing wefe operaling
g rileria established
Guidance Note on
stitute of Chartered

13




Ashv Finance Limited (Formerly known as Jain Sons Finlease Limited)
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2022
(All amounts in ¥ lakhs unless otherwise stated)

As at As at
Notes 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
ASSETS
1 Financial Assets
{a) Cash and cash equivalents 5 447255 2,357.18
(b) Bank balances other than (a) above (3] 7344 48 250218
{c) Loans 7 70,516.00 49,903.81
(d) Investment 8 102 27 -
(2) Other financial assets 9 2,974.96 1,896.01
Total financial assets 8541026 56,659.18
2 Non-financial assets
(a) Current tax assets (net) 1,065.90 69231
(b) Deferred tax assets (net) 10 1,199.42 86418
(c) Property. plant and equipment 1A 2959 n72
(d) Right-of-use asset 118 e J1LED
() Goodwill 2,009.10 2,009.10
(f) Other Intangible assets 12 3961 77
(g) Other non-financial assets 13 294 67 208 04
Total non-financial assets 516273 4,381.12
Total assets 90,572.99 61,040.30
LIABILITIES AND EQUTTY
LIABILITIES
1 Financial liabilities
{a) Trade payable:
(1) total vutstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 21.14 -
(id) total outstanding dues other than mirro enterprises and small enlerprises 14 n0o 912
(b} Debt securities 15 19,417.00 10,156.24
() Bormowings (other than debt securities) 16 4277497 73,999.13
(d) Oher financial liabilities 17 245365 1,664.05
Tolal financial liabilities 64,667.76 35,910.52
{a) Provisions 18 119.19 71.91
(b} Odther non-financial liabilities 19 28337 171.04
Total non-finanecial liabilities 40256 242,95
3 Equity
{a) Equity share capital m 31,351.53 3,361.53
(b) Preference share capital 2 .2 vl 77T
{c) Other equity P 2129337 2067753
Total equity 2550267 24,886.83
Total liabilities and equity 57299 61.040.30
Summary of significant acoounting policies 3

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these Hnancial statements.

This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date,

For Batlibod and Purohit For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants Ashv Finance Limited (Formerly known as Jain Song Finlease Limited)
Firm registration number: 107 048W
Jamak Mehia Vineet Chandra Rai Mikesh K Sinha
, oo Lﬂzﬁ&m
Membership Mo: 116976 DIN: D0B06290 DIN:
Kiran Agarwal Todi Monika Variava
Chief Financial Officer Company Sedretary
Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai

Date: 5 May 2022 Date: 5 May 2022




Ashv Finance Limited (Formerly known as Jain Sons Finlease Limited)
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2022
{All amounts in ¥ lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Year ended Year ended
Notes | 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
1 Revenue from operations
(1) Interest income 2 12,000.16 B,632.59
(1) Met gain on fair value changes prc ] 225 -
(iti) Other operating revenue 24 77026 447.22
Total revenue from operations 12,799.67 9,079.81
2 Other income -} 5272 9246
3 Total income (142) 1285239 9172.27
4 Expenses
(i) Finaunwe costs 2% 584032 3,454.06
{ii) Fee and commission expense 7266 6434
(iii) Impairment on financial instruments g 1324.29 1.790.68
(iv) Employee benefits expense 28 3,655.36 2,558.50
(v) Depreciation and amortisation expense 30 7249 157.79
(vi) Other expenses = 1,455.97 E81.44
Total expenses 1262109 #9681
5 Profit before tax (3-4) 231.30 26546
6 Tax expense:
(a) Current tax axpense K = .74 7549
(b) Deferred tax benefit 35 {700.24) {579.94)
(c) Taxes of earlier years » (5.97) (26.44)
B1547) (530.89)
7 Profit for the year (5-6) 54677 7935
& Other comprehensive income, net of tax
(i) Itcms that will not be reclassified to probit or loss
Remeasurement expense on defined benefit plans 33 831 234
Income tax relating to remeasurement gains on defined benafil plass 33 - -
Uther comprehensive income 5.3 234
9 Total comprehensive income for the year (7+8) 538.46 794.01
10 Earnings per equily share (Face value of Rs. 10 each) 3
Basic (in ) 163 237
Diituted {in ¥) 130 1.89
Summary aof significant accounting policies 3
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financlal statements.
This is the Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of even date.
For Batliboi and Purohit For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants Ashv Finance Limited (Formerly known as Jain $ons Finlease Limited)
Firm registration number: 101(48W
Janak Mehta Vineet Chandra Rai Nikesh Sinha
Partner Chairman Managing Director
Membership No: 116976 DIME: (0062490 DIN: 336
Kiran Agarwal Todi Monika Variava
Chief Financial Officer Company|Secretary

Place: Mumbai
Date: 5 May 2022

Flace: Mumbai
Diate: 5 May 2022




Ashv Finance Limited (Formerly known as Jain Sons Finlease Limited)
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2022
(ALl amounts in ¥ lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Farticulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 202 31 March 2021
Cash fows from operating activities
Profit before tax 3130 2546
Adjustments for:
Mepreciation and amortisation expenses 149 157.79
Impairment on financial assets 97.37 1,790.68
Share-based payments to employees 7738 64,30
Interest expense on lease liability 2445 63
Gain on derecognition of assigned receivables 38092 116.08
Met gain on fair value changes 2925 =
Finance cost 581587 343143
Fffective intersst rale adjustment for fmancial instruments (148.75) (B7.11)
Interest income from fixed deposits {386.58) (30818}
Interest income on income tax refund [49.31) (B8.80)
Frovisions from employee benefits ase7 30,05
Operating profit before worlking capital changes 6, 383,06 53%4.33
Adjustment for change in working capital:
Increase/ (Decrease) in trade payaldes [45.98) Pty
Decrease in other liabilitics GIF0 (193.23)
Increasze in loans and advances (20,738.81) (9. 118.82)
Increase in other assels {1,551.50) {1,554.85)
Cash used in operating activities (15,262 53) {5.397.42)
Income tax paid, net of refunds (35299 103663
Net cash used in operating activities (A (15,61552) 14,360.79)
Purchage of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets {76.42) (127.42)
Prowcerds from sale of property, plant and equiproent 016 0.20
Payment of purchase consideration on acquisition - {305 16)
Purchase of investment measured at FVTPL 324400 -
Poowesls Toonn sale of inveshiment mesasured at FVTPL (3Z,870.98) -
Movement in margin money deposits (net) (4.45547) {1,406 26)
Met cash generated from / (used in) investing activitics [ (4,456,640 (7.638.68)
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds of loan availed 26,90.25 24, 506.20
Hepayment of debt securities borrowings (29,107.27) {16,333.87)
Repaymenl of Finance costs {5,432.50) (3.431.43)
Kepayment of lease liabilities {179.53) (5877}
Cash generated from financing activities (<) 22.189.55 4,744.63
Net increasef{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents during the year (A+R+C) 2.115.37 (7.454.80)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the yoar (refer note 5) 235718 9.811.98
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (refer note 5) 447255 2,357.18
Mote 1:
Cash and cash equivalénts as per note 5 447255 2357.18
447255 2,357.18

The above Statement of Cash Flows has been preparcd under the Indizect Method' as sct out in Ind AS 7, Slaterjent of Cash Flows'.

This is the Statement of Cash Flows referred o in our report of even date.

For Batliboi and Purahit

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants Ashv Finance Limited (Formerly known as Jain Soms Finlease Limited)
Firm registration number: 101048W
Janak Mehta Vineet Chandra Rai Kumar Sinha
Pariner Chairman Diirector
Membership MNo: 116976 DIN: 006063290 DN 08268336

Kiran Agarwal Todi Monlika Variava

Chief Financial Officer Company Sevretary
Flace: Mumbai Place: Mumbai
Diate: 5 May 2022 Drates 5 May 2022
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Ashv Finance Limited (Formerly known as Jain Sons Finlease Limited)

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2021

{All amounts in 2 lakhs unless otherwise stated)

1

2

a)

b)

3

a)

b)

Background
Ashy Finance Limited (Formerly known as [ain Sons Finlease Limibed) (*the Company”) is a compagy incorporated under the provisions of the
Companies Act, 1956. Effective 7 January 1999, the Company is régistered as a non-deposit taking, lon-Banking Financial Company (“NBFC")
under the rules and regulations framed by the Reserve Bank of India (“the RBI”), The Com is engaged in the business of providing
lending facilities to the small businesses primarily in MSME segment. The Company is part of a Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking
NBFC group. The Company has changed its name to Ashv Finance Limited and has received 4 fresh certificate of incorporation dated 8
October 2020,

Basis of preparation

These financial statements {“the Financial Staternents”) have been prepared in accordance with the|Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS”) as
notified by Ministry of Corparate Affairs (MCA’) under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) read with the Companies (Indian
Accomnting Standards) Rules, 2016, as amended and other relevant provisions of the Act and other applicable guidelines issued by the Reserve
Bank of India {'KBL’). The Company has uniformly appbed the accounting policies for the periods p ted in these finandal statements.

The financial statenwnts for e year ended 31 March 2021 were authorized and approved for issee by the Board of Directors on 5 May 2022,
Historical cost convention
Theese financial statemments have been prepaned on guing concern basis following accrual system of untingg and are in sccordance with e
Indian h:munl.u'ls Standards (referred 1o as “Ind AS™) notified under IhECnmParues {Tndian Acco I1r“ Standards) Rules, 2016 (as amended),
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and ather applicable regulatory norms / gui Further, the financial statements have
been prepared on historical cost basis except for certain financial osscts and fimancial liabilities are measured at fair values as explained

in relevant accounting policies.
Summary of significant accounting policies
Basis of measurement

The fAnancial statements have been preparcd using the significant accounting polldes and measufement bases summariced as below. These
policies have been applied consistently for all the perinds presented in the financial statements.

Use of estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of asscts and Habilities and the disclosure of con liabilities at the date of the financial

statemnents and the results of operations during the reporting pericds. Although thess estimates are upon management's best knowledge
of current events and actions, actual results could differ from those estimates. Significant estimates by the management in the preparation
ol these [inancial stalemenls include eslimales of the economic useful lives of property, plant and equipment, useful lives of right of use assets,
share based payments, deferred tax, accrual for employee benefits and impairment of loans under) the expected credit loss model. Difference
between the actual results and estimates are recognised in the period in which the results are knowh/ materialized. Any revision to accounting
estimates is recognized prospectively in the current and future periods.

— N

Hecognition of deferred tax assets - The extent to which deferred tax assets can be recopgnised is based on an assessment of the probability of
the future taxable income against which the deferred tax assets can be utilised.
Evaluation of indicators for impairment of assels = The evaluation of applicability of indicators of impairment of assets requires assessment of
several external and internal factors which eould result in deterioration of recoverable amount of the assets.

Useful lives of depreciabley/amortisable assets - Management reviews its estimate of the useful lives of depreciable/amortisable assets al each
reporting date, based on the expected ulility of the assels. Uncerlainties in these estimates relate W technical and economic obsolescence that
may change the utility of assets.
Provisions - At each balance sheet date basis the management judgment, changes in facts and legal aspects, the Company assesses the
requirement of provisions against the outstanding conlingent liabilities, However, the actual fjture outcome may be different from this
judgement.
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b)

d)

€)

Summary of significant accounting palicies (cont'd)

Use of estimates {cont'd)

Significant estimates

Defined benefit abligation (DBO) - Management's estimate of the DBO is based on a number of

rates of inflation, mortality, discount rate and anticipation of future salary increases. Variation in ¢
the DBO amount and the annual defined benefit expenses.

Fair value measurements - Management applies valuation tﬂ:h.l'l.‘n?.l&!ﬁh detarmine the fair value of fi

quodes are not available). This iovolves developing estimates and assumptions consistent with
instrument. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a lahilily, the Company uses market-observa
of non-availability of market-observable data, Level 2 & Level 3 hierarchy is used for fair valuation.

Income taxes - Significant estimates are involved in determining the provision for income mxes,

rlying assumptions such as standard
assumptions may significantly impact

ial instruments (where active market
market parbicipants would price the
e data o the extent il is available. In case

inclading amount expected o be paid [/

recovered for uncertain tax positions and also in respect of expected future profitability to assess defdrred tax asset.

Expected credit loss ('ECLY) - The measurement of expocted crodit loss allowance for financial asse
of complex models and significant assumptons about future economic conditions and credit behavi
and resulting lossess). The Company makes significant jucdgements with regard o the following whil
BCL:

* Determining criteria for significant increase in credit risks
* Establishing the number and relative weightings of forward-looking scenarios for each type of prog
* Establishing groups of similar financial assets for the purposes of measuring BCL; and

= Estimating the probability of default and loss given default (estimates of recoverable amounts in ca

Income recognition

Interest incnme

measured at amortised cost requires use
r (e.g. likelihood of customers defaulting
b assessing expected credit loss to estimate

uct/ market and the associated ECL;

ke of dn{ault}

Interest mcome is recognized on lime propor ion basis Laking into account the amwount oulstandiog apd rate applicabile.

For all financial assels measured al amortised cosl, interest iwoee is recorded using the “Hmu“:—.r,“m rate (EIR) Le. the rate that ecctly

discounts estimated tuture cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset (o the net ca

ing amount of the lnancial assels

Intevest on linancial assets subseguently measuned at fair value trough profit and loss, is recognized on accrual basis in accordance with the

terms of the respective contract.
Dividend income

Income from dividend on shares of corporate bodies and units of mutual funds shall be taken into ;

right 1o receive payment is established.

yjocount on accrual basis when Company’'s

Provided that in case of final dividend, right to receive payment shall be considered as established ¢nly upon approval of the dividend by the

ﬂmlmamhhmmlﬂumlhm
Other services

Fees/other charges on loan aseets, other than those considered an adjustment to EIR, arc accounted for only when it is certain that the

amounts will be collected from the customiers.
Barrowing costs

Borrowing cots consists of interest and other cost that the Company incurred in connection with the
are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss as per the effective interest rate method.

Earnings per share

{borrowing of funds. Such borrowing costs

Basic eamnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profil or loss for the period attributable o equity shareholders (after deducting

attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.
For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss (interest and

attributable to equity sharcholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding rll.l.riri.g’r:e

dilutive potential cquity shares,

associated finemoe cost) for the period
period are adjusted for the effects of all
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f)

g) Property, plant and equipment (PFPE)

h)

Significant accounting policies (cont'd)

Intangible assets

Recognition and initial measurement

Intangible assets mainly comprise of compuler software which is inibally measured at acquisi
where it is probable that the future economic benefits attributable o the assets will Aow to
combination are recognized at fair value at the acquisition date.

Subsequent measurement (amortisation method, useful lives and residual value)

All intangible assels with fnite useful life are amortized on a straight line basis over the estima
assessed if there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. Residual values
reviewed at each reporting date. Changes, if any, are accounted for as chunges in accounting es
intangible assets to be 3 years.

Intangible assets under development

Expenditure incurned which are eligible for capitalisation under intangible assets is carried as “In
are ready for their intended wse,

Derecognition of intangible assets
An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no futiare economic benefils are expected

March 2021

n cost thereof, Such assets are recognized

Company. Software acquired in a business

useful lives and a passible impairment is
d uscful lives for all intangible assets are
tes. Management estimates useful life of

tangible assets under development’ Gl they

from use or disposal. Gains or losses arising

from de-recogmition of an intangible asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal ppoceeds and the carrying amount of the asset

are recognised in Lhe Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecogmised.

Recognition and initial measurement

PPE other than land are initially recognized at acquisition eost or construction ast, induding
assets to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the maunwnen
Subsequent costs are induded in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate aseel,
future economic benefits assodiated with the item will flow to the Company beyond one year.
recognized in Statement of Profil and Loss as incurred.

Subseguent measurement (deprecialion method, useful lives, residual value and impairment)

Schedule IT of the Act. The table below summarises useful lives of vardous category of

costs directly attributable to bringing the
interwled by the Company’s management.
appropriate, only when it is probable that
Maintenance or servicing costs of PPE are

Depredation is provided using the straight-line method at the rates estimated by the Marag:mu'rﬁhu:hmim:ides with the rates specified in
FFE:

Asset Category

Fstimated useful life

Furniture and fixiures
Office equipments
Computer & peripherals

The residunal values, useful lives and method of depreciation are reviewed at the end of each financ
PPE other than land are tested for impairment whenever cvents or changes in circumstances i
recoverable,

De-recognition
An ftemn of PPE and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or

from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of an item of I'PE is determin
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and Is recognised in the Statement of Profit and

Capital work-in-progress

10

w o,

| year
icate thal the carrying amount may not be

ne future economic benefits are expected
as the difference between the net disposal

The cost of PPE under construction at the reporting date is disclosed as ‘Capital wurk‘h-pr:Fzm'. The cost comprises purchase price,

borrowing cost if capitalization criveria are met and directly atéributable cost of bringing the asset
Any trade discount and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price. Advances paid for|
are putstanding at the balance sheet date are dassified under ‘Capital Advances”.

Leases

its working condition for the intended use.
the acquisition/ construction of PPE which

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control theuscofanidmiiﬁi:lml for a period of ime in exchange for

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable perdod of a Jease, together with
lease, where the Company is reasonably certain to exercise that option.

periods covered by an option (o extend the
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Significant accounting policies (Contd.)

h) Leases (Contd.)

Where the Company is lessor
Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership

transfer from the Company o the lessee,

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as receivables at the Company net invedtment in the leases. Finance lease income

is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the net investmey

Leases where the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incdental to

ht outstanding in respect of the lease.

ownership of the asset are classified as

operating leases. Lease rentals under operating leases are recognized as income on a straighl-line basi over Lhe lease lerm.

Where the Company is lesses

The Company's leased assets consist of leases for buflding. The Company assesses whether a contrac)
A contract is, or contains, a Jease if the contract conveys the rght 1o control the use of an ide
consideration. To assess whether a contract corveys the right o control the use of an identified assel,

a) the contract involves the use of an identified asset
b) the Company has substantially all the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of
c) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset

contains lease, at inception of a contract.
i asmet for a period in exchange for
Company assesses whether:

the lease and

The Company recognizes right-of-use assct representing its right to use the underlying asset for

adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the
incurred. The righl-of-use assels is subsequently measured st cost less any acowmulated depreciatio
and adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease Bahility. The right- of-use asset is depreciated from

basts over the shorter of the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset. Right-of-use assets
any indication that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. Impairment loss, if any, is

The Company measures the lease liability at the present value at the lease payments that are not pai
The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit m the lease, 1if that rate can be
readily determined. the Company uses incremoental borrowing rate. For leases with reasonably simi
the incremental borrowing rate for the entire portfolio of laases a8 a whole. The lease payments
payments, residual value guarantees, sxercise price of a purchase gption where the Company is
payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising an opts
is subsequently remessured by increasing the carrying amount (o reflect interest on the lease labilit
the lease payments made and remeasuring the carrving amount to reflect any reassessment or |
substance fived lease payments.

The Company recognises the amount of the re-measurement of lease liability as an adjustment to 1]

v, accumulated impairment losses, if any

commencemant date on a straight-line

tested tor impairment whenever there is

in the Statement of Profit and Loas.

at the commencement date of the lease.
ily determined. If that rate cannot be
characteristics, the Company may adopt
indlude fived payments, variable lease
nably certain to exercise that option and
mhﬂnmuheﬂmhse'nwhﬂhdbﬂlty
, reducing the carrying amounl lo rellect
modifications or to refect revised in-

he right-of-use asset. Where the carrying

amount of the right-of-use asset is reduced 10 zero and there is a further reduction in the measurdment of the lease Hability, the Company

recognizes any remaining amount of the re-measurement in the Stalement of Profit and Loss.

After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of inferest and reduced for the lease payments

made. Lease liability payments are classified as cash used in financing activities in the consolidated st

Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives risc o a financial asset of one entity and a Anancial

Initial recognition and measurement
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes a party to th

tement of cash flows

liability or equity instrument of another

e contractual provisions of the financial

instrument and are measured initially at fair value adjusted by transactions costs, except for those duried at fair value through profit or loss

which are measured initially at fair value, Subsequent measurement of financial assets and financial 1i

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets

abilities is described below.

For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified into the following calegorigs upon initial recognition:

a) Amortised cost
b} Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
¢} Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCT)

All financial assets except for those at FVTPL or equity instruments at FVOC] are subject to review [for impairment at least at each reporting

date to identify whether there is any objective evidence thal a fimancial assel or a group of financi
determine impairment are applied for each category of Anancial assots, which are described below.

bl assets is impaired. Different criteria to




Ashv Finance Limited (Formerly known as Jain Sons Finlease Limited)
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 3
{All amounts in ¥ lakhs unless otherwise stated)

3 Significant accounting policies (cont'd)

i) Financial instruments (cont'd)
Amaortised cost
A financial asset is measured at amortised eost using Effective Interest Rate (FIR) if both of the §
a) the financial asset is held within a business model whose ohjective is to hold financial assets in

b) the contractual terms of the financial asse! give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are s
principal amount cutstanding,.

1 March 2021

wing conditions are met:

lo collect contractual cash flows; and

payments of principal and interest on the

The Company’s loans and advances, security deposits, staff loans, cash and cash exquivalents, tradd and most other receivables fall into this

category of financial instruments,
A Yoss allowance for expected credit losses is recognised on financial assets carried at amortised

Modification of cash flows
When the contractual cash fows of a finandial asset are renegotiated or otherwise modified
result in derecognition of that financial assel, the Company recalculates the gross carrying

the rencgotiation or modification does not

of the financial assel and recognises a

modification gain or loss in profit or loss. The gross carrying amount of the financial asset shall| be recalculated as the present value of the

renegotiated or modified contractual cash flows that are discounted at the financial asset's origi
incurred adjust the carrying amount of the modified financa] asset and are amortised over the

Financial assets at FVTFL
Financial assets at FVTPL include Bnancial assets that are elther do not meet the criterda for
instruments held for trading or that meet certain conditions amnd are designated at FVTPL u
instruments also fall into this category, except for those desipnated and effective as hedging i
requirements may apply. Assots in this category ane measurod af fair value with gains or losses
financial assets in this category are delermined by reference to active markel transactions or
miarket exists,

Financial assets at FVOCI
FVOCT financial assels comprise of cquity instriments measured at fair value. Gains and

effective interest rate. Any costs or fees

term of the modified financial asset.

cost classification or are equily

initial recognition. All derivative financial
truments, for which the hedge accounting

tzed in profit or loss. The fair values of

np, A valuation technique where no active

eed in other comprehensive income

losses are
anud neported within the TVOCT reserve within equity, except for dividend income, which is m:;p\iF":pfcﬁl or loss,

De-recognition of financial assets

De-recognition of financial assets due to substantial modification of terms and conditions
The Company derecugnises a financial asset, such as a loan to a customer, when the terms and
that, substantially, it becomes a new loan, with the difference rocognised as a derecognition gain or
has not already been recorded.

De-recognition of financial assets other than due to substantial medification

tions have boen renegotialed to the extent
Inss, to the extent that an impainnent loss

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset ur part of a group of similar

assets) is derecognised when the

contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expires or il transfers the rights to receivelthe contractual cash Aows in a transaction

in which substantiafly all uf the risks and rewards of ownarship of the financial asset are tronsferred
nor retaing substanbally all of the risks and rewards of ownership and it does not netain control of

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the carrying amount |
the consideration received (including any new asset obtained less any new Hability assumed) is
Accordingly. gain an sale or derecognition of assigned portfolio are recorded upfront in the sta
Also, the Company recognises servicing inmome as a percentage of interest spread over tenure of |
service the transferred financial asset.

As per the guidelines of RBI, the Company is required to retain certain portion of the loan assig)

in which the Company neither transfers
financial asset,

d at the date of derecognition) and
in the statement of profit and loss.
t of profit and loss as per Ind AS 109,
in cases where it retains the obligation to

hed to parties in its books as Minimum

Retention Requirement ("MRR"). Therefore, it continue to recugnise the portion retained by it as MRR,

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial lHabilities
Financial liabilities are measured subsequently al amortizad cost using the effective interest methol
trading or designated at FVTPL, that are carried subsequently at fair value with gains or losses

except for financial liabilities held for
in profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial Liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelle
liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms
maodified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability ar
difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss,

i or expires. When an existing financial
of an existing liability are substantially
d the recognition of a new hability. The

Derivative financial instruments and hedgr accounting

The derivative financial instruments are accounted for at FVTPL. The Company does not apply hedpe decounting,




Ashv Finance Limited (Formerly known as Jain Sons Finlease Limited)
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2021
(All amounts in ¥ lakhs unless otherwise stated)

3
i

k) Cash and cash equivalents

l)

Significant accounting policies jcont'd)
Impairment of financial assets
Loans

The Company follows & ‘three-stage” model for impairment based ¢n changes in credit quality since ifitial recognilion as summarised below:

i) Stage 1 includes loan assets that have not had a significant incréase in credil risk since initial recogmition or that have low credit risk at the

reporting date.
i) Stage 2 includes loan assets that have had a significant increase in credit risk since indtial recogniti
iif) Stage 3 includes loan assots that have objective evidence of impairment at the reporting date.

b but that do not have abjective evidence

The Expected Credit Loss (ECL) is measured at 12-month ECL for Stage 1 loan assets and at lifeti
ECL is the product of the Probability of Default, Expusure at Default and Loss Given Default, delined
Probability of Default (PD) - The PD represents the likelihood of a borrower defaulting on its fi
months (12 months PD), or over the remaining lifetime (Lifetime PD) of the obligation. Please refer
Loss Given Default (LGD) - LGD represents the Company's oxpectation of the extent of loss on a
counterparty, type and preference of claim and availability of collateral or other credit support. P

ECL for Stage 2 and Stage 3 loan assels.
follows:
ial obligation, either over the next 12
e 37 for further explanation.
ulted exposure, LGD varies by type of
refer note 37 for further explanation.

Exposure at Default (EAL) - EAD is based on the amount of outstanding exposure as on the assessment date on which ECL is computed

including amount guaranteed by way of letter.of credit. Please refer note 37 for further explanation.

Forward-looking evonomic information is included in determining the 12-month and lifetime PD, ES
the expected credit loss are monitored and reviewed on an ongoing basis.

Mher financial assels

[ and LGD. The assumptions underlying

In respect of its other financial assets, the Company assesses it the credit sk on those tinancial
recognition. IF the credit risk has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the Company
equal to 12-month expected credit losses, else at an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit |

When making this assessment, the Company uses the dhange in the sk of a defaull oocwrring over|

is has increased significantly since initial
res the loss allowance at an amount

the expected life of the linancial asset. To

ke That assessment, the Company compares The risk of a defanlt aoomrming om the financial asset as
default occurring on the financal asset as ai the date of initial recognition and considers
available without undue cost or effort, that is indicative of significant increases in credit risk since
that the credit risk on a financial asset has not increased significantly since initial recognition if
credit risk at the balance sheet date.

Wirite-offs

t the balance sheet date with the risk of a

tial recognition. The Company assumes
financial asset is determined to have low

Financial assets are written off ither partially or in their entirety only when the Company has stopped pursuing, the recovery.

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, together with other short
maturity less than 3 months) that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which ary

in value

Taxation
Tax expense recognized in profit or loss comprises the sum of deferred tax and current taoc. It is

-term, highly liquid investments (original
subject 1o an insignificant risk of changes

in Statement of Profit and Loss,

mptwhenitmialmtoanitem&mtismug;mhadhlﬂﬂnrdimﬂ}-hequhy,mwhichmmisﬁrﬂmgmsedinm or directly in equity.

Current tax is debermined as the tax payable in respect of taxable income for the year, using tax ratds enacted or substantively enacted and as

applicable at the reporting date, and any adjustments to tax payable in respect of provious years.
Deferred lax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and ki
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable income.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are calculated, without discounting, at tax rates that are
realization, provided those rates are enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax labilities and assets, and they
authority.

A deferred tax liability is recognised for all texable temporary differences. A deferred tax asset i
differences to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which
utilized. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that
benefit will be realized.

in the financial statements and the

to apply to their respective period of
iod. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
to income taxes levied by the same tax

recognized for all deductible temporary
& deductible temporary difference can be
18 no longer probable that the related tax
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3
I

m) Employee benefits

n)

a)

P

Significant accounting policies {cont'd)
Taxation (contd.)
Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities are recognized as a component of tax income or expense in

profit or loss, except where they relate to

items that are recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the relatgd deferred tax is also recognized in other

comprehensive income or equity, respectively.

Dividend Distribution Tax is recognized at the same time when the liability to pay dividend is recognfzed.

Short-term employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits including salaries, profit sharing and bonuses payable within twelve m|

bmths after the end of the period in which

tl'uz_empluym render the related services and non-monetary benefils for current employess are eslignaled and measured on an undiscounted

Ihasis.

Post-cmployment benefit plans are classified into defined benefits plans and defined contribution
Defined contribution plan

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund 15 a defined contribution scheme. The Company has
payable to the provident fund and national pension scheme. The Company recognises contributi

plans as under:

no obligation, other than the contribution
on payable as an expenditure, when an

employee renders the related service. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the exten} that a cash refund or a reduction in the

future payments is available.

Defined benefit plan

The Company has an obligation kowards gratuity which is being considered as defined benefit
defined benefit plans, the amount that an employee will reccive on retirement is defined by
salary and other defined parameters. The plan is unfunded.

covering eligible employces. Under the
to the employee’s length of service, final

The Company’s abligation towards defined benefit plans is determined using the projected unit
carried out at the end of sach annual reporting period. The liability recogrised in the statement of
the present value of the Defined Benefit Obligntion (DEO) at the reporting date less the fair value
DBO annually with the assistance of independent actuaries. Actuarial gains/losses resulting from
included in Other Comprehensive Income.

Share based payments - Employee Stock Option Scheme ("ESOF)

The fair value of options granted under Employee Stock Option Plan is recognized as an employ
innrease in eguity. The tolal ameant o be expeised is determined by reference 1o the fair value of
over the vesting period, which is the period over which all of the specitied vesting conditions are to
entity revises its estimates of the number of opticns that are expected to vest based on the non-
recognizes the impact of the revision to original cstimates, if any, in profit or loss, with a
share options, the proceeds received are allocated to share capital up to the par value of the shares
share premiom.

Operating scgmenis
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reparting provided to the (
of the Company. The CODM is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the

Business combination and goodwill
Business combinations are acepunted for using the aequisition method. The cost of an acquisity
consideration transferred measured at acquisition date fair value.

t method, with actuarial valuations being

ial position for defined benefit plans is
plan assets. Management estimates the
easurements of the liability fasset are

benefils expense with a comesponding
options. The total expense is recognized
satisfied. At the end of each peniod, the
wvesting and service conditions. Tt
adjustment to equity. Upon exercise of
with any excess being recorded as

Chief Operating Decision Maker ("CODM')
pperating segments of the Company.

bn 35 messured ac the aggregate of the

Al the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liahilities assumed if any are

their acquisition date fair values. For

at
this purpase, the liabilities assumed are representing present obligation and they are measured at Fﬂ'r acquisition fair values irrespective of
the f

the fact that cutflow of resources embodying economic benefits is not probable. However,
business combination are measured at the basis indicated below:

When the Company acquires a business, it assesses the financal assets and liabilities assum

wing assets and liabilities acquired in a

ed for iate classification and designation in
accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at E acquisition date. Goodwill is initially

measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred and the
and any previous interest held, over the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed.

Goodwill recognized on business combination are tested for impairment at least annually and w!
indicate that the recoverable amount of the asset or the cash generating unit to which it pertains is

recognised for non-controlling interests,

events occur or changes in circumstances
than the carrying value
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q) Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

1)

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present lagal or constructive obligation as &
outflow of economic resources will be required from the Company and amounts can be estimated
may still be uncertain. Provisions are measured at the estimated expenditure reguired to seftle
reliable evidence available at the reporting date, including the risks and uncertainties associated
discounted to their present values, where the time value of money 15 material.

Contingent liability is disclosed for:
* Possible obligations which will be confirmed only by future events not wholly within the control

Narch 2021

sult of a past event, it is probable that an
Hakly. Timing or amount of the outflow

present oblipation, based on the most
ith the present obligation. Provisions are

Company; or

the
* Present obligations arising from past events where it is not pmbab]ematancmiﬂnwnfrﬁuumoiiﬂbcmquimd to settle the obligation or a

reliable estimate of the amount of the abligation cannol be made.

In those cases, where the outflow of economic resources as a result of present obligations is considered improbable or remaote, no liahility is

recognized or disclosure is made.

Any reimbursernent that the Company can be virtually certain to collect from a thurd party
insurance) is recognized as a separale assel. However, this asset may not exceed the amount of the ro
Contingent assets are not recognised. However, when inflow of economic benefits is probable, the

Fair value measurement
The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each reporting d

Fair value is the price that would be received to scll an asset or paid to transter a liability in an ond
al e measurement date, The fair value measurement is based on the presumphion that the
takes place sither:

+= In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

* In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market bor the assel or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company .

The fair value of an asset or a hability is measured nsing fhe assumplions Ut market participants
assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest. A fair value measwremwent of
market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
participant thal would use the asset in its highest and best use.

respect o the obligation (such as from
tod provision.
asset is disclosed.

transaction belwees: market participants
ko sell the asset or transfer the Lability

use when pricing the asset or linbility,
nor-financial asset takes inlo account a
use or by selling it to another market

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the droumstances and for which
value, maximising the use of relevant observable inpuls aned minimising te wse of unobservable
All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the finandal statements are
deseribed as follows, based on the lowest level inpul that is significant to the fair value measurement
= Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or Habilitics;

* Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair v
observable

* Level 3 - Valuation technigues for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the C

occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-asgessing eategorisation (based on the lowest level fi

measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.
Standards issued but not yet effective as on date

There are no new standard or amendments notified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA') to
been applicable from 1 April 2022

-

data arc available to measure fair

within the fair value hierarchy,
a whole:

measurement is directly or indirectly
15 unobhservahble,

pany determines whether transfers have
put that is significant to the fair value

the existing standards which would have
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5 (Cash and cash equivalents

a)
b)
<)
d)

)

m =

As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Cash on hand 0.51 0.38
Balances with banks in current accounts 22204 2,356.80
Fixed deposits with banks with original maturity less than 3 months 2.200.00 -
47255 2,357.18
Other bank balances
: As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Fixed deposits with banks with original maturity more than 3 months, on lien against term
and unutilized overdraft linit 709090 244507
Interest accrued but not doe on lixed deposits 253.58 711
734448 250218
Loans
As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Term loans o customers, et of Jeferral 70,3371 5060564
Loan to related party 7279 4299
Interest accrued on loans to customers 1,900.35 1,227 36
Tatal 72,965.50 52,255.4
Less: Impairment on financial instruments {2,449.50) (235213)
70,516.00 49,9031
Noles:
The st carrying amount of loans is considered a reasonable approcimation of their fair value.
Refur note 37 for ECL disclosures.
Luans balances as at 31 March 2021 amounting to ¥ 3,167 49 are acquired by way of Business Cambination (refer Note 48)
The reconciliation of loans is as below;
Secured 10,731 .39 13,962.54
Unsecured 59,12 36,465.91
69,997 .51 5042845
Add/(Less): Deferral of net income,/ expense on origination of loans 339.70 177.19
Loans to customers, nct of deferral 70,337.21 50,605.64
Secured exposures are secured wholly or partly by hypothecation of boak debts, charge on moviable/ immovable assets,
All loans are held in India. For breakup of industry wise loans, refor Note, 42,
There are no loans given to Promotuors, Directors or key managerial personmel (KMPs). For loanjgiven to related party:
Type of barrower : Related parly 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Amount of lean oulstanding 7794 43094
percentage of tofal loans & advances 1.02% 0.83%
Inwestments
As at s at
31 March 2022 31 March 2011
Northern Arc Money Market Alpha Fund 10227 -

102.27
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9 Other financial assets

As at Ax at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Collateral security given to lenders 553 385.40
Security deposits 12146 103.23
Loans to employees 013 11.24
Receivable for services 30 B4
Receivable from related partes 2,163.64 1,211.62
Other receivables 440.31 160.58
__2.974.96 1,896.01

10 Deferred tax assets (net)
Asat Asat

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Deferred tax asset arising on account of:

Impairment loss allowances on loans G18.84 592.03

O carried Forward losses 65236 200.84

Disallowance u/s 438 and other provisions 153.1% 63,15

O right-nf-use asset 1.95

On property, plant and equipment 207 13.16
144735 869.18

Deferred lax liahility arising on account of:

On gain on derecognition of assigned receivables 6605 -

On adjustinents [or Eifective interest rate accounting 161 48 -

24783 -

1,199.42 Hb4.1H

The Company has recognised deferred tax assets on the carried forward tax losses to the extenf that it s probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the unused tax losses and unused tax credits can be utilised ) Tolal unrecognised deferred tax assets
as al 31 March 2021: Mil {March 2021: ¥ 466.16)
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11 A. Property, plant and equipment ('PPE)

Computers Furniture anjd Office equipment Total PPE
fixtures

Gross block
Balance as at 31 March 2020 B4 1 81 8795
Additions 336 .2 239 5619
Additions through business combination 4.87 1.36 33.20
Disposals (0.33) - - 033)
Balance as at 31 March 2021 142.48 7 31.86 arm
Additions T30 0 214 7e.02
Disposals (L.07) - - .07
Balance as at 31 March 2022 4.4 20 33.99 451.96
Accumulated depreciation
Balance as at 31 March 2020 40.26 1.00 109.27
Depreciation charge for the year 2.4 19 6.28 50.18
Disposals (0.18) - - ({0.18)
Balance as at 31 March 2021 6434 6?f 27.28 159.29
Depreciation charge of the period 44.57 LR ¥l 405 §3.43
Disposals (0.25) 2 < (0:33)
Balance as at 31 March 2022 104.56 10238 3133 282.37
MNet block
As at 31 March 2021 TH14 135:n 458 nT
As at 31 March 222 105.69 m 266 1959
Mnle:

i. Contractual abligations
There are no contrac tual commitments for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment.

iL Cﬂ.pil.l]i!nl 'bumwh“q.'mt
Themre is muy borrowing costs capitalised during the year ended 31 March 2023 (31 March 2021: hhl).

iii. Revaluation of Property, Plant & Equipment and Intangible Assets.
There have been no revaluation during the year ended 31 March 2023 (31 March 2021: Nil).

11 B. W—m ageet
Office premises Taotal

Gross block
Balance as at 31 March 2020 - -
Additions 36039 360.39
Balance as at 31 March 2021 360.39 360.39
Additions 18294 182.94
Balance as at 31 March 2022 543.33 543.33
Accumulated depreciation
Balance as at 31 March 2020 - -
Amortization charge of the year 48 56 4856
Balance as at 31 March 2021 48.56 4856
Amortizabion charge of the period 15035 150.33
Balance as at 31 March 2022 198.89 15033
Met blnck
Az at 31 March 2021 311.83 311.83

As at 31 March 2022 34.44 311.85
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12 Other intangible assets

Computer Total
Gross hlock
Balance as at 31 March 2020 146.46 14646
Addibons 7.2 1A
Additions through business combination 117 117
Dispusals o .
Balance as at 31 March 2021 218.86 218.86
Additions 0.40 0.40
Disposals - -
Balance as at 31 March 2022 219.25 219.25
Amortisation
Balance as at 31 March 2020 81.87 8187
Charge for the year 59.05 2905
Dispasals = -
Balance as at 31 March 2021 12092 140.92
Charge for the period B.73 3873
Adjustments £ -
Balance as at 31 March 2022 1M9.65 17965
Net block
As at 31 March 2021 T4 779
As at 31 March 2022 3.61 3961
13 Other non-Financial assels
As al As at
31 March 2022 M March 2111
Prepaid expenses 175.52 13841
Balance with government authorities 116.50 6213
Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be received a0 060
Other reveivables 205 1.90

20467 203.04
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14 Trade payables

a)

As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

(i) total cutstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises, undisputed 21.14 -
(if) total vutstanding dues other than micro enterprises and small enterprises
Dues to related parties - -
Others, undisputed 21.00 91.12
4214 91.12
MNotes:
All trade payables are cutstanding for the period less than 1 vear, from respective due dates,
15 Debt securities
As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Secured
- Rated, Listed, Redeemable, Mon-Convertible Debentures (NCDs) 9% A2 4,662.79
- Rated, Unlisted, Redeemable, NCDs 1532855 527158
Interest accrued but not due on debt securities 179.65 1 .87
19,417.00 10,156.24

Terms of repayment and sccurity given are as below:
The Company had allotted 4,000 NCDs of face value of ¥1 lakh each fully paid-up at par on 16 ]
way of hypothecation of specified book debts/loan receivables amd carries coupon of 12.86%
redeemed during the year,

The Company had allothed 1,330 NCDs of face value of €1 lakh cach fully paid-up at par on 10 Jy

November 2016, NCDs are secured by
per annum, These NCDs have been

ne 2016, NCDs are secured by way of

hypothecation of specified book debts/loan reccivables and carries coupon of 12.86% per annurp. The NCDs are redeemable al par in

twa equal instalments. These NCDs have been redeered during the year,

The Company has allotted 150 NCDs of face value of 10 lakhs each tully paid-up at par on 29 Ay

rust 2018, NCDs are secured by way of

hypothecation of specified book debts/loan receivables and carrics coupon of 10.58% per mﬂwﬂm are repayable in periodic

instalments ranging from 28.33 lakhs to 34167 lakhs till August 2021, These NCDs have been

The Company has allotted 320 NCDs of face value of 210 lakhs each fully paid-up at par on 25
way ol hypolhecation of spevified book debts/loan receivables and carries coupon of 12.40% per
one instaiment on 25th November 2023,

The Company has allotted 2,000 NCDs of face value of €1 lakh each fully paid-up at par on 1
hypothetion of specified book debis/loan receivables and carries eoupon of 12.75% per
instalments ranging from ¥133.32 lakhs o $133.52 lakhs till June 2022,

during the year.

November 2020, NCDs are secured by
nnum, which are redeemable at par in

2021, NCDs are secured by way of
which are repayable in periodie
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parch 2022

The Company has allotted 2,500 Principal Protected Market-linked Debentures (PP MLDs) of facy
par on 23 June 2021. These instruments are secured by way of hypothecation of specified

coupon linked o the "Reference Index® (BSE) sulbject to a base monthly conpon rate of 13.79%
reference indes and ceiling coupon rate of 1415% per annum in a rising scenario of the referen
together with effective coupon amount in one instalment on T4th October 2022,

The Company has allotted 2,000 Principal Protected Market-linked Debentures (PP MLDs) of f
par on 29 June 2021. These instruments are secured by way of hypothecation of specified

coupon linked to the "Reference Index® (BSE) subject to a base monthly coupon rate of 14.41%
reference index and ceiling rate of 14.78% per annum in a rising scenario of the reference index]
with effective coupon amount in one instalment on Aith September 20122,

The Company has allotied 200 NCDs of face value of #10 lakhs each fully paid-up al par on 13
hypothecation of specified book debts/loan receivables and carries coupon of 13.65% per
instalments of 280.00 lakhs till Scptember 2023,

The Company has allotted 3,000 NCDs of face value of 1 lakh each fully paid-up at par on 12

o e

- value of 21 lakh cach fully paid-up at
k debts/ loan receivables and carries

anmum in a dechining scenanio of the
Fo index, which are redeemable at par

value of 21 lakh each fully paid-up at
debts/ loan receivables and carries
anmum in a declining scenario of the
which are redeemable at par together

ust 2021, WNCTIs ane secured by way of
which are repayable in periodic

Movember 2021. NCDs are secured by

rm].r of hypothecation of specified book debis/lnan receivables and carries coupon of 13.45% per gnnum, which are repayable in perindic

instalments of TSN lakhs tll October 2024,

The Company has allotted 1,700 NCDs of face value of 71 lakh each fully pald-up at par on 21
of hyputhecation of specified book debbs/loan receivaliles and carres coupon of 13.20% per
instalovents of 283,33 lakhs 1ill December 2024,

The Company has allotted 37,000 NCDs of face value of ¥10 thousands each fully paid-up at

2021, NCDs are secured by way
wm, which are repayable in periodic

par on 23 December 2021. NCDs are

secured by way of hypothecaton of spedfied book debts/loan receivables and arries cougon of 1230% per e, which are

redemabbe al par in ooe nstaloenl on 23%0d December 2024,

The Company has allotted 210 NCDs of face value of T10 lakhs cach fully paid-up at par on 30
MCDs are secured by way of hypothecation of spedfied book debts/loan receivables and i
are repayable in periodic instalments ranging from 758,33 lakhs to 2350.00 lakhs till March 2025,

The quarterty retumns or statements of current assets filed by the Company with banks or finan
the books of accounts.

The Company has used the borrowings from banks and financlal institutions for the specific
balance sheet dale.

Repayment schedule of term loans

2022 (deemed date of allotment).
coupon of 12.75% per annum, which

rial institutions are in agreement with

purpase for which it was taken at the

Up to 1 year 5,9493.51 6,339.85
2105 years 13,413.33 3,600.16
19, 406.54 9,940.01
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Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2022
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Borrowings
As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Secured
Term Inans from banks 6,140.43 1,779.86
Term loans from financial institutions 36,03930 22,114.07
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 595.24 105.20
42.774.97 23,999.13
Terms of repayment and securily given are as below:
Loans from banks and financial institutions are secured by way of hypothecation of btmk:il:l'h;tmmd out of the loan amount. Rate of
interest on these loans ranges from 6.85% to 14.10% per annum as on 31 March 2022 (For iols year ended 31 March 2021: The Rate

17

14

19

of interest ranged from 9.95% to 14.10% per annum).

The quarterly returns or statements of current assets filed by the Company with banks or
the books of accounts.

institutions are in agreement with

The Company has used the borrowings from banks and fnancial institutions for the specfic purpose for which it was taken at the

balance sheet date.

Repayment schedule of term loans

Up to 1 year 27,840.65 1375723
2o 5 years 14,562.40 1032304
42 403.05 24,080.87
Other financial liabilities
As at As al
31 March 2022 31 March 201
Cash collaveral from customers 193.79 163.36
Advance from customers 43506 38572
Lense hability 352.20 324.76
Dues to the assignecs towards collections from assigned receivables 25335 8225
Emplovee payables 23715 266.51
Other payables 862.10 44143
1&65 IEHI.I:G
Provisions
As at As at

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Provision for emplayer henefits

Gratuity 119.19 7191
11919 71.91
Other non-financial liabilitics
As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Income received in advance 12938 7081
Statutory Habilites 15399 100.23

28337 171.04
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20 A. Equity Share capital

As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Authorised
(i) 7.34,00,000 (31 March 2021: 7,34,00,000) equity shares of T 10 each 7,000 7,340.00
7,340.00 7,340.00
Issued, subscribed and paid-up
(i) 3,36,15,301 (31 March 2021: 3,36,15,301) equity shares of ¥ 10 each 3,361 53 3361.52
3,361.53 336153
20 B. Preference share capital
As at Asal
M March 2022 3 March 2021
Authorised
(i) &0,00,000 (31 March 2021: 60,00,000) 0.001% Series CCCPS of 2 10 each &00.00 600,00
({id) 36.00,000 (31 March 2021: 56,00,000) 0.001 % Series D CCPS of % 10 each 360.00 S60.00
22 563.00 22 563.00
Issued, subscribed and paid-up
(1) 58,4996 (31 March 2021: 58,49,966) 0.001% Scries CCCPSof T 10 cach SE5.00 585,00
(1id) 26,27,724 (31 March 2021: 26,27,724) 0.001 % Serics D CCFS of 2 10 cach 26277 20277
847.77 B847.77

a) The reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding and the amount of share capilal as at 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020 is sct out
below

Asat As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Number Amount Number Amount
Reconciliation of share capital
Balance al the beginning of the year 3,36,15,30 336155 1736447 271304
Add: Allolled during the year - . 1,14, 78,854 1.147.89
Balance at the end of the year 336,153 3.361.55 3,360,155 3.361.53
Reconciliation of CCPS
0.001% CCPS - Series C of T 10 each
Balance at the beginning of the year 58,49 966 S85.00 58,49,90hG SR5.00
Add : Issued during the year = = L =
Balance at the end of the year 55 49 966 585.00 58,49 966 SAS.00

0.001% CCPS - Series D of ¥ 10 each
Balance at the beginning of the year 25,27,724 2825 26,227,724 26277
Add : Issued during the year - - = 5

Balance at the end of the year 26,7,724 262.7F 26,27,724 26277
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b) Rights and restriction attached to equity shares
The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of ¥ 10 per share. Each hojder of equity shares is entitled to one

vote per share.
In the event of liquidation of the Company, of the proceeds available for distribution to the of equity shares, the assets of the
Company will be distributed first among the Investors in accordance with the terms of the A t, second to the Shareholders

(which would include the Promoters and Other Shareholders) and lastly pro-rata amongst all the Shareholders (including Investors) on
a fully diluted basis.

If the Liguidity Event Proceeds are insufficient 10 make payment in full to all holders of the CUPS in accordance with the liquidation
preference sel forth in this Agreement, then such Liquidity Fvent Proceeds shall be distributed pre-rata among the Investors,

¢) Terms and rights attached to preference shares

Terms and rights attached to Series C CCPS of ¥10 each
The Company had allotted 58,49,99 non-cumulative CCPS of face vale ¥10 each fully paid-u
CCPS on & May 2016. The Series C CCPS carry dividend of 0.001% per annum. In addition o
enlitled lo participale along with the equity shares in any dividends declared by the Company
been converted into equity shares immediately prior to declaration of dividend by the Comy
fully diluted basis.

al a premium of 377.18 per Series C
e fixed dividend, each CCIPS shall be
the equity shares, as if such CCPS has
and are entitled to voting rights on a

In accordance with the terms of the Sharcholders Agreement, 1 {one) Series C CCPS shall be aut
share of ¥10 each at the end of Sth year from the dale of issuance or on cecurmence of an initial
the Company before conversion of CCFS, the holders of COPS will have priority over equity
repayment of capital,

lically eomverted into 1(one) equity
ic offer. In the event of hquidation of
in the payment of dividend and

Terms and rights attached to Series 1) CCFS of 210 cach
The Company has allotted 26,27,724 0.001% Series D CCPS of 710 cach on rights basis, on 9 Agril 2018, in the ratio of 1 (one) 0.001%
Series D COCPS of 710 each for every 4 equity shares (on fully dilated basis) of 210 each at a premiym of 277.18 per 0.001% Series D CCPS
In addition to the fixed dividend, each CCPS shall be entitled to participate along with the equily shares in any dividends declared by
the Company on the equity shares, as if such CCPS has been converted inlo equily shares immegliately prior to declaration of dividend
by the Company and are entitled o voling riphts on a fully diluled basis.

In accordance with the terms of the Shareholders Agreement, 1 (one) Series D CCPS shall be au teally converted inte 1{one) equity
share of 210 each at the end of th year from the date of issuance or on occurrence of an initial lic offer. In the event of liguidation of
the Company before conversion of OCPS, the holders of CCPS will have prority over equity s in the payment of dividend and
repaymaent of capital.
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d) The details of shareholder holding more than 5 percent shares

As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Mo. of shares  Percent of No. of shares Percent of
shareholding shareholding

Equity shares

Intellectual Capital Advisory Services Private Limited 1.18,61,955 35.29% 1,18,61,955 35.29%

("Intellectual™)

Aavishkaar Venlure Management Services Private Limited 1.33,20,638 39635 1,33, 20,638 39.63%

"AVMS")

OMN Mauritins 47,84, 689 1423 47 B4 689 14.23%

(L% Series C CCPS of € 10 each

On Mauritius 17.20.578 2941 17,220,578 4%

DWM 264,694 35, 20.64,694 A5.29%

TSTMFE 10323457 17, 10,32,347 17.65%

TCTISE 10,32,347 17 10,32,347 17.65%

(10N % Series U CCPS of T 10 each

AVMS 11.47.052 43, 11,47,052 43.65%

TCTPSF 370,168 14 370,168 1409%

TSTME 370,168 14. 3,70,168 14.09%

DWM 740,336 281 740,336 28.17%
€) The: Company has not allotked any bonus shares in the five years inunedialely precedmg 31 2022, The Company has not bought

hack equity shares during five years immediately preceding 31 March 2022, nor has it issucd ghare for consideration other than
cash.

f) For details of equily shares reserved for issuanee under the ESOP plan of the Company, refer

) There are no changes in equity share capital due to prior period errors. There has been no rest
vwrrent reporting period.

t of balance at the beginning of the

b} Disclosures pertaining v Promotor shareholding;

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Promoter name Aavishkaar Venture Management
number of shares held 1.33.20,678 1,33.20,638

percentage of total shares Pnl% 39.63%
percentage change during the year B .

21 (ther equiky

As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Statubory reserve ufs 45(1C) of the RBI Act, 1934 624,39 51439
Securities preminm 21,992.25 2199235
Share options outstanding account 3445 157.07
Deficit in the Statement of Profit and Loss {1,557.72) {1,986.18)
21,293.37 20,677.53

MNature and purpose of reserve
a) Securitics premium

Securities premium reserve is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve can Be utilised only for limited purposes such

as issuance of bomus shares in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,

b) Share options outstanding account
The reserve is used o recognised the fair value of the options issuad to the employees of the Cofnpany under its stock option plan.
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42 Interest Income

23

March 2022

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Interest on loans 11,592.36 8.296.99
Interest on fixed deposits 386,88 308.18
Interest on others 2092 742
12,000.16 B,632.59
Net gain an fair value changes
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Profit on sale of investments in mutual funds 2925 -
29.25 =
Other operating revenue
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Gain on derecognition of assigned receivables 350,92 116.08
Bad debt recoweries 12871 273
Other charges 2663 104.41
Tﬂl.iﬁ 447,22
her income
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Interest on income tax refund 4931 £5.80
Prufit on sale of Asset 004 3.66
Other miscellaneous income 337 -
5272 4246
Finance costs
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Interest expense on debt securities 1,567 83 102324
Interest expensc on borrowings 42450 2,34737
Interest expense on lease liabilities 2445 5108
Other borrowing costs 303 3237
5,640.32 3.454.06
Impairment on financial instruments
Year ended Year ended
A March 2022 31 March 2021
Impairment on loans 9737 TRT.59
Loan assets written off 1,226.92 1,003.09
1,324.29 1,790.68
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28 Employee benefits expenses

March 2022

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Salaries and wapes 3,169.09 2.238.589
Contributions to provident and other funds 188.18 125,09
Share based compensation 7738 64,30
Gratuity exponses 46,52 2082
Staff welfare expenses 174.19 99.40
3,655.36 2.558.50

29 Other expenscs

Year ended Year ended
3 March 2022 31 March 2021
Rent 103 38 13710
Electricity and water 16.06 12.68
Repairs and maintenance - others 615 274
Rates and taxes 23133 157.37
Travelling and conveyance 12054 5029
Printing and stationery 206 655
Direclor silling fees 15.60 17.85
Legal and professional fees 420.76 17644
Remuneration 1o anditors 15.19 16.00
Donation - 960
Communication expenses 28.32 28
Technulogy expens:e 209,91 170.97
Offioe wxpenses 113.48 .32
Advertisement experses 05.62 21.55
Foreign exchange loss = 0.59
Miscellaneous 68.57 766
1,455.97 88144

28{a) Payment to auditors (excluding taxes)

Year cnded Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
- Audit fees (incdluding Limited Review) 16.69 14.50
= Tax audit fecs 1.50 1.50

= Other matters -

= Out of pockel expenses - -

IB.EL 16.00

28(b) Carporate social responsibility (CSK)

As per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, a CSR committee has been formed by the C

spend any amount as per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 in the years ended 31 March

any. The Company is not required to
and 31 March 2021,
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30 Depreciation and amortisation expense

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 8343 50.18

Amaortisation on right of use asset 150.33 48.56

Amortisation on intangible assets 38.73 59.05
27249 157.7%

31 Earnings per equity share (EPS)

Net profit attributable to equity shareholders 546.77 796.35

Weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year 3,36,15,301 3.36,15.301

Add: Effect of potential shares for conversion of CCPS (nws) B477 650 84,77 690

Add: Effect of potential shares for comversion of ESOP (nos) 1,10,662 -

Weighted average number of shares used to compute diluted EPS (nos) 4,22,03,653 4,20,92,951

Eaming per share :

Basic 163 237

Mihated 1.30 1.39

MNominal value - per equity share 10,00 10.00

32 Related party disclosures

a) Description of relationship

Individuals / Companies having significant influence Mature of relationship

Aavishkaar Venture Management Services Private Limited ["AVNS") Holding Company/Entity which

has significant influence on the
Company*

Arohan Financial Services Limited ("Arohan®) Associate of AVMS

Intellecap Advisory Services Private Limited (" Intellecap™) Subsidiary of AVMS

Aavishkaar Foundabion Subsidiary of AVMS

Aavishkaar Investment Advisors (1150 Private Limited

Aavishkaar Advisors Private Limiled

Indradhanush Capital Advisors Private Limited

N R Management Consultants India Private Limited (from on 5 March 2021)
TribeTech Private Limited ("TribeTech")

Intellectual Capital Advisory Services Private Limited (“Intellactual")

Intellecap Inc.

Sankalp Consultancy Limited

Aavishkaar Venture Trustees Pvt Ltd ("AVTPL")

Impact Investors Couneil ("IIC”)

Aavishkaar Capital Advisors LLP ("ACAL") - Upto 5th Sept 2021

Directors
Mr. ¥Vincet Chandra Rai
Mr. Anurag Agarwal

Key Management Personnel
Mr, Nikesh Kumar Sinha, Managing Director
Ms. Kiran Agarwal Todi, Chief Financial Officer

*Mote: AVMS 15 the Holding Company w_a.f. September 2019,

Subsidiary of AVMS
Subsidiary of AVMS

Subsidiary of AVMS
Subsidiary of AVMS

Subsidiary of AVMS

Subsidiary of Intellecap

Entity which has significant
influence on the Company
Subsidiary of Intellecap
Subsidiary of Intellecap
Entity under common conlral
Entity under common control
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b) The transactions with related parties during the year :

Mature of transaction Transactions with 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Reimbursement of expenses incurred on behalf of the Company  Intellecap 11.98 1.563
Reimbursement of expenses incurred for the Company Intellecap 133 -
Professional services Intellecap - 5.00
Reimbursement of expenses incurred on behalf of the Company ~ Arohan 3043 5121
Reimbursement of expenses incurred for the Company Arohan 039 0.13
Purchase of Asseis Arohan 0.01 -
Business purchase consideration paid Arohan - 6,225.52
Customer receipts collected on behalfl of the Company Arohan 1,546.87 54594
Reimbursement of expenses incurred on behalfl of the Company  TribeTech - 6.64
Purchase of assets TribeTech - 4.05
Reimbursement of expenses incurred for the Company TribeTech 0z 0.25
Sourcing and servicing fees TribeTech - 44.47
First loss default guarantee invoked TribeTech 2,151.87 7541
Loan given Tribelech 305.00 4224
Interest charged TribeTech 9289 2975
Reimbursement of expenses incurred on behalf of the Company ~ AVMS 8.69 B6.54
Reimbursement of expenses incurred for the Company AVMS n22 -
Loan taken AVMS - 1000000
Loan repaid AVMS = 1,000.00
Interest paid AVMS - 2948
Sitting fees Vineet Chandra Rai 230 210
Sitting fees Anurag Agarwal 485 4.15
Remuneration Mikesh Kumar Sinha 19250 174.00
Hemunerabion Kiran Agarwal Todi /.09 K32
c) Balances with related parties :

Name of the party Nature of balances 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Intcllecap Other (payable) / rereivable (11.37) 149
Archan Other (payable) receivabld (8.25) 1.Z11.62
TribeTech Other receivable 2,27451 29.75
TribeTech Loans given 7I754 477 94
MNote:

The managerial remuneration disclosed above does not include the provision for gratuity mhe on the basis of actuarial valuation is

for the whole Company as a whale.
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33 Employee benefits

A Defined contribution plan
The Company makes contribution of statutory provident fund as per the Emplnyel‘?;:iuvidmt Funds and Miscellaneous
Provisions Act, 1952 and Employees State Insurance Scheme as per the Emp ' State Insurance Act, 1948 The

contribution amounts have been disclosed under Note 28, Employee banefits expense.

B Defined benefit plan
The Company provides for a gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan covering

an amount equivalent to 15 days salary for each completed year of service upto a Ii
completion of 5 continuous years of service as per Payment of Gratuity Acl, 1972. This

Description of risk exposures:
Valuations are based on certain assumptions, which are dynamic in nature and vany over ime. As such Company is
exposed to various risks as follows: I
a) Salary increases - Actual salary increases will increase the plan’s liability. Increase i
future valuations will also increase the liability.
b} Investment risk - If plan is funded then assets liabilities mismatch and actual imre?tmt:nt return on assets lower than
the discount rate assumed at the last valuation dabe can impact the liability.
¢} Discount rate - Reduction in discount rate in subsequent valuations can increase the plan’s Hability.
d) Mortality and disability - Actual deaths and disability cases proving lower or hi than assumed in the valuation
can impact the liabilities.
¢) Withdrawals - Actual withdrawals proving higher or lower than assumed withdravals and change of withdrawal
rates at subsequent valuations can impact plan’s liability.

salary increase rate assumption in

The followimg tables summarises the components of net benefit expense recognized in fhe Statement of Profit and Loss and
amounls recognized in the Balance Sheet:

31 March 20272 31 March 2021

1 The amounts recognised in the Balance Sheet ave as follows:

Present value of the obligation as at the end of the year 119.20 7191
Fair value of plan assets as al the end of the year - -
Net liability recognised in the Balance Sheet 119.20 71.91
2 Changes in the present value of defined benefit obligation

Defined benefit obligation as at beginning of the vear 719 2310
Service cost 4239 29.30
Interest cost 4.13 1.52
Actuarial losses/ (gains)

- change in financial assumptions (2.45) (10.03)
- change in demographic assumptions - 6.15
- experience variance (i.e. actual experiences assumptions) 10.76 (.22
Transfer in due to business combination . 16.42
Benefits paid {7.55) (0.77)
Defined benefit obligation as at the end of the year 119.20 71.91

Assumptions used in the actuarial valuation for gratuity and compensated absences|are as under:

Discount rate 5.75% 7.50%
Salary escalation 5.00% 5.00%
Attrition rate 10.00% 10.00%
Retirement age (years) 6l &0
Mortality 100% of LALLM 100% of IALM

2012-14 2012-14

3 Net gratuity cost for the year ended 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021 comprises of q:llowlng components:

Current service cost 4239 2930
Net interest cost on the net defined benefit liability 4.13 1.52

Components of defined benefit costs recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss 46.52 3082
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33 Employee benefits (Contd.)

4 Other comprehensive income

Eemeasurements on defined benefit obligations 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Change in financial assumphions - 6.15
Change in demographic assumptions (2.45) (10.03)
Experience variance (i.e. actual experience vs assumptions) 10.76 6.22
Components of defined benefit costs recognized in other comprehensive income 8.31 234

5 Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation

Farticulars
Within the next 12 months (next annual reporting period) B.B8 3.51
After next 12 months 110.31 658.40

6 OQuantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumptions is as below

Assumption Change in assumption 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Discount rate Increase by 100 basis points 112.63 67.56
Decrease by 100 basis points 126.42 76.73
Salary escalation rate Increase by 100 basis points 126.42 76.71
Decrease by 100 basis points 11250 67.49
Withdrawal rate Increase by 100 basis points 117,89 70.66
Decrease by 100 basis points 120.48 73.17
Nuobes:

(i) Sensitivity due to mortality is not material, hence the impact of change is not calcu]aﬁ.

(ii) The actuarial valuation of plan assels and Lhe present valuation of defined benefit obligation were computed at vear end.
The present value of the defined benefit obligation and the related current servide cost and past service cost, were
measured using the Projected Unit Credit Method.

(iii) Discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Indian Government Securitigs as at the balance sheet date for the
estimated term of the obligations.

(iv) The salary escalation rate is computed after considering the senlority, the promotior] and other relevant factors such as,
demand and supply in employment market.

34 Share-based payment
Under Employee Stock Option Scheme (ESOF) of the Company, share options of the Comypany are granted to the employees.
The share based compensation plan in existence are as below:

a) Employee Stock Option Plan 2018
The Company in it's Extra-Ordinary General Meeting held on 30 October 2018, has appr
any time in one or more tranches to its employees, selected on the basis of criteria deci
and Remuneration Committee of the Board under the Employee Stock Option Scheme -
Plan - 2018 (ESOP-2018), such number of stock options convertible into Equity Shar
tranches, not exceeding 727,068 equity shares of face value of ¥ 10 each, at such price and gn such terms and conditions as may
be fixed or determined by the Board or Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the d in accordance with the ESOP-
2018, and all applicable provisions of the law and/or guidelines issued by the relevapt authority. Under the Plan, these
options vest over a period of three years and vested options can be exercised any time dufing employment. Upon vesting, the
employee can acquire 1 (one) equity share for every stock option. The fair value at granf dale is determined using the Black
Scholes model. Consequent to the above, the Company has granted stock options to enjployees of the Company, details of
which are disclosed in the table below:

to creale, grani, issue and allot at
by the Board or the Nomination
tellegrow Employees Stock Option
of the Company, in one or more
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34 Share-based payment (cont'd)

b)

<)

Option activity during the year is summarised below:

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
No. of options Weighted average | No. of options Weighted
Options outstanding at the beginning 6,12,666 71.99 342,666 60.01
Granted during the year 4,00,000 87.18 2,95,000 87.18
Lapsed during the vear 15,000 87.18 25,000 87.18
Exercised during the year - 199 - 60.01
Options outstanding at the end 9,97,666 77.85 6,12,666 71.99
Oiptions exercisable at vear end 3,92.329 77.85 1,971,999 71.99

The options outstanding as at 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021 were with the exercise j
average of the remaining contractual life is 1.25 year (31 March 2021: 1.5 years).

In the current year, the Holding Company has allotted 1,725 options to the employees
recognised an expense amounting to 2 9.18 lakhs as employee compensation expenses.

The Employee Stock Option Plan 2018 has been granted over three years with differen
were used tn determine the fair value for options granted:

rice of ¥ 10 to # 87.18. The weighted

pf the Company. The Company has

vesting dates. The following inpuls

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Fxpected lite (in years) 2.50-1.50 2.50 - 4.50
Volatility (%) 27 9% 27.93%
Risk free rate (%) 438% W 731% 438% 0 7.3%
Exercise price (T) Z10to 87.18 210 to B7.1R
Dividend yield 0% 0%
Option fair value 1685-7998  16.85-79.98
Income lax expense
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Income lax expense recognised in Statement of profit and loss
Current tax 21.74 75.49
Deferred tax (330.29) (579.94)
Taxes of earlier years (6.97) (26.44)
(315.47) (530.89)
Income tax recognised in other comprehensive income
Taxes on re-measurement of defined benefit plans -
Reconciliation of income tax expense and the accounting profit for the year
Profit before tax 23130 26546
Enacted tax rates 25.17% 5.17%
Income tax expense calculated on corporate tax rate 58.22 66.82
Expense disallowed under the provisions of Income tax Act, 1961 (34.14) B.68
Impact on deferred tax on account of change in tax rates E 2.00
Deferred tax assets recognised
Impairment loss allowances an loans (26.81) (315.92)
On carried forward losses (451.52) (200.84)
Disallowance u/s 43B and other provisions (90.04) (49.64)
On right of use asset (1.95) -
On property, plant and equipment (7.75) (15.53)
On gain on derecognition of assigned receivables 66.35 -
Un adjustments for effective interest rate accounting 181.48 -
Other adjustments (2.34) (0.02)
Income tax in respect of earlier years {6.97) (26.44)
At the effective income tax rate of 25.17% (31 March 2021: 25.17%) (315.47) {530.59)
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36 Capital management

The capital management objectives of the Company ane:

- o ensure the ability to conbinue as a going concern

- to provide an adequate return to sharcholders

The Company monitors capital on the basis of the risk weighted assets as prescribed by the Reserve

Management assesses (he capital requirements of the Company in order to maintain an efficient
account the subordination levels of the Company's various classes of debt. The Company
adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the

nk of India (RBI).

all financing structure. This takes into
pes (he capital structure and makes
ving assets. No changes have been

made to the ohjectives, policies and processes from the previous years.
Graring Ratio As at As at

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Debt securities 19.417.00 1015624
Borrowings (other than debt securities) 42,774.97 2,999.13
Taotal debt 62,191.97 3415537
Total equity 26,502.67 24 846,83
Net debt to equity ratio 2.44 137

37 Financial instruments and Cair value disclosures
The carrying value and fair value of financial assets and liabilities arc as follows -
Fair value Fairvalue Amorti cost Tnlal Fair value
through profit  through
and loss ol |

As at 31 March 2022 2
Financial Assets
Cash and cash cquivalents - 447255 447255
Bank balances other than above - - TA44.48 73448
Loans - - 051600 70,516.00
Trvesloesils - - 102.27 b lirdes g
Dther Anancial assets - = 2.974.496 2974.9
Total financial assets - - §5,410.26 A5,410.26
Trade payables - . 4214 1214 1214
Debt securitics - 18 417.00 19.417.00 19417.00
Borrowings {other than debt sceurities) = 4271497 42,774.97 1277497
Oher financial labilities - - 2413.65 243365 2,433.65
Total financial liabilities - - 6464776 i, 0776 64,667,706
As at 31 March 2021
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents - - 18 2357.18 235718
Bank balances other than above - 18 250218 2502.18
Loans - - 45,900 51 49,905.81 49.003.81
Other finandal assots - - m 1.89%.01 1.8%.01
Total financial assels - & 56,659.18 56,659.18 56,659.18
Trade payables 9.12 9112
Dbt securitics - - 10,156.24 10,156.24
Borrowings (other than debt securities) - - 23,999.13 23,999.13
Otther financial liabilites - - 1,664.03 1,664.03
Total financial liabilities - - 35,910.52 3591052

-Management uses its best judgment in estimating the fair value of its financial instruments.
estimation technique. Therefore, for substantially all finandal instruments, the fair value estima
indicative of all the amounts that the Company could have realizad or paid in sale transactions as of
of the financial instruments subsequent to the respective reporting dates may be different from the ;

f, there are inherent limitations in any
presented above are not necessarily
pective dates. As such, the fair value
reported at each year end.
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38

A)

Financial risk management

The Company’s activities expose it to market risk, liquidity risk and credit risk, This note explains #-g

exposed to and how the entity manages the risk and the related impact in the financial statements,

March 2022

sources of risk which the entity is

Risk Exposure arising Measurement Management
Credit risk Cash and cash ~ Apeing analysis Credit risk analysis, diversification
equivalents, of customers/ asset base, credit
loans, financial limits, collateral and static pool
assets measured analysis,
at amortised cost
Liquidity risk Borrowings and  Rolling cash How forecasts Availability of sufficient cash, CC/
other liabilities OD limits, committed credit lines
and borrowing facilities
Market risk - interest cate Borrowings at  Sensitivily analysis Pass on the Interest rale increase,/
variable rates decrease to customers and
borrowings at (ived rate.
Market Risk - Security Price Investments in - Sensitivity analysis Portfolio diversification, exposure
securilies limits/ limits on equity exposure

The Board has the overall responsibility of risk management. There are two rommitiees of the Bogrd which take care of managing overall
risk in the organization. ln accordance with the RBI guidelines (o enable NBIFCs to adopt best prlmﬁcas and grealer transparency in their

operations, the Board of Directors of the Company has constituled a Risk Management Commni
to various risks, namely, market risk, credit risk, and operativnal risk, and an Asset Linbility

Credit risk

to review risk management in relation
t Committes (ALCO).

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty fails to discharge its obligation to the Company.
influenced mainly by cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, loan assets and other
muitors defaulis of customers and other counterparties and incorporates this information into i

Credit risk management

Credit risk management policy provides fur identification and assessment of credit risk, :
risk, and risk monitoring and control. The issues relating to the cstablishment of exposure 1
based on geographical regions, product specific, industry and rating are also covered, The poli
high quality, consistency and uniformity in the appraisal of proposals.

The risk parameters are same for all financial assets for all period presented. The Company

Company's exposure to credit risk ic
inl assels. The Company continuously

credil risk controls.

t and management of portfolio credil

for various categories, for example,

also deals with rating models aiming al

iders the probability of default upon

initial recognition of assel and whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk on an gn-going basis hwoughout each reporting
period. In genesal, it is presumed that crodit sk has significantly increased since initial recqgnition if the payments are overdue. A

default on a financial asset is when the counterparty fails tv make contractual payments.
considering the business environment in which entity operates and other macro-economic factor.

The Company assesses and manages credil risk based on internal credit rating system. Internal
financial instruments with different characteristics. The Company assigns the following c
based on the assumptions, inputs and factors specific to the class of financial assets.

i) Low credit risk on financial reporting date

ii) Moderate credit risk

iii) High credit risk

The company provides for expected credit loss based on the following;

definition of default is determined by

it rating is performed for each class of

ratings la each class of financial assets

Assel group Basis for calegorisation Provision for expected credit loss
Low credit risk Cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, 12 month expected credit loss
loans and other financial assets
Moderate credit risk Loans and other financial assets Life time expected credit loss or 12
maonth expected credit loss
High credit risk Loans and other financial assets Life time expected credit loss fully

provided for
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A) Credit risk (Contd.)

a)

b)
i)

Financial risk management {Contd.)

Credit risk management (Contd.)

Financial assets thal expose the entify to credit risk”

March 2022

As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Low credit risk on financial reporting date
Cash and cash equivalents

Bank balances other than above

Loans and corresponding interest receivables
Other financial assets

Moderate credit risk
Loans

High credit risk
Loans

447255 235718
7,344.48 250218
68,383.20 48,819.61
2,974.% 1,8%9.01
1.699.39 1,652.9%
2882 91 178337

* These represent gross carrying values of financial assets, without deduction for expected credit bsses

Cash and cash equivalents and hank deposits

Credil risk relaled o cash and cash equivalents and bank deposits is managed by only accepting highly rated banks and diversifying

hank depasits and accounts in different banks across U country.

Loans

The majority of the Com 's borrowors are scasoncd borrowers with satisfa credit ha r. The Comy closely monitors the
pany chory pany ¥

credit-worthiness of the borrower's through internal systems. The Company assesses increase

in credit nsk on an ongoing basis for

amounts receivable that become past due and default is considercd to have occurred when amougts receivable become ' days past due.

Other (inancial assets measured at amortized cost
Other financial assets measured at amortized cost includes loans and advances to employces,
related 1o these other financial assets is managed by meonitoring the recoverability of such a

Expected credit losses for financial assets other than loans

ity deposits and others. Credit risk
continuously.

Company provides for expected credit losses on Hnancial assets ofher than loans by assessifig individual financial instruments for

expectation of any credit losses:

= Far cash and cash equivalenis and other bank balances - Since the Company deals with only hi
credit risk in respect of cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances and bank deposits is ev

- For loans comprising security deposits paid - Credit risk is considered low becanse the Compan
assel.

-rated banks and financial institutions,
ted as very low.
F i5 in possession of the underlying

- For other financial assets - Credit risk is evaluated based on Company's knowledge of the crefit worthiness of thase parties and lnss

allowance is measured for 12 month expected credit losses upon initial recognition and provide
significant increase in credit risk. The Company does not have any expected loss based impairm
their low credit risk nature, though the reconciliation of expected credit loss for all sub categori
disclosed further:

for lifetime expected credit losses upon
recognised on such assets considering
of financial assets (other than loans) are

Estimated gross Expected Expected credit  Carrying amount
carrying probability of losses net of
amount at default impairment
defauli provision
31 March 2022
Cash and cash equivalents 447255 0% - 447255
Bank balances other than above 734448 0% - 73448
Other financial assets 297496 0% - 2,974.96
31 March 2021
Cash and cash equivalents 235718 0% - 2357.18
Bank balances other than above 250218 0% - 250218
Other financial assets 1,896.01 0% - 1,89.01
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A)
b)

ii)

Al

AZ.1 Significant increase in credit risk

AL2 Definition of default and credit-impaired assets

Financial risk management {cont'd)

Credit rsk (cont'd)

Expected credit losses for financial assets other than loans (cont'd)
Expected credit loss for loans

Credit risk

March 2022

Credit risk is the probable risk of loss resulting from a borrower's failure to repay a loan of meet contractual obligations. It arises

principally from the Company’s loans and advances to customers, and investment in debt

rities. For risk management reporting

purposes, the Company considers and consolidates all elements of credit risk exposure, which ard as follows:

Credit default risk: The risk of lass arising from a deblor being unlikely to pay its loan obligats
days past due on any material credit obligation.

in full ar the deblor is more than 90

Concenitration risk: The risk associated with any single exposure or group of exposures with the potential lo produce large enough losses
to threaten Company’s core operations. [t may arise in the form of single geographic or sector condentration.

Credil risk measurement

The Company classifies its risk based on geographies and the type of risk associated with the business of borrowers and accordingly

clagsifies the loan assets as:
a) Low eredit nisk

b) Moderate credit risk

<) High credit risk

The Company considers qualitative factors that include past recoveries, historical defanlt rales and macro-sconomic factors affecting a

particular region.

Expecied credit loss measurement

Ind AS 109 outlines a "three stage™ model for impairment based on changes in credit quality gince initial recognition as summarised

|0 TR
- A financial mstrument that is nok credit impairved on initial recognition and whose credit risk hag
recognition is classified as *Stage 1°.

not increased signibicanlly since initial

—lt'nslpirkantirrmseinuﬂitﬁskshm&mﬂalmmgmﬁonhiduﬁed,ﬂwﬁ.:uncin!instrurnerf'rsmn:-vﬁilu'ﬁ'-lage!" but is not vet

deemed to be credit impaired,

- Tf a finarwial instrument is credit impaired, it is moved to "Stage 3”.
- Financial instrument in Stage 1 have ther ECL measured al an amount egual to expected cred
possilile within the next 12 months.

Instruments in Stage 2 or Stage 3 criteria have their ECL measured on lifetime basis,

The Company considers a financial instroment to have experienced a significant increase in eredit
difficulties due to certain macro-economic factors,

The Company defines a financial instrument as in default, which is fully aligned with the definitic
of the fullowing criteria:

Quantitative criberia:

The borrower s more than 90 days past due on its contractual payments.

(rualitative criteria;
The borrower meets unlikeliness to pay criteria, which mdicates the borrower is in significant finan
where:

- Inability to continue with his business on account of permanent incapacitation.
- Palicy changes from the Government including instances such as demonetisation and introductio
and Services Tax (GST).

it loss that results from default events

sk when a set of portfolio experiences

n of credit-impaired, when it meets one

cial difficult. Thess are instances

h of new tax legislation such as Goods
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38 Fimancial risk management (cont'd)
A) Credit risk (cont'd)

ii) Expected credit loss for loans (Cont'd)

AZ2.3 Measuring ECL - explanation of inputs, assumptions and estimation techniques
Expected credit losses are the discounted product of the probability of default (PD), exposure af default (EAD) and loss given default
(LGD), defined as follows:
= PD represents the likelihood of the borrower defaulting on its obligation either over next 12 months or over the remaining lifetime of the

instrument.

= EAD is based on the amounts that the Company expects to be owed at the time of default over tHe next 12 months or remaining lifetime
of the instrument.

- LGD represents the Company’'s expectation of loss given that a default occurs, LGD is ex in percentage and remains unaffected

from the fact that whether the financial instrument is a Stape 1 asset, or Stage 2 or even Stage 3. However, it varies by type of borrower,
availability of security or other credit support.

Probability of default (PD)) computation model
PD wr default cale is an estimate of the likelihood of Uw defanlt event (as defined in the previous step) occurring in future. Accordingly, a
lower PD signifies lower credil risk. PD is estimated by using histarical data, and is done over g particular time horizon. It is done by
performing vinlage analysis over the historical data of default to assess how default rates ¢ over ime, and compute the risk of
default in the next 12 months and the entire lifetime of the loan. For loan portfolio where sufficieht historical data is not available, PD is
taken trom an external defanlt study report of a credit rating agency.

Loss given default (LGLDY) computation model
LG is the credit loss that will be incurred if the borrower defaults. For loan portfolio where sn!ﬁrm.thlstumd data is not available, the
LGD has been considered based on Foundation Internal Rating Based (IRB) frameweork given|in Circular on Implementation of the
Internal Rating Based (IRH) Approaches for Caleulation of Capital Charge for Credit Risk.

While estimating the expected credit losses, the Company reviews macro-economic developments occurring in the economy and market
it operates in. The Company records overlays as part of its ECL, to reflect among olher things an ifcreased risk of deterioration in macro-
economic factors caused by COVID-19 pandemic.

A3 Credit risk eXpOsure

BCL Staging

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
31 March 2022
Low credit risk a5,415.2]
Maoderate credit risk - 169939 -
High credit risk . - 28829
Gross carrying amount 65,415.2] 1,699.39 2,882.91
Loss allowance 47239 185.25 1,791 86
Carrying amount 64,9428 1.514.14 1,091.05
31 March 2021
Low credit risk 48.219.48
Moderate credit risk | 16529 -
High credit risk - - 1,783.37
(sross carrying amount 48,219. 1,652.96 1,783.37
Loss allowance 1,035.5 353.82 96280
Carrying amount 47,183.97 1,299.14 520.57

A4 Loss allowance
The loss allowance recognized in the period is impacted by a variety of factors, as described buluul:
- Transfers between Stage 1 and Stages 2 or 3 due to financial instruments experiencing significant| increases {or decreases) of credit risk or
becoming credit-impaired in the period, and the consequent “step up” (or “step down") between ]2-month and Lifetime ECL

- Additional allowances for new financial instruments recognised during the period, as well af releases for financial instruments de-
recognised in the period, aT

- Financial assets derecognised during the period and write-offs of allowances related to assets that were written off during the period.
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38 Financial risk management (cont'd)
A) Credit risk (cont'd)
ii) Expected credit loss for loans (Cont'd)

A4 Loss allowance (cont'd)

The following tables explain the changes in the loss allowance between the beginning and the end of the annual period due to these

factors:
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
12 months BCL  Lifetime ECL Lifetime FCL
Loans at amortised cost
Balance as at 31 March 2020 302 86 180.42 65271 1,136.00
New financial assets originated or purchased* 48021 43, 36.76 560.36
Transfer to Stage 1 69.85 (69.35) -
Transfer to Stage 2 (71.46) 71. - -
Transfer to Stage 3 (31.53) (60. 9245 -
Movement in credit risk on existing loan assets 31405 238, 711.M 1.264.04
Fmancial assets that have been derecognised (27.95) (40.38) - (68.53)
Write otts (0.52) {9, (652.61) {662.20)
Balance as at 31 March 2021 1,035.51 353.42 84033 2,229.66
MNew linancial assels originaled or purchased* 32920 2285 51.57 405.42
Transfer to Stage 1 7.19 (7.19) - -
Transfer to Stage 2 (13.93) 13.93
Transfer to Stage 3 (208.66) (45.28) 25394 2249
Movement in credit risk on existing loan assets 278 138. 12645 1.751.60
Financial assets that have been derecognised (950 (4) (262 42) (408.00) (1,883 50)
Write offs {7 89) {15 40) (426.93) (251.57)
Balance as at 31 March 2022 464.18 175599 1,587 .36 229712
*New assels originaled are those assels which have either remained in stage 1 or have become stafe 2 or 3 at the vear end.
The following table further explains changes in the gross camying amount of the Loan portfolio|to help explain their significance to the
changes in the loss allowance for the same portfolio as discussed above:
- Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 “Total
12 months ECL.  Lifetime UL Lifetime E(CTL
Loans at amortised cost
Balance as at 31 March 2020 3759287 58591 971 47 39,100.25
Mew financial assels originated or purchased* 35,005.78 371 7295 35,540 57
Transfer o Stage 2 (1228500 ],225.; - -
Transfer to Stage 3 (1369.75) (211.90) 1581.15 =
Financial assets that have been derccognised ) repaid (22.878.24) (303.73) (27.30) (23.209.27)
Write offs (56.70) {18.14) (928.25) (1.003.09)
Balance as at 31 March 2021 1715547 1,652.96 162003 50,428 46
MNew financial assets originated or purchased* 49,684 12 3498 12403 50,206.88
Transter to Stage 1 28.04 (28.04) -
Transfer lo Stage 2 (237.67) 37, - -
Transfer to Stage 3 (11.25) (151.01) 16225 -
Financial assets that have been derecognised, repaid (31,051.63) (271.31) 1915.04 (29.410.90)
Write offs (148.87) (139, (938.43) (1.226.92)
Balance as at 31 March 2022 6541521 1,699.39 288291 ©9,997.51
*MNew assets originated are those assets which have either remained in stage 1 or have hecome stage 2 or 3 at the year end.
A5 Concentration of credit risk
The Company monitors concentration of credit risk by type of industry in which the borrower opérates:
As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Gross carrying amount of loans 69,997.51 042845
Concentration by industry
Loans to NBFCs/MFls 236516 1504332
Orthers 6763235 A5,385.13
69,997.51 50,428.45
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38 Financial risk management (cont'd)
A) Credit risk (cont'd)

ii] Expected credil loss for leans (Cont'd)
A6 Wrile off policy
The Company writes off financial assets, in whole or in part, when it has exhausted all practical pecovery efforts and has concluded there
is no reasonable expectation of recovery.
The outstanding contractual amounts of such assets written off during the year ended 31 Margh 2022 was 7 1,226,92 (March 31, 2021 2
1,003.09). The Company still s=eks to recover amounts it is legally owed in full, but which haye been written off due to no reasonable

expectation of full recovery.

B} Liquidity risk
Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securitief and the availability of funding through
an adequate amount of committed credit facilities to meet obligations when due.

Management of the Company monilors forecasl of liquidity position and cash and cash equivalinis on the basis of expected cash Mows.
The Asset Liability Management Policy aims to align market risk management with overall su;tic objectives, articulale current inlereslt
rate view and determine pricing, mix and maturity profile of assets and liabilities. The ass#l liability management policy involves
preparation and analysis of liquidity gap reports and ensuring preventive and corrective mz-.usurg. It also addresses the interest rale risk
by providing for duration gap analysis and control hy providing limits to the gaps The amoupt of total borrowing sanctioned but not
drawn is Nil (31 March 221: 1,500 lakhs)

Maturities of financial liabilities
The tables below analyse the financial liabilities of the Company into relevant maturity groupigs based on their contracinal maturibies
for all non-derivative financial liabilities.

The amounts disclosed m the table are the contractual undiscounted cash Hows. Balances dug within 12 months equal their carrying
balances as the impact of discounting 13 not sigmificant

31 March 2022 Less than 1 year 1-3 year 3.5 year More than 5 Taotal
- years
Debt securibies 2,9493.51 1341333 4 - 19,400 B4
Borrowings 27 84065 14,117 96 44444 42, 403.05
Trade payables 4214 - - - 4214
Other linancial liabilities at amortised cost 2,269,360 11299 2581 25.50 2433.65
Tuotal 36,115.65 27,644.25 17025 Z5.50 b4,255.68
31 March 2021 Less than 1 year 1-3 year 3-5 year More than 5 Total
yéars
Debt secoribies 6,519.50 3.600.16 4 e 10,119.66
Borrowings 1435247 10,323.64 E - M4.676.11
Trade payables 9112 - ] - 91.12
Other financial labilities at amortised cost 1443.63 174.71 o2 15.67 1,664.03
Total 21.406.72 14,098.51 3oz 15.67 36,550.92
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k]
Q)
a)
i)

ii)

March 2022

Financial risk management {(cont'd)
Mirket Risk
Interest rate risk
Liabilities
The policy of the Company is to minimise interest rate cash flow risk exposures on long-term Joans and borrowings. The Company is
exposed to changes in market interest rates throngh loans and bank borrowings at variable interegt vates,
Interest rate risk exposure
Below is the overall exposure of the Company to interest rate risk:
As at As at

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Variable rate borrowing ZrA1de 13,789.93
Fixed rate borrowing N5 19,998 37
Total borrowings A1417.08 33,783.30
Senaitivit
Below is Lhe seusitivity of profit or loss and equity changes in interest rates.

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Interest sensitivity*
Interest rates - increase by 100 basis points 274,12 13790
Interest rates - decrease by 100 basis points {274.12) {137.90)

* Holding all other variables constant

Ansets

The Company”s fixed deposits are carried at amortised cost and are fixed rate deposits. They are
as detined in Ind AS 107, since neither the carrying ameunt nor the future cash fows will fluckua
rates.

refore not subject to interest rate risk
because of a change in market interest
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3 Leasc commitment

The Company has entered into non-cancellable/ cancellable leasing armngements in respect of

March 2022

of agreement is of twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases, For these short-
recognizes the lease payments amounted to 2 10338 lakhs (31 March 2021: ¥ 137.04 lakhs) as an

rm and low value leases, the Company

is irem'm:sfbranﬂ'ns for leases where term

ting expense in the carrent vear.

Fulure minimum lease payments with respect to non-cancellable operating leases which are notlaccounted as Right of Use assets are as

fallows (undiscounted basis):

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Within one year M05 5400
Later than ome year but not later than 5 years 852 5248
Later than 5 years - -
Set out below are the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets recognised and the movements durfng the period:

Buildings Total
As at 31 March 2020 - -
Additions 36039 360.39
Depreciation expenses 4856 48.56
As al 31 March 2021 M1AS 311.83
Additions 18294 162.94
Depreciation expunss 15033 15033
As at 31 March 2022 4444 44

Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities (included under interest-bearing lvans and burrowings) and the movements

during the period:

Buildings Total
As at 31 March 2020 - =
Additions 360.59 360.39
Accretion of interest 2263 2263
Paymenl (28.2Z7) (=8.2Z7)
As al 31 March 201 32476 2476
Additions 18294 1R2.9%4
Accretion of interest 51.08 51.08
Paymwnt (206.57) (206.57)
As at 31 March 2022 352.20 352.20
Lease payments in future periods where right-of-use assets is recognised {undiscounted basis):

As at As at

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Mot later than one year 221.58 153.31
Later than one year and not later than five years 192.90 226.79
Later than Five years - 17.87
414.43 397.97
Amouni reannimd in Statement of profit and loss acconnt and statement of cashflow on right of use assets
For the year ended

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Amount recognised in Statement of profit and loss account
Depreciation on right of use assets

Interest on lease liabilities

Expenses relating to short term leases and low value asscts

Amount recognised in Statement of Cashflow
Total cash outflow for leases

15033
51.08
103.38

206.57

4856
2263
13704

B
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40 Segment information

41 Contingent liabilities and commitment

43

March 2022

The Company is engaged in lending which s considered to be the only reportable business m;mui as per Ind AS 108, Operating Segments.

The Company operates primarily in India and there is no other geographical segment.

There are no contingent habilities and outstanding commitments as at reporting dates, The amuurl of loans sanctioned but not disbursed

amounts to ¥ 1,427 85 lakhs (31 March 2021; T 262 90 lakhs).

Classification and provisions for loan portfalio owned

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Loan outstanding

Standard assets 67, 11460 49872 44
Substandard assets 28829 178337
Doubtiul assels = =
Less: Provision

Standard assets 657.64 138933
Substandard assets 1,791.86 96250
Doubtful assets = -
Loan outstanding (net)

Standard assets bbb, 450, 4848511
Substandard assets LiF.06 BNL5T7
Doabttul assets - -
Additional disclosure pursuant to the Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company { Systemically Important Non-Deposil

taking Company and Deposil taking Company (Reserve Bank] Directions, 2016, RBI/DNB

6-17/45, Master Direction DNBR. PT).

00603, 10.11%2016-17, dated September 01, 2016, (Updated as on February 23, 2018) issued by the REL
Liabilities side: 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Amuuni t Amount Amount
a. Loans and advances availed by the non-banking financial
company inclusive of interest accrued thereon but not paid:
(a) Debentures (Secured)
Secured 12.417.00 - 10,156.24 -
Unsecured - - - -
(b} Deferred credits - - = =
{c) Term luans (secured) 4277497 - 23,999.13 -
{ul) Inter-corporate loans and horrowing - - - -
() Commercial paper - - - -
(F) Other loans from financial institutions [Secured) - - - -
62,191.97 - 34,155.37 -

Asscts side:

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

b. Break-up of lnans and advances:
{a) Secured
ib) Unsecured

<. Break up of leased ascets and stock on hire and other assets counting towards AFC activifies

(i) Lease assets including lease rentals under sundry debtors :
(a) Financial lease

(b) Operating lcase

(if) Stock on hire including hire charges under sundry debtors:
{a) Assets on hire

{b) Repossessed Assets

10,731.39 13,962 54
59,266.12 36,465 91
£9,997.51 50,428.45
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43 Additional disclosure pursuant to the Master Direction (Contd.)

Assets side: 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
. Break up of leased assets and stock on hire and other assets counting towards AFC activities

(iif) Other loans counting towards AFC activities

(a) Loans where assets have been repossessed - -

(b) Loans other than (a) above - -

d. Bre:l:-up of investments :

Current invesiments
1. Quoted

(i) Shares :

{(a) Equity - -
(b) Preference - -
(if) Debentures and Bonds - -
(iii) Units of mutual funds 10227 -
(iv) Government Securitics - -
(v) Others (please specify) - -

2. Unquoted
{i) Shares :

(a) Equity . -
L) Preference - -
(ii) Debentures and Bonds - -
{idi) Units of mutual funds - -
(iv) Government Securities - -
{v) Others (please specify) - -

Long term investments
1. Quoted

{1) Shares :

(@) Equiky - -
{h) Preference - -
(i) Debentures and Bonds B -
(i1} Unils of mutual funds - -
(iv) Government Securities - -
{v) Others (please specify) - -

2. Unquoted
(i) Shares :

(a) Equity : .
(b) Preference . =
(if) Debentures and Bonds g =
(iii) Units of mutoal funds - -
(iv) Government Securities = ~
{v) Others (Investment in PTCs) - -

e. Bormower group-wise classification of assets financed as in (b) and (c)

Category Amount (standard assets net of provisions)
For 31 March 2022 Sdcured Unsecured Total

1 Related Parties - - -
(a) Subsidiaries - - -
(b) Companies in the same group - 7.4 727
(c) Other related parties - - .

2 Other than related parties 10.131.39 59.266.12 £9,997.51

10,3139 59,994.06 70,725.45
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43 Additional disclosure pursuant to the Master Direction (Contd.)

e. Borrower group-wise classification of assets financed as in (b) and (c) (Contd.)

For 31 March 2021 Sepcured Unsecured Tatal
1 Related Parties = - -
(@) Subsidiaries - - -
(h) Companies in the same group 47294 -
(c) Other related parties - - =
2 Other than related parties 13,962 .54 36,465 91 50,425 45
13,962.54 36,888.85 50,425.45
f. Investor group-wise classification of all investments (current and long-term) in shares and securities (both quoted and
unguoted):
Category Market value / Breakup of fair  Book value (net of provisions)

value or NAV

31 March 2022 31 March 2021 31 March 2022 31 March 2021

1 Helated Parties
(a) Subsidiaries -
() Companies in the same group -
() Otheer related parties -

2 Other than related parties 10227

g Other information

Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
(i) Gross Non-Performing Assets
(a) Related partics - =
{b) Other than related partics 288291 1.783.37
(ii) Net Non-Performing Assets
{a) Related parties - -
{b) Other than related parties 1AM1.005 B2A.57
iii) Assef2 acquired in satisfaction nf debt - -
i) Capital Risk Asset Ralio
As al As al
S1L.No. Ttems 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
{a) Capital risk Asset Ratio (%) 28.58% 40.39%
{b) Capital rick Assot Ratio (%) - Tier [ Capital (%) X% 3064%
(¢} Capital risk Asset Ratio (%) - Tier I Capital (%) 0.87% 1.25%

{ii) Derivatives:

The L'nmlhrl}r has no hﬁnﬁariirm;‘mr]mlr? in derivatives in the corrent and [mﬂ.r:iml!i year The Company has no unhedged foreign

currency exposure as on 31 March 2022 (31 March 2021: Nil)

(iii) Exposures:

The Company has no exposure 1o the real estate sector and capilal market direclly or indirgetly in the current and previous years.

(iv) Maturity pattern of certain items of assets and labilities
Maturity pattern of certain Assets and Liabilities as on 31 March 2022

Assets Liabilities

Advances Investments Borrowings
1 day to 7 days Les0.m 10227 35134
7 days to 14 days 0.10 . 62276
15 days to 30/ 31 days (one month) 79 - 1,112
Owver one month to 2 months 986 - 298200
Ower 2 months upto 3 months 2,806.92 - 3,591.28
Orver 3 months to & months 7.]155.05 - 9.061.71
Owver & months to 1 year 1411141 - 1583295
Ower 1 year to 3 years 36,857.09 - 2755129
Ower 3 years to 5 years 3,49226 - 444
Owver 5 years 46312 -

Total 69,4

o7 51 102.27 61,509.89
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43 Additional disclosure pursuant to the Master Direction (Contd.)
(iv) Maturity pattern of certain items of assets and liabilities (Contd.)
Maturity pattern of certain Assets and Liabilities as on 31 March 2021

[March 2022

Liabilities
Barrowin
1 day to 7 days 105.?
7 days to 14 days 69.17
15 days to 30/ 31 days (one month) 71350
Owver one month to 2 months 319147
Owver 2 months upto 3 months 2,304 68
Over 3 months bo b months 4,19.41
(wver s months to 1 year 0,689 98
Ower 1 year to 3 years 13,923 80
Ower 3 years o 5 years -
Ower 5 years <
Total 34,020,858
(v) Disclosures relating to securitization:
The Company has not undertaken any securitization transactions during the current vear ahd the previous year,
Ivi) For Assignment transaction
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2022 31 Macch 2021
No./Amount  No./Amount
1. No. of SPVs spunsored by the NBEC for assignment transactions 11 1
2. Total amount of assigned assets as per books of the SPVs sponsored by the NBFC* 1L.278.48 1,187
3. Total amount of exposures retained by the NBFC to comply with MRR as on the date of
Balance Sheet” 1,104.80 118.69
Off-balance sheet exposurcs
* First loss -
* Others -
b) On-balance sheet exposures
* First loss -
* {Mhers 1,104.50 118.69

4. Amount of exposures to assignmenl Lransac lions others than MER
a) Dft-halance sheet expasures
i) Exposure to own assignment
* First loss
* Orthers
ii) Exposure to third party assignment
* First loss
* Others

b) On-balance shect exposures
i) Exposure to own assignment
* First loss
* Dithers
i) Exposure to third party assignment
* First loss
* Others

- =

*During the current year, the Company has entered inlo a FTC transaction which meets
assets as per Ind AS 109. Accordingly, the Company has derecognised the PTC loans from

conditions of derecognition of financial
Loan balances,

{vii) Details of financial assets sold to securitisation / reconstruction company far asset recongtruction:

The Company has not sold financial assets to securitisation, reconstruction companies fof
previous year.

(viii) Details of non-performing financial assets purchased / sold:
The Company has not purchased / sold non-performing financial assets in the current and

asset reconstruction in the current and

PTEVIOuS YeRr.
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43 Additional disclosure pursuant to the Master Direction (Contd.)
(ix) Details of financing of parent company products:
This disclosure is not applicable as the Company has not entered into any such type of trargaction.

(x) Unsecured advances
Refer note 7 for unsecured advances. The Company has not given any advances against thelrights, licenses, anthorisations, etc.

(xi) Registration obtained from other financial regulators
The Company has not obtained registration from other financial regulators.

{xii) Disclosure of penalties imposed by RBI and other regulators
There were no penalties imposed on the Company by EBI or any other regulator in the n:nlmtu previous financial year.

(xiii) Ratings assigned by credit rating agencies and migration of ratings during the year

Instrument Amount Rating Ratings as at Ratings as at

Company 31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Z000.00 CARE Ratings BBE (Triple B) with agtable  BEB-' (Iriple B Minus) with a

. outlook Positive Uutlook

Pmph“kusedleig:f lerm 500000 Aruite Ratings BBR+ (Triple I Mus) fvith a Not applicable
& Research stable oftlook

8,00000 CARE Ralings BBB (Triple B) with ajtable  BBB-' (Triple B Minus) with a

ol ook Positive Oullook
Nou=-Conwvertible
Debentures 10,000.00  Acuite Ratings BBE+ (Triple B Flus) ith a Mot applicable
& Research stable ogtlonk

{xiv) Draw down from reserves
There has been no draw down from reserves during the year ended 31 March 2022 (31 Margh 2021: Nil).

[»v) Provisions and Cuntinﬁmci:s (shown under the head expenditure in Statement of Profit bnd T.oss)
3 March 2022 31 March 2021

Impairment on loans 97.37 7B7 59
Prowision lor current lax b | 7549
Prowision for graluily 46.52 30.82

(xvi) Concentration of Deposits, Advances, Fxposures and NPAs

As al As al
3 March 2022 31 March 2021

Concenlration of Advances

Tutal advances to twenty largest bormowers 4,052.54 5,114.86
Percentage of advances to twenty largest borrowers to total advances of the Company 5.76% 10.04%
Concentration of Exposures

Total exposures to twenty largest borrowers/ customers 4,032.54 5.114.86
Percentage of exposures to twenty largest borrowers/ customers to total exposure of the

Company on borrowers, customers 5.76% 10.14%
Concentration of Exposures

Total exposures to top four NPA accounts 6362 583.58

(xvii) Sector-wise NPAs
Percentage of gross NPAs to total advances in that sector

Sector As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021
Agrculture & allied acthivities A D00 %
MSME 0% 0%
Corporate borrowers 12% IS%
Services 00 % 0.00%
Auto loans 00 0.00%

Other personal loans 0% D.00%




(xwiil) Customer complaints
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
No. of complaints pending at the beginning, of the year - -
Mo, of complaints received durnng the year i 2
Mo. of complaints redressed during the year 2z 2
No. of complaints pending at the end of the year 1 &
43 Additional disclosure pursuant to the Master Direction (Contd.)
ax) Details of investments
This disclosure is not applicable as the Company does not have any investments.
(xx) Movement of NPAs
51 No Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
i Net NPAs to Net Advances (%) 1.56% 155%
ii Movement of NPAs (Gross)
i} Opening balance L620.03 921.47
if) Additions during the y=ar 288291 1620.03
) Reductions during the year {1.620.03) (921.47)
i Closing balance 288291 1.620.03
iii Movement of Net NPAs
i)  Opening balance 770 268.76
i) Additions during the year 1091.05 779.70
iii)  Reductions during the year (779.70) {268.76)
iv) Closing balance 1,091.05 779.70
i Movement of provisions for NPAs (excduding provision on standard assets)
i) Opening balance B40.33 652.52
iy Provisions made during the year 1,791.86 54033
iii) Write-back of excess provisions (B40.33) (652.82)
iv) Elusi.u,Ebalanm 1,791.86 810.33
(i) Disclosure of restructured accounts
Type of Restructuring Othdrs
For Year ended 31 March 2021
Assct Classification Standard Sub-Standard Doubiful Loss Total
Details
Restructured Acconnts as on 1 No. of borrowers 15500 19.00 - - 174
April (opening figures)  Amount oulstanding, 1,899 67 271157 - - 411124
Provision thereon 438 .40 199.20 - - 637.60
Fresh restructuring during the No. of borrowers 79 11 - - 90
vear under COVID Circulars  Amount outstanding $52.83 11832 - - 971.15
Provision thereon 200 6534 - 91.43
Upgradations to restructured No. of borrowers - - - - .
standard category during the Amount outstanding - & g = g
FY Provision thereon - - - - -
Restructured standard
advances which cease to
attract higher provisioning  No. of borrowers . p - - .
and ;/ or additional risk
weight at the end of the Fy
and hence need not be shown  Amouni outstanding = - - - =
as restructured standard
advances al the beginning of
the next FY Provision thereon - - = & =
Down gradations of MNo. of borrowers - 2700 - - 2700
restructured accounts during  Amount outstanding - 1,020.07 - - 102007
the FY Provision thereon - 381.73 - - 581.73
Wrilte-offs / Closure of Mo of borrowers RO.00 200 - - 91.00
restructured accounts during  Amount ountstanding 143145 358.72 . - 1,793.17
the FY Provision thereon 21289 20116 - - 41405
Restructured Accounts as on  No. of borrowers 140 39 - - 179
31 March (closing balance)  Amount outstanding 215912 1.164.21 - - 332333
Provision thereon 106.06 74125 - - BT
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43 Additional disclosure required by RBI (cont'd)
(xxi) Disclosure of restructured accounts (cont'd)

Type of Restructuring Crthets
For Year ended 3] March 2021

Asset Classification

Details Standard Sub-Standard Doubtful Loss Total
Restructured Accounts as on 1 No. of borrowers - 1 - - 1
April (opening figures)  Amount outstanding - 349.82 - - 34982
Provision thereon - 413 - - 413
Fresh restructuring during the No. of borrowers = 15 - - 15
year Amount outstanding - 1,5836.87 - - 1,836.87
Provision thereon - 241.20 - - 241.20
Fresh restructuring during the No. of borrowers 155 3 e - 158
year under COVID Circulars  Amount outstanding L9967 2488 - = 192455
Prowision thereon 19647 13.28 = - 2075

Upgradations to restructured Mo, of borrow.ers - - = = -
stanidard category duri.ng the Amount oulsla ndirlg = = 2 & -
EY Prowvision thereon - £ = e -
Restructured standard Mo. of borrowers - - = = =
advances which ceaso Lo
attract higher provisioning
and / or additional risk
weight at the end of the FY
and hence need not be shown  Amount outstanding “ - . = -
as restructured standard
advances at the beginning of
e s FY Provision thereon - - - . -
Down gradations of Mo of borrowers - - 5 -
restructured aconunts during  Amount ootstanding - - - - -
the FY Provision thereon - - = = =
Write-offs of restructored  No. of borrowers - - = i B
acvounts during the FY Amount putstanding - o i o -

Provision thereon - - - _ 5
Restructured Accounts as on  Wo. of barrowers 155 19 - - 174
31 March (closing balance) Amount outstanding 1,899.67 2,111.57 - - 41114
Provision thereon 438 .40 199,20 - - 637 60

44 Disclosure of frauds as per Master Direction - Monitoring of Frauds in NBFCs (Reservd Bank) Directions, 2016. circular no.
EBLDNBS/2016-17/49 Master Direction DNBS. PPD.01/66.15.001/2016-17 dated September 29, 2006

Instances of fraud for the year ended 31 March 2022
There were no instances of fraud reported for the year ended 31 March 2022,

Instances of fraud for the year ended 31 March 2021
There were no instances of fraud reported for the year ended 31 March 2021,

45 Additional information as required under paragraph 5 of the part 11 of the Schedule I11 to the Act tg the extent either "nil" or "not
applicable” has not been furnished.

46 Expenditure in foreign currency

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

[ncome in foreign currency
Miscellaneous income (service fees) - -

Expenditure in foreign currency
Software license fees 698 5.89
Travel and convevance 054 342

47 Value of import in foreign currency on CIF basis
There are no import of capital goods during the current and previous year.
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458 Other RBI disclosures
a) Disclosures as per REl Circular DOR (NBFC).CC.FD.No,109/22.10.106/2019-20 dt. 13 March 2020 for comparison between Income
Recognition, Asset Classification and Provisioning (IRACP) norms and Ind AS 1049

For 31 March 2022
Asget Classification as per Asset classification Gross Carrying Loss Net (larrying Provisions Difference
REBI Norms as per Ind AS109 Ampunt as per Allowances amount required as per  between Ind
Ind AS (Provisions) as IRACF norms AS 109
required under provisions and
Ind AS 109 IRACT norms
Performing Assets
Standard Stage 1 65,355.54 46093 64,894 61 37280 2313
Stage 2 137219 11123 126097 3056 8066
Standard assets classified as
substandard as per Stage 1 33820 3 384.96 3582 -35.58
Restructuring guidelines Stage 2 33129 6457 266.92 33.13 312
Subtotal 6744722 639.76 64,807 46 475.31 16445
Non-Performing Assets (NPA)
Substandard Stage 3 2.389.99 1,587.36 1.302.63 268.29 1.299.07
Doubtful - up to 1 year Stage 3 = = - - -
1to 3 years Stape 3 - - - - -
More than 3 years Slage - - - - -
Subtntal for douhtful - - - - -
Loss Stage 3 - - - - -
Subtutal fur NFA - - - - -
Oher items which are in the
scope of Ind AS 109 but not Stage 1 - - . =
covered under current IRACP Stage 2 2 % . = =
NOIS
Stage 3 - - - - -
Subtotal - - - = =
Stage 1 65,743.74 46417 64,279 57 41162 52 55
Tatal Stage 2 1,703.48 17/5.59 1327 B9 63.69 111.90

Stage 3 2.389.99 158736 3.302.63 288.29 1.299.07
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48 Dther RBI disclosures {(Contd.)
b) Disclosures as per KBl Circular DOR (NEFCLCC.PD.No 10%/22.10.106/2019-20 dt. 13 March 2020 for comparison between Income
Recognition, Asset Classification and Provisioming (IRACP) norms and Ind AS 109: (Contd.)

For 31 March 2021
Asset Classification as per Asget classification Gross Carrying Loss Net Carrying Provisions Difference
REBI Norms as per Ind AS109 Amount as per Allowances Amount required as per  between Ind
Ind AS (Provisions) as TRACP norms AS109
required under provisions and
Ind AS 109 IRACP norms
Performing Assets
Standard Stage 1 43,6555 H&69.21 ML?):-;.Z‘:F 2065.04 HM7
Stage 2 L3805 .62 1 43 17.83 N2 79
Standard assets classified as
substandard as per Stage 1 1501 95 166.3 [1335.65 1502 16.1
Restructuring guidelines Stage ? 3% 92 1232 21172 33.49 89.71
48,808 42 1,389.33 47419.09 466.56 9 77
Non-Performing Assels (NPA)
Substandard Stage 3 1,620.03 840.33 77970 163.25 677.08
Doubtful - up to 1 year Stage 3 - - - -
1 to 3 years Stage 3 . - - -
More than 3 years Stage 3 - - - - -
Subtotal for doubtful - - - - -
Loss Stage 3 - - - - -
Subtotal for NPA - - - - -
Other items which are in the
scope of Ind AS 1M but nob Stage 1 = & i i Z
covered under current IRACP Slage 2 : a = . a
NOrms
Stage 3 - - - - -
Subtutal - - - - -
Stage 1 47.15545 1,085.51 46f119.94 41524 6227
Total Stage 2 Le52.49/ 355,82 129915 5132 M5
Stage 3 L.620.03 B40.33 e 16325 677 8

<) Disclosures in terms of KEL2019-20/88 DUR.NBFC (PD) CC. No1020310.007/200 920 dated 04 November 2019 have been given helow:

(i) Funding Concentration based on significant counterparty on burrowings

As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
MNumber of significant counterparties pa | 11
Amount of borrowed funds from significant counterparties 59.543.45 2518549
Percentage of total deposits Not applicable Not applicable
ﬁ.':mmhﬁl:' of total liabilitics 9.5% 6.7 %

Motes:
i) A "Significant counterparty” is defined as a single counterparty or group of connected or affiliated counlerparlies accounting in
aggregate for more than 1% of the NBFC-NDSI's, NBEC-Ds total liabilities and 10% for other nmIqwm’r taking NBFCs

ii} Total Liabilities has been computed as Total Assets less Bquity share capital less Reserve & Surplus and computed basis extant
regulatory ALM guidelines.
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48 Other RBI disclosures (Contd.)
¢) Disclosures in terms of RBY/2019-20/88 DOR.NBFC (FD) CC. Mo.10203.10.001,2019-20 dated 04 November 2019: Contd.

(ii) Top 20 large deposits (amount in ¥ lakhs and 4 of total depesits) - Not applicable

(iii) Top 10 borrowings
As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Amount of borrowed funds from top ten significant counterparties* 43,174.52 30.877 .65
% of total borrowings” £9.9% 90.8%
Note:
*Accrued interest on borrowings have not been comsidered in above calculation.
*Total borrowing has been computed as gross total debt basis extant regulatory ALM guidelines.
(iv) Funding Concentration bascd on significant instrument / product
MName of the instrument/product As al 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021
Amount* ¥ of tgtal Amount®* % of total
liahilifies liabilities
Debt securibies 159,406.84 B 9,910.01 275%
Borrowings (ather than debt sacurilies) 42,408.05 h3.2% 24,080.57 6b.6%

Moke:
(i) A “significant instrument,/product” is defined as a single instrument/ product of group of pimilar imstruments/ products which in
aggregale amount to more than 1% of the NBFC-NDSIs, NBFC-Ds total liabilities and 10% for othef non-deposit taking NBFUs.

(i} Total liabilitics has been computed as total assets less equity share capital less reserve & mrrphﬁs and computed hasis exlant regulatory
ALM puidelines,
* Figures are based on gross borrowing outstanding and does nat includes acerned interest and olhege Ind AS adjustiments.

(V] Stock ratios in prreentage

As at As at
31 Maxch 2022 31 March 2021
1. Commercial papers as a % of lolal liabilities Not Applicable  Not Applicable
2 Commercial papers as a % of total assets Not Applicable  Not Apphicable
3. Comunercial papers as a % of public fund Mot Applicable Mot Applicable
4. Non-convertible debentures (original maturity of less than one year) as a % of total liabilities 92% 1m3%
5. Non-convertible debentures (original maturity of less than one year) as a % of total assets fh% 1A%
6. Non-convertible debentures (original maturity of less than one year) as a % of public fund* 97% 192%
7. Other short-term liabilities as a % of total liabilities 555% 60.8%
8. Other short-term liabilitics as a % of total assets 399% 36.0%
9. Other short-term linbilities as a % of public fund* 58.48% 63.97%
*Public funds is as defined in Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company - Systemically Mon-Deposit taking Company

and Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) DHrection, 20116,

(vi) Institutional set-up for Liquidity Risk Management
Refer note 37.
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49

a1

Relationship with struck off companies
The Company has not entered into any transaction with companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or section
56l of Companies Act, 1956.

Undisclosed income
There are no transactions which are not recorded in the books of accounts, that has been surrenflered or disclosed as income during the
year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any pther relevant provisions of the Income
Tax Act, 1961).

Wilful defaulter
The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by anv bank or financial Institution or othdr lender,
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5

b)

¢} Details pertaining to identifiable intangible asseis as on the date of acquisition

Business combination
The Company has acquired ‘IntelleCash’ business from Arohan on 1 January 2021 as a going o
acquired consists of loan products and services same as offered by the Company.

peern on slump sale basis. The business

Quantitative details of shares acquired and purchase consideration

Purchase consideration - Cash consideration 6,305.16

Dlisclosure related to net assets acquired in business combination:

Particulars 1 January 2021

Non-financial assets

{a) Property, Plant and Equipment 3520

(b) Other Intangible assets 117

34.37

Financial assets

{€) Loans (refer note 1 below) 427327

{d)} Other financial assets 4527
4,318.54

Total assets 435291

Financial iabilities

(a) Other financial liabilities 56.85

Total liabilities 56.85

Total identifiable net assets as on date of acquisition 4,29.06

Goodwill arising on acquisition 2,009.10

Purchase Consideration transferred 6,305.16

Notes
1. Loans is net of credit impairment recorded and it is expected that the amounts recorded are ful
2. No eombingent linbililies as on e acyuisition date

Iy collectible

3 The goodwill comprises the value of expected synergies arising from the acquisitions and ngnrlf.fm:e list, which is not separately

recognised 1 does nol meet the aiteria for recognition as an intangible asset under Ind AS
expected to be deduclible (or income tax purposes,

. None of the goodwill recognised is

Identifiable intangible assels

Software 117
d) Details perfaining lo acquired receivables as on the date of acquisition

i the fair value of the receivables 469721

ii. the gross contractual amounts receivable 4,660.52
) Disclosure related to combined entity’s revenue and profits as if the aoquisition had been durje at beginning of the period

Particulars Revenue fur the he-:qlisil:l-nj Consolidated Revenue as if the

year ended 31 period revenu acquisition had been done at the
March 2021 beginning of the year

Revenue

Interest income 12,000.16 1,502 98 13.503.14

Prafit for the year ended 31 March 2021 546.77 60252 1,156.29

Note on De-merger
The Board of Directors in the meeting held on 22 July 2020 approved the scheme of de-merger
Private Limited into and with the Company with an appointed date of 1 April 2021. The sc
National Company Law Tribunal {NCLT) on 15 September 2020. The Board of Directors have 4
April 2022 for the scheme and application has been filed with the NCLT. As on date of these re
by the NCLT.

Fvents after balance sheet date

pl demerged undertaking of TribeTech
heme has been filed with Homourable

pproved a revised appointed date of 1
pulis, the scheme is yet to be approved

There are no significant events that have occurred after balance sheet date but before the date of figning of these financial statements.
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of COVID-19 pandemic, where the
1 lockdown measures in various parls
ards and there has been a lifting of

55 The Covid 19 pandemic has impacted most economies globally, including India. The second
number of new cases had increased signiticantly in India, had resulted in re-imposition of regi
of the country in April and May 2021. The second wave started fo subside from June 2021
lockdowns, thereby resulting in gradual increase in economic activity.

, s uncertain and will depend on the
RBI to mitigate the economic impact,
duly servicing its debt obligations,
quacy ratio and has adequate capital

The impact, including credit quality and provision. of the Covid-19 pandemic, on the Com
spread of Covid-19, the effectiveness of current and future steps taken by the government and
and the time it takes for economic activitics to return to pre-pandemic levels. The Company has
has not taken the benefit of moratorium on any of its borrowings, maintains a healthy capital a
and financial resources to run its business,

The management will continue to monitor any material changes in the macro-economic factors Jmpacting the Company. The provision
held by the Company are in excess of RBI prescribed norms.

This is the summary of accounting policies and other explanatory information referred to in our reporf of even date.

For Batliboi and Purohit For and on behall of the Board of Di
Chartered Accountants Ashv Finance Limited (Formerly n as Jain Sons Finlease Limited)
Firm registration number: 101048W

Janak Mchta
Partner Vineet Chandra Rai Mikesh Kumar Sinha
Membership No: 116976 Chairman Managing Director
DIN: 00606230 DIN: 08268336
Kiran Agarwal Todi Monika Variava
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai

Date: 5 May 2022 Dhate: 5 May 24122
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BOARD'S REPORT

Dear Members,

Your Board of Directors (the “Board”) takes pleasure in presenting Twenty Forth (24™) finnual Report
of the Ashv Finance Limited (Erstwhile known as Jain Sons Finlease Limited) (the "Compdny”) together
with the Audited Financial Statements for the year ended 31-Mar-2022;

FINANCIAL RESULTS:
The financial performance of the Company is summarised below:
(All amounts in % unless othi
Particulars 31-Mar-2022 31-Mar-202:. Change
{Rupees in (Rupees in (%)
Lakhs)

| Revenue from Business Operations
| Other Income 52.72 75%
' Total Revenues i 12,852.39  29%
I Less: Expenses e 6, !:DE; 28 I‘EBE
| Profit before Interest and Depreciation 634411 39%
| Less: Interest 584032 1% |
Pmﬁtheinrenéﬁréiﬂﬁﬁn el @ 1, ST 503.79 16%
Less: Depreciation ' ' ' 27249 42%
_ Profit after Depreciation and Interest : 23130 -15% |
Less: Current Income Tax o 21.74 247%
 Less: Deferred tax benefits -330.24 -76% |
Less: Taxes of earlier y years - -6.97 -279%
" Profit after Tax X e : 546.77 86%
' Other comprehensive income, Het uf—tax_ i . B3 72%
| Cumﬁm\s{ve income for the vear S : 538.46 X ?4?_?6_:
Amount transferred to Sta'tuto'r; Reserve pursuant 110.00 45% :
to Section 45-IC of Reserve Bank of India (RBI) Act, [
1934 |
Balance carried to Balance Sheet A 428.46 -48%
. Earmngs per 1:har~|.- {Basut:}—“ -1.53 _&E%_
| Eamingspershare (Diluted) 130 -46% |
The above figures are extracted from the Financial Statements prepared in accorda with Indian

Accounting Standards ("IND AS") as notified under Sections 129 and 133 of the Comp
(“the Act”) read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and other relevant provi
and the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Regulations, 2015 ("SEBI Listing Repgulations™).

REVIEW OF BUSINESS OPERATIONS AND COMPANY'S STATE OF AFFAIRS:
During the year under review, the total revenue of the Company was %12,799.67 lakhs| and Met Profit
was ®546.77 lakhs. T
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The Company has digbursed %59,714.08 Lakhs of fresh loans as compared to % 44,292.37 Lakhs. fresh

loans in the previous(financial year FY21. Accordingly, the revenue of the Company has also grown up
by 29%

During the year under review, we have opened up branches in Ahmednagar, Chandigarh, Vijayawada,
Vishakhapatnam, Vagai, Kalyan, Dehradun, Raipur, Jaipur, etc. As of today, a total of 31 branches
excluding a registered office situated in Mumbai have been opened up and have built up a distribution
team accordingly.

A detailed overview pf the state of affairs of the Company, Industry Overview, future outlook etc. is
provided in the Manjgement Discussion and Analysis section, enclosed with this report.

SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT WITH TRIBETECH PRIVATE LIMITED:

The Company had in{its meeting of the Audit and Compliance Committee and Board of Directors of
the Company held 22-l-2020 approved the Scheme of Arrangement (the “Scheme”) between
TribeTech Private LL:I;led {the “Transferor Company”] and Ashv Finance Limited (erstwhile known as
lain Sons Finlease Lmited) (the “Transferee Company®) and their respective sharehalders under
Section 230 to 232 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") and other applicable provision of the Act
and rules framed thereunder to rationalize the business operations and activities of both, the
Transferor Company|and the Transferee Company, by bringing together the synergy between the
technology platform pnd the distribution capabilities of the two companies.

During the year undgr review, due to continuing the impact of the Covid-19 pandemic on account of
wave 2, multiple restfictions were placed by the Government of India by way of announdng lockdowns
at various intervals ip the year 2021. Due to this, there has been a significant impact on the regular
working of courts, offices, and regulatory authorities’ offices again. In view of the same, the Company
has passed the resolftion for changing the appointed date from 01-Apr-2021 to 01-Apr-2022 by way
of taking requisite approvals in its meeting of the Audit and Compliance Committee and Board of
Directors of the pany held on 09-Feb-2022. Currently, a joint application has been filed by the
Company before the|Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench to take on record the
aforesaid fact regardjng the change in the ‘appninted date’; the application is pending for hearing.

CHANGE IN THE NATLRE OF BUSINESS:
There has been no chiange in the nature of business of the Company during the year under review.

RESOURCE MOEBILIZATION:

During the year under review, the Company has raised funds from Banks and Financial Institutions
through various chapnels including Term Loans, Non-Convertible Debentures (NCDs) on a private
placement basis and gecuritization of loan assets of the Company in line with the Company’'s Resource
Planning Policy.

a. Non-Convertible
During the year u
Debentures (NCDs)

review, the Company has raised funds by way of issuance of Non-Convertible
a Private Placement basis as mentioned below:
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Secured, Transferable, Redeemable,
Principal Protected Market Linked |
Debentures R o _ i

13-Aug-2021 Rated, Senior, Secured, Listed, 200 10,00,000 2,000 1440 13-5ep-2023
Redeemable, Transferable MNon-
Convertible Debentures ("NCDs” or
"Debenturss™) . b T o
| 12-Mow-2021  Rated, Unlisted, 3000 1,00,000 3,000 2,500 25-Oct-2024
Seruor, Redeemable,

Transterable, Mon-

Date of Description of NCDs Face Value Nominal Principal Maturity
Allotment (FV}{in®) WValue(in®) Cutstanding Date
(in %)

23-Jun-2021 Secured Rated Listed Redeemable 2500 1,00,000 2,500 2,500 14-Oct-2022 |
Transferable Principal Protected i

Market Linked Non-Convertible '

| Debentures W s SR
| 29-Jun-2021 Unlisted, Rated, Unsubordinated, 2000 1,00,000 2,000 2,000 .]EI-Hep-EOEdI

[

Convertible
Debentures (“NCDs"
or “Debentures") . _
| 21-Dec-2021  Rated, Unlisted, Senior, 1700  1,00,000 1,700 1,700  20-Dec-2024
Redeemable, Transferable, Non-
Convertible Debentures (“NCDs” or
“Debentures”) o5 0 15
23-Dec-2021 Secured, Rated, Unlisted, 37000 10,000 3,700 3700 23-Dec-2024
Redeemable, Transforable, Taxable,
INR denominated (“NCDs” or
“Debentures”) - B |
31-Mar-2022  Rated, Unlisted, Senior, Secured, 210 10,00,000 2,100 2,100 07-Mar-2025
Redeemable, Taxahle, Non-
| Convertible Debentures ("NCDs" or
' "Debentures”)

m o ma e e e — o —— me e TR

Funds raised through private placement of debentures were utilized for the purpose as
mentioned in the offer documents.

b. Bank & Financial Institution:
During the year under review, Banks & Financial Institutions remains an important squrce of funding
for your Company. Financial Institution continued their support to your Company during the Financial
Year. Borrowing outstanding as of 31-Mar-2022 from Bank and Financial Institutions vule re%51,310.71
Lakhs as against ¥ 33,795.18 Lakhs in the previous year. Also, during the year, [the Company’s
Borrowing from Bank & Financial Institutions were Rs. 42,900.00 Lakhs as against Rs. §3,500.00 Lakhs
in the previous years.

€. Securitization:
Borrowing outstanding as of 31-Mar-2022 by way of Securitization of loan assets of thg company were
% 10,106.37 Lakhs. During the year under review, the Company has raised funds of £15,003.25 Lakhs.
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No interest payment of principal repayment of the Term Loans and on Debentures was due and unpaid
as of 31-Mar-2022. The assets of the Company which are available by way of security are sufficient to
discharge the claims of the banks, financial institutions and debt security holders as and when they
become due.

SHARE CAPITAL:

a. Authorized Share Qapital:

During the year undeq review, there is no change in the Authorised Share Capital of the Company.

Authorized Share Capital of the Company as of 31-Mar-2022 is as below:
Particulars No. of Mominal

Shares Amount (In X)

7,34,00,000 73,40,00,000

Equity Shares

(FV of 10/- each)
Series C Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares (CCPS) 60,00,000 6,00,00,000
(FV of T10/- each)
Series D Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares (CCPS) 56,00,000 5,60,00,000

(FV of X10/- each)
Tuhl 3;5‘”';“.“3‘“ SSFWFWFM

b. lssued, Subscribed]| and Paid-up Share Capital:

During the year under review, the Company has not issued any shares either through private
placement basis, throtigh differential rights, public issue, bonus issue, sweat equity issue, or bought
hack any securities. The issued, subscribed, and paid-up share capital of the Company as of 21-Mar-

2022 are as below:
Particulars Mo. of Mominal Amount
Shares {in X}
Equity Shares 3,36,15,301 33,61,53,010
(FV of £10/- each)
Series C Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares (CCPS) 58,49.966 5,84,99,660
(FV of %10/- each)
Series D Com Convertible Preference Shares (CCPS) 26,27 724 2,62,77,240
{FV of £10/- each)
Total 4,20,92,991 42,09,29,910

EMPLOYEES STOCK OPTION PLAN:

With a view to reward the key employees for their association, dedication, and contribution to the
goals of the Company| your Company had formulated and implemented the “IntelleGrow Employee
Stock Option Plan 20 {IntelleGrow ESOP 2018), ESOP Scheme 1, and formulated “Ashv Finance =
Employee Stock Optiop 2021, ESOP Scheme 2, which shall be effective upon the receipt of NCLT order
pertaining to the Scheme of Arrangement (the "Scheme”) between TribeTech Private Limited (the
“Transferor Company) and Ashv Finance Limited (erstwhile known as lain Sons Finlease Limited) (the
“Transferee Company(). The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board of Directors of
the Company, inter plia, administers and monitors the Scheme in accordance with applicable
regulations. The details of the Employee Stock Qption Plan as required to be provided under Rule 12(3)
of the Companies [SHare Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014 are annexed to this Report as an
Annexure-A and form§ an integral part of the Report.

CHANGE IN CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS:
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EMEAAN ORDUF

During the year under review, there is no change in Memorandum of Association
Association of the Company.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES:

nd Articles of

During the year under review, the Company has transferred ¥ 110 Lakhs to the Stqtutory Reserve

rmaintained under Section 45IC of the RBI Act, 1934,

DIVIDEND:

Considering your Company's rapid growth and future strategy and plans and with a view to conserve

capital, your Directors consider it prudent to conserve the resources of the Compd

recommend any dividend to any of its shareholders for the financial year under reviey.

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:

ny and do not

a. Retirement by Rotation:
In accordance with the provisions of Section 152 of the Act read with Companies (A

pointment and

Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 and Articles of Association of the Company| Ms. Anuradha
Ramachandran (DIN: 01983108). Nominee Director of the Company, being longest in the office, retires

by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and being eligible, have offered
appointment and your Directors recommends her re-appointment. Declaration fro
under Section 164(2) of the Act had been received.

b. Appointment of Directors:

herself for re-
m the Director

During the year under review, upon recommendation of the Members of the Nomination and

Remuneration Committee, the Board of Directors of the Company at its meeting held

pn 08-Feb-2022

and 09-Feb-2022 respectively had appointed Mr. Sagar Shyamkant Thakar (DIN: 0p4281268) as an

Additional Director (Namines of Legal Owner Triodos Funds B.V., in its capacity as|
Triodos Fair Share Fund and Triodos SICAV || - Triodos Microfinance Fund) of the
approval of the Shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. The Compa
notice under section 160 of the Act proposing his candidature for the office of
Company. Your Directors recommends his appointment.

c. Composition of Board:
As on date, the Board comprises of 8 (Eight) Directors viz:

1. Mr. Vineet Chandra Rai - Chairman & Director
2. M. Rakesh Rewari - Independent Director
3. Ms. Matangi Gowrishankar - Independent Director
4. Ms. Anuradha Ramachandran - Nomineg Director

5. Ms. Suma Swaminathan - Mominee Director

6. Mr. Anurag Agrawal - Director

7. Mr. Nikesh Kumar Sinha - Managing Director

8. Mr. Sagar Thakar - Additional Director

d. Declaration from Independent Directors:

legal owner of

ny subject to
y has received
Diractor of the

The Company has received declarations from Mr. Rakesh Rewari and Ms. Matang| Gowrishankar,

Independent Directors of the Company, confirming that they met the criteria of in
stipulated in Section 149(6) of the Act read with rules framed thereunder.

e. Disqualification of Directors:

dependence as
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The Company has recdived declarations from all the Directors including Independent Directors of the
Company confirming that they are not disquzlified on account of non-compliance with any of the
provisions of the Act ahd as stipulated in Section 164 of the Act.

f. Declaration of Fit & Proper Criteria:
All the Directors of the Company have given the declaration to the effect that they are Fit & Proper,
to be appointed as Dirpctor, as per the Criteria prescribed by RBI,

g. Annual Performange Evaluation of the Board:

Pursuant to the provisions of the Act, the Board has carried out an annual evaluation of its own
performance, the Dirpctors individually (including Chairman). The feedback of the Independent
of the performance of Nen-Independent Directors and the Board as a whole,
Chalrman of the Company was made based on the guestionnaire to evaluate

naire to evaluate the performances of Independent Directors. The evaluation
the performance of Directors comprised of the following key areas:

i. Structure and Compasition of Board;
ii. Corporate Culture;
iii. Board Effectiven

Iv. Board Information

Companies (Appointrent and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is annexed as an
Annexure-B with this feport.

The statement containing particulars of employees as regquired under Rules 5(2) and 5(3) of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is provided in a
separate annexure fogming part of the Board's Report. In terms of Section 136 of the Act, the Board's
Report and the Acco are being sent to the Members excluding the aforesaid annexure and the
same is open for inspdction at the Registered Office of the Company. A copy of the statement may be
obtained by the Mem , by writing to the Company Secretary of the Company.

POLICY ON DIRECTORS" APPOINTMENT, PAYMENT OF REMUNERATION AND DISCHARGE OF THEIR
DUTIES:
The Company’s policy Felating to the appointment of Directors, payment of Managerial remuneration,
Directors” qualifications, positive attributes, independence of Directors and other related matters as
provided under Section 178(3) of the Act and the “fit and proper’ criteria to be adopted at the time of
appointment of Di and continuingly, pursuant to the Non- Banking Financial Companies (NBFC)
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— Corporate Governance (Reserve Bank) Directions 2015 issued by the RBI and adopted by the
Company is annexed as an Annexure-C with this report. The Nomination and Remuneration Policy
consisting of salient features are available on the Company's | website at
https://www.ashvfinance.com/finvestor-relations/.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE:
The Company recognizes its role as a corporate citizen and endeavors to adopt g practices, and
standards of corporate governance through transparency in business ethics, accogntability to its
customers, government and various stakeholders for building the strong foundation of the Company.

Thus, with constant aim to safeguard the interest of all stakeholders and in accordande with terms of
the RBI Master Direction — Non-Banking Financial Company — Systemically Importapt Non-Deposit
taking Company and Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016,
framed and adopted the Corporate Governance Policy duly approved by the Board of
Company. The report on the Corporate Governance of the Company as of 31-Mar
hereby annexed as an Annexure-D to this report. The said policy is available on the|website of the
Company at https://www.ashvfinance.com/finvestor-relations/.

BOARD AND COMMITTEE MEETINGS:
During the year under review, the Board of Directors of the Company met 5 times{ The details of
meetings of the Board and its Committees held during the year are specified in|the Corporate
Gaovernance Report of the Directors which forms parts of this reporl. The intervening gpp between the
two Board meetings was within the period prescribed under the Act.




ASHV FINANCE LIMITED IAshv
BOARD'S REPORT FY 2021-22 =

AaviAHEAAE GBOUS

CORPORATE SOCIAL HESPONSIBILITY:

As per Section 135 of the Act, your Board has constituted a Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)
Committee of the Board to support the Company in achieving the CSR objectives of the Company.
Details of the constitytion of the CSR Committes are provided in the Corporate Governance Report
which forms parts of this report.

CSR Committee has fermulated and recommended to the Board, a Corporate Social Responsibility
Policy in line with CSRlactivities as defined In Schedule VIl of the Act, which has been approved by the
Board. During the yeaf under review, there were no changes in the said policy recommended by CSR
Committee and apprgved by the Board. Corporate Social Responsibility Policy is available on the
Company's website atf https://www.ashvfinance.com/investor-relations/.

The average net profi{ for immediate previous financial year is below the threshold limit, as specified
in section 135 of the your Company was not required to spend any amount towards CSR during
the financial year undpr review.

Further, the Report on (SR activities as required under the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility
Palicy) Rules, 2014, ing part of this Annual Report is hereby annexed as an Annexure -E.

RISKS MANAGEMENT AND AREAS OF CONCERN:

The Company is exposed to various risks such as pandemic risk, credit risk, economic risk, interest rate
risk, liquidity risk, technology risk, operational risk etc. The Company has in place a Board-approved
Credit Risk Policy, Asset Liability Management Policy, Enwironment, Social and Governance Risk Policy,
Liguidity Risk Management Policy for addressing the various risks associated with the Company's
lending business and freasury operations.

The Risk Committee pf the Board constituted in accordance with the RBI guidelines has owverall
responsibility for overseeing the Risk management activities of the Company. The Board periodically
reviews the risks and fuggests steps to be taken to control and mitigate the same through a properly
defined framework. The detailk of the Risk Committee have been provided in the Corporate
Governance Report fagrming part of this report.

DIRECTORS RESPOMS|BILITY STATEMENT:

Your Directors, to the best of their knowledge and belief and according to the information and

explanations obtained by them and as required under Section 134(3)(c) of the Act state that:

{a) inthe preparatiop of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been followed
along with propef explanation relating to material departures; if any;

(b) the Directors haf selected such accaunting policies and applied them consistently and made

imates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of the
Company for that period;

(c) the Directors hag taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company
and for preventirlg and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

(d) the Directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concem basis;

(e} the Directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that
such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively; and

(f) the Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws apd that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.
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MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORDS:

The Company being Non-Banking Finance Company, maintanance of cost records as grescribed under

Section 144 of the Act is not applicable.

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT:

According to the provisions of Section 204 of the Act and the Companies (
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Company has appointe
Associates, Company Secretaries in Practice to undertake the Secretarial Audit of the

pointment and
M/s. Parikh &
Company for the

financial year ended 31-Mar-2022. The Secretarial Audit Report is annexed and forping part of this

report as an Annexure-F.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENT IF ANY AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL PQ
COMPANY OCCURRED BETWEEN THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR TO WHICH
STATEMENT RELATE AND THE DATE OF THE REPORT:

No material changes and commitments affecting the finandal position of the Co
between the end of the financial year to which this financial statement relates on
report other than the Covid pandemic that has impacted the whole industry.

WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY AND VIGIL MECHANISM:
The Company has a Vigil Mechanism in place to deal with instances of fraud and mi
any. The mechanism also provides for adeguate safeguards against viclimization
Employees who avail of the mechanism and also provides for direct access to the

SITION OF THE

THIS FINANCIAL

pany occurred
the date of this

anagement if
f Directors and
Chairman of the

Audit and Compliance Committee of the Board in exceptional cases. The Company alsp provides direct

access to the Chairman of the Audit and Compliance Committee on reporting issue
interests of employees and the Company.

We affirm that during the financial year 2021-22, no Employees or Directors were

e
the Audit and Compliance Committee. The Whistle Blower Policy and Vigil Me-chanistn

the Company's website at www.ashvfinance.com.

FAIR PRACTICE CODE:

concerning the

nied access to
is available on

Your Company has in place a Fair Practice Code [FPC), which includes guidelines
conditions relating to the receipt of loan applications from prospective borrower
thereof, sanction, monitoring and recovery of loans and nther finandial pmducts b
etc., FPC is available on the Company’s website at htt www.ashvfinance.c

the terms and
and processing
ng offered by it
stor-relations).

KNOW YOUR CUSTOMER (KYC) GUIDELINES & ANTI-MONEY LAUNDERING [ANML) P
In terms of the circulan(s) and direction(s) on KYC Norms and AML Measures issued by
Know Your Customer (KYC) Direction, 2016, the Prevention of Money Laundering A
made thereunder and as amended from time to time, the Board of Directors has ad
Policy with an objective to prevent NBFCs being used, intentionally or unintenti
elements for money laundering activitias by way of making reasonable efforts
identity and beneficial ownership of accounts, source of funds, the nature of custom
reasonableness of operations in the account in relation to the customer’s business,
helps the Company to manage its risk prudently.

During the year under review, the Board of Directors of the Company in its meeti
2021 revised its Know Your Customer (KYC) Guidelines & Anti-Money Laundering |
it with circulars and master direction issued by RBI. The KYC & AML Policy is

Company's website at https.//www .ashvfinance.com/investor-relations/.

LICY:

RBlincluding
2002 and rules
ted KYC & AML
ally by criminal
determine the
% husiness, the
. which in tum

held on 22-Jun-
L) Policy to align
jvailable on the
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Based on the framework of internal financial controls and compliance systems established and
maintained by the Corhpany, work performed by the internal, statutory and secretarial auditors and
the reviews performed by management and the relevant board committees, including the Audit and
Compliance Committep, the Board is of the opinion that the Company's internal financial controls
were adequate and ive during the FY 2021-22.

STATUTORY AUDITOH

The financial statem
prepared in accordan

ts of the Company for the financial year ended 31-Mar-2022 have been
with the Indian Accounting Standards (Iind AS) notified under Section 133 of
the Act. The notes to accounts referred to in Auditors Report are self-explanatory. The Statutory
Auditors’ Report on the finandal statements for the financial year 2021-22 does not contain any
gualification, reservatipn, or adverse remark.

In terms of Section 139 of the Act read with rules made thereunder, upon the recommendation of the
Members of the Audit pnd Compliance Committee of the Board, the Board of Directors in its meeting
held on 22-Jun-2021 3nd the shareholders in its meeting held on 28-Jul-2021 appointed Batliboi &
Purohit, Chartered Acdountants, having ICAI Firm Registration No. 101048W as a Statutory Auditors
of the Company to hdld office for a tenure of 5 years starting from the conclusion of 23™ Annual
General Meeting till the conclusion of the 28" Annual General Meeting of the Company.

FRAUD REPORTED BY RUDITORS:

During the year under feview, neither the Statutory Auditor nor Secretarial Auditor have reported any
instances of frauds cpmmitted in the Company by its officers or employees to the Audit and
Compliance Committee of the Board and the Board of Directors under Section 143 of the Act, details
of which need to be mentioned in this report.

DETAILS OF ADEQU
STATEMENTS:

The Company has ed a proper system of internal financial eontral which is commensurate with
the size and nature of the Business. Our Co-sourced Internal Auditor i.e., Protiviti India Member
Private Limited (Protiyiti), Chartered Accountants, monitors and evaluates internal audit function,
corrective action in thgir respective areas and therzby strengthens the contrels and reports the same
on half yearly basis to the Audit and Compliance Committee of the Board.

OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS WITH REFERENCE TO THE FINANCIAL

Also, they have also given their Report on the Internal Financial Controls stating that the Company
has, in all material re . an internal financial controls system over finandal reporting and such
internal financial contfols over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2022
based on internal contfol over finandial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components pf internal control stated in the Guidance Mote on Audit of Intemnal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS:

The Company has an internal control systern that is commensurate with the size, scale and complexity
of its operations. The|Co-Sourced Internal Auditor monitors the efficiency of the internal control
systems in the Compafy, compliance with operating systems/accounting procedures and policies of
the Company. Significapt audit observations and corrective actions thereon are presented to the Audit
and Compliance Commlitiee of the Board.
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COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS:
The Board of Directars of the Company have devised proper systems to ensure comgliance with the
provisions of all applicable Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Sderetary of India
and that such systems are adequate and operating effectively.

CORPORATE INSOLVENCY RESOLUTION PROCESS INITIATED UNDER THE INSQLVENCY AND
BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016 (IBC):
During the year under review, no applications were filed against the Company by §ny financial or
operational creditors.

DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS R COURTS OR
TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND COMPANY'S DFER]TJMS IN THE

FUTURE:
During the year under review, there were no significant or material orders passed by
court or tribunal, which impacts the going concern status of the Company.

ny regulator or

COMNSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EJARHIHGS AND
oOUTGO:
The information as required under Section 134 of the Act read with Rule 8{3) of the Companies
(Aceounts) Rules, 2014 regarding the conversation of energy, technology absorption if not applicable
as the Company is not carrying on any manufacturing activity during the year.

The particulars regarding foreign exchange earnings and outgo during the year undef review are as
under:

Particulars (Rs. in lakhs)

2020-22 2020-11

 Total Expenditure in Foreign Currency

_ Total Earnings in Foreign Currency -

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS:

particulars of current investments and non-current investments are furmished upder Notes to
Accounts of financial statements.

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS MADE WITH RELATED PARTIES:
During the year under review, all related party contracts/arrangements,/transactiogs were placed
betare the Audit and Compliance Commitiee of the Board for its approval and statemept of all related
party transactions carried out was placed before the Audit and Compliance Committeq and the Board
of Directors on periedic basis. The Company has entered into certain transactions/corftracts with the
related parties falling within the provisions of Section 188 of the Act and rules made thereunder, The
Company also has obtained Omnibus approval for the same, accordingly, the particulars of material
Contracts or Arrangements made with related parties pursuant to Section 188 of the Adt, in Form AOC-
2 as prescribed under Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 relating to Accounts of Compénies under the
Act as on 31-Mar-2021, is annexed as an Annexure-G with this report.
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The details of the relatpd party transactions are disclosed in the notes on accounts, forming part of
Financial Statements, The shareholders may kindly refer to the same.

The policy on Related Party Transactions as approved by the Board of Directors of the Company has
been uploaded on the website of the Company, The sarme is available on the company’s website at
https:/fwww. ashvfinance.com/investar-relations/.

EXTRACT OF ANNUALRETURN:

According to the provigions of Section 134(3)(a) and Section 92(3) of the Act, the Annual Return of the
Company in the grescribed Formm MGT-7 is available on the Company's website at
https:/ fwww.ashvfinahce.com/finvestor-relations/.

SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATE COMPAMIES:
During the year under review, the Company does not have any Subsidiary, Joint venture or Associate
Company.

PUBLIC DEPOSITS:
Your Company is a npn-deposit taking Company [MBFC-ND-SI). During the year under review, the
Company has not pted any deposits within the meaning of Section 73 and 76 of the Act read with

the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits} Rules, 2014, The Company has passed a resolution for the
non-acceptance of d its from the public. Hence, the requirement for furnishing the details relating
to depasits covered ynder Chapler V of the Act or the details of deposits that are not in compliance
with Chapter V of thel Act is not applicable,

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT:
The detailed report gn Management Discussion and Analysis is hereby annexed as an Annexure-H
with this repart.

REPORTING UNDER| THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORMPLACE (PREVENTIONM,
PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT 2013:

Your Company recoghizes its responsibility and continues to provide a safe working environment for
women, free from s | harassment and discrimination and to boost their confidence, morale and
performance. The pany has constituted an Internal Complaint Committee under Section 4 of the
Sexual Harassment ¢f Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 w0
redress complaints feceived regarding sexual harassment from all offices of the Company. The
Company has aiso afapted the Policy on Anti-Sexuzl Harassment in line with the provisions of the
Sexual Harassment of Women at Warkplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and the
Rules thereunder. A)l employees (permanent, contractual, temporary, trainees) are covered under
awareness in this area, the Company is continuously providing training to
pany and has placed extract of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace
(Prevention, Prohibifion and Redressal) Act, 2013 at the entrance of all offices of the Company along
with contact details pf the Members of Internal Complaints Committee.

During the financial| year 2021-22, the Company had received 1 complaint on sexual harassment,
which has been resaived immediately with corrective actions.

CREDIT RATING:
Your Company's financial discipline and prudence is reflected in the strong credit rating ascribed by
Credit Rating Agencies as under:

12
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Instrument Date of Rating Amount (Rs.
Rating In Lakhs.)
Obtained
Proposed Principal 25-Jun- India Rating IND PP-MLD BBB emr/ 4,500.00
Protected Market Linked 2021 & Research Stable
~ Debenture (PP-MLD) 3 _ y _
Bank Loan 25-lun- India Rating BEE, Stable 5,000.00
2021 & Research
Long Term 29-Oct- CARE CARE BEB; Stable 2,000.00
- Bank Facilities 2021
Bank Facility 20-Dec- Acuite Acuite BBB+/Stable 5,000.00
o 2001 el
Non-Convertible 13-Apr- Acuite Acuite BBB+/Stable 10,000.00
| Dehehnirartt hiE LGRS ARG R A N
MNon-Convertible 14-Apr- CARE CARE BBB; Stable 8,000.00
Debenture 2022
CAPITAL ADEQUACY RATIO:

Your Company Is well capitalized and has a capital adequacy ratio of 28% as of 31-Mar-P022 as against
the minimum regulatory requirement of 15.00 % for non-deposit accepting NBFCs.

LISTING OF SECURITIES:
MNon-convertible Debentures of the Company are listed on BSE Limited and your Compipany has paid
required listing fees to BSEC Limited.

REI GUIDELINES:
Your Company is 2 Non-Deposit Taking Systemically Important Non-Banking Financial Company (NBFC
N-51) and has complied with and continues ta comply with all applicable regulations|and directions
issued by RBI from time to time.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS:
Your Board of Directors place on record their sincere thanks to bankers, businpss associates,
consultants, and various Government Authorities including REI for the continued suppgrt extended to
your Company during the year under review. Your Directors also acknowledge|gratefully the
shareholders for their support and confidence in the Company, its team, and customefs.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

sD/- SD/-
Vineat Chandra Rai NikesH Kumar Sinha
Chairman Managing Director
(DM 00606290) (DIN: 08268336)

Place: Mumbai
Date: 05-May-20227
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EMPLOYEE STOCK DRTION PLAN (ESOP)

Presently IntelleGrow Employee Stock Option, 2018 {intelleGrow ESOP 2018) is in force. The
Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board of the Company administer and monitor the
Employee Stock Optipn Scheme of the Company in accordance with applicable law.

iployee Stock Option Scheme as per Rule 12{9) of the Companies {Share Capital
¢s, 2014 are as follows:

Particulars

- Outstanding af the beginning

IntelleGrow Employee Stock Option,
2018 was amended pursuant to the
resolution passed in the Momination
and Remuneration Committee
Meeting and Board of Directors
Meeting held on 22-Jun-2021 and
Shareholders of the Company in its
mesting held on 28-Jul-2021 by
increasing ESOP Pool size by 6,00,000
ESOPs with same terms and conditions
as mentioned in the scheme.

options in force 9,97,666
|a) Key Managerial Personnel 2,006,000

- Name of Employee Options

Variation in terfns of options, if any

c) |dentified employees who were granted options, Nil
during any one ywear, equal to or exceeding one percent
of the issued cdpital (excluding outstanding warrants
and conversions) of the company at the time of grant
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Disclosure on Managerial Remuneration and other details

Remuneration details under rule 5(1) of the Companies [Appcintment and Refnuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 as amended for the financial year ended 31-Mar-2§22:
Name of Director/Key Managerial Personne Ratio of remuneration % Incr 2 in

of director to median remuneration in
remuneration of the
employees financial year
e : .
' Mr. 'd"n!!t Ehun:hl RII l:hmrrmln

| Ms. Matangl Gmshanhr deﬂpendent I:Irreclnr

Ms suma smmlmman - Huminea nlrmur '

Mr. Anurag Agriwal - nrmnr

Mr. Nikesh Kumar Sinha — Mang

ging Director 27

lﬂr Managenal Fersnnnel _
Ms. Monika Thar.leshwar ["."arim] Cmnpanv Secretary 12%

D. The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in 10%
| financial year other than Managing Director

P
¥

Number of permanent employees on the rolls of the Company as on 31- 401
Mar-2022

F. Average percentile increases already made in the salaries of employees gther than the
managerial personnel in the last financial year and its comparison with the ntile increase
in the managerial remuneration and justification thereof and point out if there are any
exceptional circumstances for increase in the managerial remuneration:
Average percentile increases in the salaries of employees other than the managerjal personnel in
the last financial year is 11%.

Average percentile increase in the managerial remuneration is 20%.

Annual increments, are decided by the Nomination and Remuneration Committegwith the salary
scale approved by the members.

G. Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the EolTarw:
The Company affirms remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the Comgany.
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Disclosure an Managerial Remuneration and other details

The statement containing particulars of employees as required under section 197(12) of the Act read
with Rule 5(2) of the|Companies {Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules,
2014:

a. if employed thromghout the financial year, was in receipt of remuneration for that year which, in
the aggregate, whs not less than Rs.1,02,00,000/-

Mr. Nikesh Kumar Sirtha — Managing Director

Particulars Details

Rermuneratié i " Rs.1,92,50,000/- (inclusive of perquisites)

| 4 Qualification and Experience  Post Graduate diploma in Forestry Management from
{ Indian Institute of Forest Management, Bhopal and
Bachelor of Science in Mathematics from 5t Xavier's,
Kolkata.

Nikesh brings rich experience in banking and finance and as
the Head of Medium Enterprise Group at Axic Bank
managed assets worth INR 28,000 Crore {(US 5 4 Billion).
Nikesh was one of the early joiners at Axis Bank and
completed over 20 years of service with the bank. Some of
his roles at Axis Bank include a stint as Deputy CED of the
Singapore Operation.

% of equity shares held

b. if employed for

ipart of the financial year, was in receipt of remuneration for any part of that
year, at a rate w

ch, in the aggregate, was not less than Rs.8,50,000/- per month - Nil

c. if employed thrnIghnut the financial year or part thereof, was in receipt of remuneration in that
year which, in the¢ aggregate, or as the case may be, at a rate which, in the aggregate, is in excess
of that drawn by [the managing director or whaole-time director ar manager and holds by himself
or along with his spouse and dependent children, not less than two percent of the equity shares
of the Company. HNil
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ASHV FINANCE LIMITED

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY

Introduction:

In pursuance of the Company's policy to consider human resources as its invalu

assets, to pay

equitable remuneration to all Directors, Key Managerial Personnel (KMPjand Employeeq of the company,
to harmonize the aspirations of human resources consistent with the goals of the compgany and in terms
of the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, this policy on nomination and remuneralion of Directors,

KMP and Senior Management has been formulated by the Nomination and Remuner
("NRC") and approved by the Board of Directors of the Company.

Composition of Committee:

ation Commillee

1. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall consist of three ar maore non-esecutive directors

out of which not less than one-half shall be independent directors.

2. The Chairperson of the Company (whether executive or non-executive) may bg appuinled as a

member of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee but shall not chair the

Objective:
The Momination and Remuneration Committee and this Policy shall be in enmpliance
of the Companies Act, 2013 read along with the applicable rules thereto and Guidelines

pmmitiee.

with Section 178
of Reserve Bank

of India. The objective of this policy is to lay down a framework in relation to remunerdtion of directors,

KMP, senior management personnel and other employees.

The Key Objectives of the Committes would be:

1.1. To guide the Board in relation to appointment and removal of Directors, KMP and Senior

Management.
1.2. Formulate the criteria for determining gualiflications, positive attributes and |
director and recommend to the Board a policy relating to the remuneration

and other employess.

1.3. Formulation of criteria for evaluation of Independent Director and the Board.

pendence of a
F Directors, KMP

1.4. To evaluate the performance of the members of the Board and provide necessary report to the

Board for further evaluation of the Board.

1.5. To recommend to the Board on Remuneration payable to the Directors, KMP and Senior

Management

1.6. To provide to KMP and Senior Management reward linked directly to their effgrt, performance,
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dedication and achievement relating to the Company’s operations.

1.7. To retain, mofivate and pramote talent and to ensure long term sustainability of talented
managerial paqsons and create competitive advantage.

1.8. Todevelop a siccession plan for the Board and to regularly review the plan.
1.8. To assist the Bdard in fulfilling responsibilities.

1.10 Toimplement 3nd monitor policies and processes regarding principles of corporate governance.

Applicability:

a) Directors (Executiye and Mon-Executive)
b} KMP
c) Senior Managemént Personnel

Definitions:
“Act” means the Comipanies Act, 2013 and Rules framed there under, as amended from time to time

“Board” means Board|of Directors of the Company.

“Directors” mean Dirdctors of the Company.

“Key Managerial nel” means
i Managing Direchor, or Chief Executive Officer or Manager and in their absence, a Whole-time
Director;

iil. Chief Financial cer;
iii. Company Secr ; and
iv. such other officer as may be prescribed.

“Senior Management” means Senicr Management means the personnel of the company who are
members of its core| management team exduding Board of Directors comprising all members of
management one | below the executive directors, including the functional heads.

Unless the context otherwise requires, words and expressions used in this policy and not defined herein
but defined in the Companies Act, 2013 as may be amended from time to time shall have the meaning
respectively assigned 1o them therein.

1. Appointment a and Qualifications:

a) The Committee shall identify and ascertain the integrity, qualification, expertise and experience of
the person for apgointment as Director, KMP or at Senior Management level and recommend to the
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b)

e}

d)

2. Term [ Tenure:

a)

Board his / her appointmenL

The Committee shall undertake a process of due diligence to determine the suitabili
for appointment/continuing to hold appointment as a director on the Boa
qualification, expertise, track record, integrity and other ‘fit and proper’ criteria.

A person should possess adequate qualification, expertise and experience for the p

of the person
, based upon

bsition he [ she

is considered for appointment. The Committee has discretion to decide whethdr gualification,

expertise and experience possessed by a person is sulficient / satisfactory for the cond

The Company shall not appoint or continue the employment of any person as Wh
who has attained the age of seventy years. Provided that the t2rm of the person hol

erned position.

-lime Direclor
g this position

may be extended beyond the age of seventy years with the approval of shareholdgrs by passing a

special resolution based on the explanatory statement annexed to the notice fi
indicating the justification for extension of appointment beyond seventy years.

such motion

The Campany shall appoint Independent/Non-Executive Directors nominated to the Board should be

between 35 to 70 years of age.

The Company shall obtain necessary information and declaration from the p
directors as per the format provided under the Companies Act, 2013 and Gui
Reserve Bank of India from time to time.

The Company shall obtained annually as on 31* March a simple declaration from tl:

information already provided has not undergone change and where there is any c
details are furnished by them forthwith.

The Company shall ensure in public interest that the nominated/elected directors ex

posed/existing
lines issued by

Directors the
nge, requisite

ecute the deeds

of covenants in the Format provided under the Guidelines issued by Reserve Bank offindia from time

to time.

Managing Director/Wholz-time Director:

The Company shall appoint or re-appoint any person as its Executive Chairman,
or Executive Director for a term not exceeding five years al alime. No re-appeointme
earlier than one year befare the expiry of term.

M.lnaﬁng Director

t shall be made

Independent Director:

An Independent Director shall hold office for a term up to five consecutive years on
Company and will be eligible for re-appointment on passing of a special resolution
and disclosure of such appointment in the Board's report.

e Board of the
b

y the Company

No Independent Director shall hold affice for mare than two consecutive terms of ugto maximum of
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tion and Remuneration Palicy

5 years each, b
years of ceasing
not, during the s
other capacity, e

Whole-time Dire
3. Evaluation:

The Committee sh
Management Persol

4. Remowal:

Due to reasons for a
regulations thare un
ramoval of a Directo
of the said Act, rules
5. Retirement:

The Director, KMP ar

such Independent Director shall be eligible for appointment after expiry of three
become an Independent Director. Provided that an Independent Director shall
id period of three years, be appointed in or be associated with the Company in any
ther directly or indirectly.

intment of Independent Director it should be ensured that number of Boards on
dent Director serves is restricted to seven listed companies as an Independent
listed companies as an Independent Director in case such person is serving as a
ttor of a listed company or such other number as may be prescribed under the Act.

Il carry out evaluation of performance of every Director, KMP and Senior
| at regular interval (yearly).

y disgualification mentioned in the Act or under any other applicable Act, rules and
er, the Committee may recommend, 1o the Board with reasons recorded In writing,
r, KMP or Senior Managemant Personnel subject to the provisions and compliance
and regulations.

d Senior Management Personnel shall retire as per the applicable provisions of the

Act and the prevaili
KMP, Senior Manag
attalning the retire

g policy of the Company. The Board will have the discretion Lo relain the Director,
pment Personnel in the same position/ remuneration or otherwise even after
ent age, for the benefit of the Company.

1. Remuneration
Management Pe

The Remuneration/
be poverned as per
enactment for the ti

ompensation/ Commission etc. to be paid to Director / Managing Director etc. shall
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under or any other
e being in force.

2. Remuneration to Non- Executive / Independent Director:;

The Non-Executive |
the provisions of
provided under Com
being in force.

cop

ependent Director may receive remuneration / compensation / commission as per
panies Act, 2013. The amount of sitting fees shall be subject to ceiling/ limits as
panies Act, 2013 and rules made there under or any ather enactment for the time
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Duties in Relation to Nomination Matters:
The duties of the Committee in relation to nomination matters include:

Management and reviewing its effectiveness;

Ensuring that on appointment to the Board, Non-Executive Directors receive a
appointment in accordance with the Guidelines provided under the Act;

Identifying and recommending Directors who are to be put forward for retirement

Determining the appropriate size, diversity and composition of the Board;

plan;

Company’s performance from business and compliance perspective;

Delegaling any of ils powers Lo one or more of ils members or the Secretary of the

Recommend any necessary changes to the Board;

signed declaration, the Committee shall decide on the acceptance or otherwise
where considered necessary,

Considering any other matters, as may be requested by the Board.

Duties In Relation To Remuneration Matters:
The duties of the Committee in relation to remuneration matters include:

Considering and determining the Remuneration Policy, based on the performance
in mind that the remunaration is reasonable and sufficient to attract retain and m

Scrutinize the declarations received from directors and based on the information

Ensuring that there is an appropriate induction in place for new Directors and mgmbers of Senior

formal letter of

by rotation;

Developing a succession plan for the Board and Senior Management and regulafly reviewing the

Fvaluating the parffarmance of the Doard members and Senior Management in the eontext of the

Making recommendations to the Board concerning any matters relatng to the contjnuation in office
of any Director at any time including the suspension or termination of service of an Ej
as an employee of the Company subject to the provision of the law and their servic]

pecutive Director
E contract.

Committes;

provided in the
bf the Directors,

and also bearing
ivate members

of the Board and such other factors as the Committee shall deem appropriate alll:_tlemems of the

remuneration of the members of the Board.

appropriate to the working of the Company.

Approving the remuneration of the Senior Management including KMP of the Comgany maintaining
a balance between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long term perford

hance objectives
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s [Delegating any offits powers to one or more of its members or the Secretary of the Committee.

+ Considering any gther matters as may be requested by the Board.

supplement pnd better implementation to this Palicy, if it thinks necessary.

iii.  This Policy may be amended or substituted by the NRC or by the Board as and when required
and also by the Compliance Officer where there is any statulory changes necessilating the
change in the{policy.

E T T T T
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COMPANY'S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE:

Ashv is committed to the adoption of best practices of Corporate Governance and ity adherence in
true spirit, at all times. The Company’s governance practices are a product of self-dasire, reflecting
the culture of trusteeship that is deeply ingrained in our value system and reflected ih our strategic
thought process. The Corporate Govermance framewaork of the Company is based on ah effective and
independent Board, separation of the Board's supervisory role from the Executive Manggement team
and constitution of the Board Committees, as required under applicable laws. The
either as a full Board or through various Committees constituted to oversee specific f

The Executive Management provides the Board detailed reports on the Company's performance on
monthly basis. During the year under review, your Company has adopted a Board apprdved Corporate
Governance Policy. The details of compliance with Corporate Governance requiremants during the
financial year ended 31-Mar-2022 (“financial year under review™) are as follows:

1. BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

The Board of your Company comprises of combination of Executive, Non-Executivel, Nominee and
Independent Directors. The Board is at the core of our corporate povernance practice and
oversees and ensures that the Management serves and protects the long term gnd short-term
interest of all our stakeholders. The Board has formulated varlous committeas for handling
specific responsibilities under the applicable laws i.e., Audit and Compliange Committee,
Momination and Remuneration Committee, Risk Committee, Asset Liability| Management
Committee, Corporate Governance & Executive Commitlee, Corporate Social| Responsibility
Committee, [T Strategy Committee, Product, Process, Credit Policy and Grievdnce Redressal
Committee.

1.a. Compaosition: As of 31-Mar-2022, the Board of Directors of the Company (“the Boad”) comprises
of 8 (Eight) Directors, which includes 2 (Two) Independent Directars, 5 (Five) Non-Executive
Directors and 1 (One) Managing Director. The Chairman of the Board is 8 Nan-Exedutive Director.
DOut of B (Fight) Directors, 3 (Three) Directors on the Board are Women Directors.

In terms of the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 {Act), the Directors suljmit necessary
disclosures regarding the positions held by them on the Board of other public pnd/or private
Companies, from time to time. All Independent Directors on the Board are Non-Executive
Directors. The maximum tenure of the Independent Directors is in compliance with the Act. All
the Independent Directors have confirmed that they meet the criteria of independence as
mentioned under Section 145(6) of the Act. As per the declarations received, none of the
Directors serve as an Independent Director in more than seven listed Companies. The brief profile
of the present Directors on the Board is available on the Companyls website at
https:/ /www.ashvfinance.com/sbout-us/.

The details of the Directors of the Company with regard to outside Directorship{held as of 31-
Mar-2022 are as follow:

Name of the Directar Category MNiy. of Qutside

Directorship(s)
held

g T
; i B '
o e
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Ms. Anuradha Ramachandran 01983108

Non-Executive Nominee 5
Mr. Anurag Agrawa| 02385780 Non-Executive 6
Mr. Sagar Thakar 09481269 Additional Director 0

1.b. Non-Executive Directors Compensation and Disclosures: Sitting fees paid to Independent

1.c.

Directors and Mon-Executive Directors for attending Meetings of the Board / Committees has
been approved by the Board. Mo sitting fees were paid to Non-Executive Nominee Directors of
the Company dyring the financial year under review. No commission was recommended/ paid to
any of Directors|during the financial year under review.

Board's Functioning and Procedure: The Company's Board plays a pivotal role in ensuring good
governance and functioning of the Company. The Board's role, functions, responsibilities and
accountabilities|are well defined. All relevant information is regularly placed before the Board.
The Members df the Board have complete freedom to express their opinion and decisions are
taken after detailed discussions.

The Board mests at least once in every quarter to review the quarterly results and other items
on the agenda| and additional Meetings are held to address specific needs and business
requirements of the Company.

5 (Five) Board Meetings were held during the financial year under review. The gap between any
two Meetings was not more than 120 (Cne Hundred Twenty) days. The details of the Board
Meetings held Huring the financial year under review, dates on which held and number of
Directors present are as follows.

Date :::f Board Meeting Board Strength Mo. of Directors Present

26-Aug-2021 7 6

17-lan-2p22 6

The Directors or) the Board are professionals, having expertise in their respective functional areas
and bring a widp range of skills and experience ta the Board. The Board has an unfettered and
complete accesy to any information within the Company. Members of the Board have complete
freedom to expdess their views on agenda iterms and can discuss any matter at the Meeting with
the permission pf the Chairperson. The Board periodically reviews all the relevant information,
which is requirgd to be placed before it and in particular reviews and approves corporate
strategies, busipess plans, annual budgets, projects and capital expenditure, etc. The Board
provides directibn and exercises appropriate control to ensure that the Company is managed in
a manner that fylfils stakeholder's aspirations and societal expectations,

under review at the previous Annual General Meeting (“AGM") of the Members of the

The details of AEndm of each Director at the Board Meetings held during the financial year
a
Company held gn 28-Jul-2021, through video conferencing are as follows:
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Name of the Director Mo, of Board Attended Attended MNo. of
Meetings held Board Last AGM Equity

Meetings Shares held

tenure

Mr. Rakesh Rewari g 4 No Nil

Ms. Anuradha Ramachandran 5 4 No il

*Mr. Sagar Thakkar 1 1 NA Nil

Mr. Nikesh Kumar Sinha 5 5 ¥es 3100

*Appointed w.e.f. 09-Feb-2022

1.d. Code of Conduct: The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for the Board|Members and
Senior Management Personnel of the Company (“the Code”). The Code is applifable to all the
Board Members and Senior Management of the Company. All the Board MembBars and Senior
Manzgement Personnel have confirmed compliance with the Code during the financial year
under review.

1.e. Performance Evaluation of the Board: A formal evaluation mechanism has begn adopted for
evaluating the performance of the Board, the Committees thereof, individual Digectors and the
Chairman of the Board. The evaluation is based on eriteria which include, among others, providing
strategic perspective, Chairmanship of Board and Committees, attendance, timp devoted and
preparedness for the Meetings, quality, quantity and timeliness of the flow
between the Board Members and the Management, contribution at the Meefi
decision-making ahility, role and effectiveness of the Committees. The Dire
guestionnaires providing feedback on functioning of the Board, Committees and
Board.

1.f. Separate Meeting of Independent Directors:
Az stipulated by the Code of Independent Directors under the Companies Act, 3013 and Rules
made thersunder as amended from time to time, one Meeting of Independent Dirgctors was held
during the year on 30-Mar-2022. The Meeting was conducted to enable Indepenglent Directors,
discuss matters relating to Company’s affairs and put forth their views without the presence of
MNon-Independent Directors and members of the Management.

In this Mecting, the Independent Directors reviewed the performance of -Independent
Directors and the Board as a whole. They have also reviewed the performance of the Chairman
of the Company and assessed the quality, quantity and timeliness of the flow pf information
between the Management and the Board and its Committees which is necessary fpr the Board to
effectively and reasonably perform and discharge their duties T
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2. COMMITTEE OFTHE BOARD:
During the yearjunder review, no Committess were constituted /re-constituted.

The compasition and number of meetings held during the year under review of the above said
committees are ps under:

of the Compaosition of Committeas
during the FY 2022

2. MNomination Mr. Rakesh Rewari 4 22-Jun-2021
and Ms. Suma Swaminathan 26-Aug-2021

. Anurag Agrawal 28-0Oct-2021

. Matangi Gowrishankar 08-Feb-2022

Risk . Rakesh Rewari 13-May-2021

Committee Ms. Anuradha Ramachandran 26-Aug-2021
Mr. Anurag Agrawal 28-0ct-2021

. Nikesh Kumar Sinha 08-Feb-2022

IT Strategy Mr. Rakesh Rewari 26-Bug-2021

Committee Ms. Anuradha Ramachandran 08-Feb-2022
Mr. Mikesh Kumar Sinha

8 Corporate Mr. Vineet Chandra Rai 11 28-May-2021
Governance Mr. Anurag Agrawal 30-Jul-2021
and Executivg Mr. Nikesh Kumar Sinha 30-Sep-2021
Committee 26-0ct-2021

11-Nov-2021

08-Dec-2021
16-Dec-2021
24-lan-2022
10-Feb-2022
17-Mar-2022
28-Mar-2022
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Details on the role and compaosition of these Committees, including the number of meetings held

during the financial year and the related attendance, are provided below:

zl

Audit and Compliance Committee and its Composition:

Audit and Compliance Committee’s composition, quorum, powers, role a
accordance with the provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 a
of India Master Direction No. RBI/DNBR/2016-17/45 DNBR. PD. 008/03/
dated September 01, 2016 on Non-Banking Financial Company - Systemicall
Depaosit taking Company and Depasit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Dir

As of 31-Mar-2022, Audit and Compliance Committee of the Board compr
meambers:

a. Mr. Rakesh Rewari, Independent Direclor;
b. Ms. Matangi Gowrishankar, Independent Diractor;
£. Ms. Suma Swaminathan, Nominze Director

Mr. Rakesh Rewari is the Chairman of Audit and Compliance Committee of
Company. Ms. Monika Thadeshwar (Variava), Company Secretary of the C
Secretary of the Audit and Compliance Committes.

d scope are in

d Reserve Bank

10.119/2016-17

Important Non-
s, 2016.

es of following

he Board of the
mpany, acts as

The Audit and Compliance Committee of the Board reviews the reports,

ich are to be

submitted with the Board of Directors with respect to auditing and accoufting matters. It
alse supervises the Company’s internal control and financial reporting prodess. Further, all
the recommendations made by the Audit and Compliance Committee of the §oard have been

taken up by the Board.

Momination and Remuneration Committee:

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) is formed in {;nmﬂianm with the

provisions of the Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Reserve Ban
Direction No. RBI/DNBR/2016-17/45 DMNBR. PD. 008/02.10.119/2016-17 d;

of India Master
ted September

01, 2016 on Non-Banking Financial Company - Systemically Important Nog-Depaosit taking

Company and Deposit taking Company |Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016.

As of 31-Mar-2022, Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Boapd comprises of

following members:

Mr. Rakesh Rewari, Independent Director;

Ms. Suma Swaminathan, Nominge Director:

Mr. Anurag Agrawal, Director;

Ms. Matangi Gowrishankar, Independent Director

apew

Ms. Matangi Gowrishankar is the Chairman of Nomination and Remuneratign Committee of

the Board of the Company. Ms. Monika Thadeshwar [Variava), Company

Company, acts as Secretary of the Nomination and Remuneration Committep,

The terms of reference of this Committee are in line with the regulato
mandated in the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder as am
time. The scope of the Committee includes an annual review of the

ecretary of the

requirements
ed from time to
MNomination &
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Remuneration Palicy, recommend to the Board appointment & removal of the Directors,
approve performance evaluation framework, formulate the criteria for determining
gualifications| positive attributes and independence of a director, to review remuneration
paid to the gmployees & directors is as per the Nomination & Remuneration Policy and
consider giving stock options to the employees in the form of equity shares of the Company.

Management Committee:

€ is constituted in compliance with the provisions of RBI Master Direction No.
RBI/DNBR/2016-17/45 DNBR. PD, 008/03.10.119/2016-17 dated September 01, 2016 on
NBFC-51 Non-Deposit taking Company and Deposit taking Company Directions, 2016. The
Company has|a Board approved Asset Liability Management Policy in place and required
disclosures the effect are made from time to time. The Asset Liability Management
Committee shall monitor the asset liability gap and strategies action to mitigate the risks
associated with the business of the Company.

As of 31-Mart2022, Asset Liability Management Committee of the Board comprises of

a
b.

¢. Mr. Rakesh Rewari, Independent Director
d aminathan, Nominee Director

Members select among themselves as a Chairman of the Asset Liability Management
Committee of the Board of the Company. Ms. Monika Thadeshwar (Variava), Company
Secretary of the Company, acte as Secretary of the Asset Liability Management Committes.

The terms of reference of this Committee are in line with the regulatory requirements. The
key responsibjlities of the Committee include review & management of liquidity gaps and
structural liquydity of the Company, review & management of interast rate sensitivity of the
Company and| develop 2 view on future direction on interest rate movements & decide on
funding mixes

Risks Mana nt and Areas of Concemn:

i is constituted in compliance with the provisions of RBl Master Direclion No.
RBI/DNBR/S2 17/45 DNER. PD. D02/03.10.119/2016-17 dated September 01, 2016 on
NEBFC-5| Non{Deposit taking Company and Deposit taking Company Directions, 2016 which
maonitors the [risk management strategy of the Company. In order to ensure best governance
practices, theg Company has established risk management process for each line of its business
and operatigns, These processes have been implemented through the specific policies
adopted by the Board of Directors of the Company from time to time. Nevertheless, entire
processes arg subjected to robust independent internal audit review to arrest any potential
risks and takd corrective actions.

As of 31-Mar{2022, the Risk Committee of the Board comprises of following members:
a. Mr. Rakesh Rewari, Independent Director;

b. Ms. Anurddha Ramachandran, Nominee Director;

c.  Mr. Anurag Agrawal, Director;

d. Mr. Nikesh Kumar Sinha, Managing Director
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Members select among themselves as a Chairman of the Risk Committee of
Company. Ms. Monlka Thadeshwar (Varilava), Company Secretary of the C
Secretary of the Risk Committee,

he Board of the
mpany, acts as

Company are identified, controlled and mitigated and shall also lay

n procedures

The Risk Committee shall ensure that the risks associated with the business/ Enctiuning of the

regarding managing and mitigating the risks through integrated risk mana
strategies and mechanisms.

. Corporate Social Responsibility Committee:
As per Section 135 of the Act, vour Board has constituted a Corporate Soci

ment systems,

il Responsibility

{CSR) Committee of the Board to support the Company in achieving the CSR ¢bjectives of the

Company.

As of 31-Mar-2022, the CSR Committee of the BEcard is made up of the followyng members:

Ms. Matangi Gowrishankar, Independent Director;
Ms. Anuradha Ramachandran, Nominee Director:
Ms. Suma Swaminathan, Nomines Director;

Mr, Nikesh Kumar Sinha, Managing Director

apow

Members select among themselves as a Chairman of the Corporate SuciJ

Committee of the Board of the Company. Ms. Monika Thadeshwar (Va
Secretary of the Company, acts as Secretary of the Corporate Social Responsils

| Responsibility
ava), Company
lity Committee.

The terms of reference of this Committee are in line with the regulatory regquirements. The

terms of reference of the Committee includes to formulate and recommend

the Board CSR

Paolicy which shall indicate the activities to be undertaken by the Company as specified in

Schedule VIl of the Companies Act, 2013, to recommend the amount of &
incurred on the CSR activities and to institute a transparent maonitoring
implementation of the CSR activities.

. Information Technology Strategy Committee:

Information Technology (IT) Strategy Committee was formed as per the
Master Direction No. RBI/DNBS/2016-17/53 DNBS.PPD.No.04,/66.15.001/20
08, 2017 pertaining to “Information Technology Framework for the NBFC Sed

nditure to be
mechanism for

ovisions of RBI
=17 dated lune
bor”.

As of 31-Mar-2022, the IT Strategy Committee of the Board is made up ¢f the following

members:

a. Mr. Rakesh Rewari, Independent Director

b. Ms. Anuradha Ramachandran, Nominee Director, Chief Technology Officer

€. Mr. Nikesh Kumar Sinha, Managing Director, Chief Information Officer

Mr. Rakesh Rewari is the Chairman of IT Strategy Committee of the Board ¢f the Company.

Ms. Maonika Thadeshwar (Variava), Company Secretary of the Company, act)
the IT Strategy Committee.

The terms of reference of this Committee are in line with the regulatory
key responsibilities of the IT Strategy Committee include approving IT s

as Secretary of

uirements. The
ategy & policy
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documents & pnsuring that the management has put an effective strategic planning process
in place, ascertaining that management has implemented processes & practices that ensure
that the IT delivers value to the business, ensuring IT investments represent 2 balance of risks
E. benefits & their budgets are acceptable, monitoring the method that management uses to
determine thg IT resources needed to achieve strategic goals & provide high-level direction
for sourcing & pse of IT resources and ensuring proper balance of IT investments for sustaining
Company's grgwth & becoming aware about exposure towards IT risks and controls.

During the year under review, Aneja Management Consultant Private Limited, Chartered
Accountants hpve done Information System Audit in accordance with RBI Master Direction on
Information Téchnology Framework for NBFCS and the same was placed before the Audit and
Compliance Cgmmittee of the Board and the Board of Directors for their review and noting.

7. Product, Process, Credit Policy & Grisvance Redressal Committea:

This Committge was constituted with an objective of review from time to time the suite of
products run by the company covering its fulfillment process within the regulatory compliance
norms, customer service quality, viability and profitability within the objectives of the
Company and|approve new products and rolling out business in new geagraphies in which
products can pe rolled out, review and recommend credit policy framework in line with
stipulated guidelines of the Board, customer service initiatives, overseeing the functioning of
the customer ervice council and evolving innovative measures for enhancing the quality of
customer servjce and improvement in the everall satisfaction level of customers ete,

As of 31-Mar-2022, the Committee of the Board is made up of the following members:

ivir. Rakesh Rewari, Independent Director;

ar oo
3
z
:
2
z
i
5
2
2
2
|

ernance and Executive Committee:
e Governance and Executive Committee serves as an administrative commiltee

8. Corporate G
The Corpora
of the Board

ing members:

a. Mr Vineef Chandra Rai, Chairrman & Director;
. Mr. Nikesh Kumar Sinha, Managing Director;
€. Mr. Anurag Agrawal, Director

Mr. Vineet Chandra Rai is Chairman of the Committee of the Board of the Company. Ms.
Monika Thadeshwar (Variava), Company Secretary of the Company, acts as Secretary of the
said Committae.
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In addition to the aforesaid committees, the Company has constituted the Credit Committee, Internal
Recommendation Committee, Asset Liability Management Committee of the Managgment, Banking
Operations Committee, Complaints Committee, Whistle Blower Committee within the powers of the
Board of Directors and/or CXOs in accordance with the Shareholders Agreem for smooth
operations of the functioning of the Company.

3. VIGIL MECHANISM/ WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY:

The Company has a Vigil Mechanism to deal with instance of fraud and mismandgement, if any,
The mechanism also provides for adeguate safeguards against victimization of Directors and
Employees who avail of the mechanism and also provides for direct access to the Chairman of
the Audit and Compliance Committee of the Board in the exceptional cases. ThI Company also
provides direct access to the Chairman of the Audit and Compliance Committ¢e on reporting
issues concerning the interests of employees and the Company.

We affirm that during the financial year 2021-22, no Employee or Directors was denied access to

the Audit and Compliance Committee. The Whistle Blower Policy and Vigll Mechzagism is available

on the Company's website at https://www.ashvfinance.com/investor-relations/.
4. GENERAL MEETINGS:

Dwuring the year under review, 4 (Four) General Mezetings were held to transact the following business
as mentioned in the below table:

Annual General Meeting:

The Company has conducted the said meeting in compliance with applicable proviions, rules and
regulations of the Companies Act, 2013 and in accordance with circular No. 20/2030 and 02/2021
issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs on 05-May-2020 and 13-Jan-2021 respectijealy.
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Extra-Ordinary Genergl Meeting:

21-lan-2022 5:00pm Held through = Approval for Addendum No.5 to the Sourcing
Video- and Servidng Agreement dated 02-May-2018
Conferendng antered with Tribetech Private Limited
(VC)/other
Audio-Visual
Means (OAVM)

S.b.

5.c.

The Company has copducted the said meetings in compliance with applicable provisions, rules and
regulations of the

panies Act, 2013 and in accordance to circulars issued by Ministry of Corporate

h basis and in the ordinary course of business. All related party transactions
have been approyed by the Audit and Compliance Committee of the Company.

The policy on ed Party Transactions as approved by the Board of Directors of the Company
has been uploa on the website of the Company. The same Is available on the company’s
website at https:f fwww ashvfinance com/investar-relations/,

Performance luation criteria for Independent Directors: The Directors other than
Independent Dirgctors of the Company evaluate the performance of Independent Directors on
following criterialas to how an Independent Director:

1. Invests time i understanding the Company and its unique requirements;

2. Brings In extemnal knowledge and perspective to the table for discussions at the Meetings;

3. Expresses his{ her views on the issues discussed at the Board; and

4. Keeps himsely/ herselt current on areas and issues that are likely to be discussed at the
Board level
Investor Grievange:

10
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The Report on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Activities

1. Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company:

The CSR Policy of the Company is guiding document to suitably allocate, manage and §

upervise prescribed

CSA funds of the Company. It includes £SR activities towards sodal and economic fevelopment of the

Company, Budget, Project identification, monitoring, review etc. The C5R Policy of
with Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, C5R Rules and Schedule vI| of the Com

2. Composition of CSR Committee as on 31-Mar-2022:
The CSR Committee of the Board is responsible for overseeing the execution of the Co
The CSR Committee comprises of one Independent Director, two Nominee Direg
Director as on 31-Mar-2022.

he Company is line
banies Act, 2013.

fnpany’s CSR Policy.
tors and Managing

Name of Director Designation / Mature of  Number of
Directorship meetings of CSR
Committee held
during the year

Ms. Anuradha Ramachandran Momines Director

Mr. Nikesh Kumar Sinha Managing Director p.

Number of

meetings of CSR
Committee
attended during
_the year

2

3. Web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by the

Board are disclosed on the website of the Company: Compaosition of CSR ©
Policy is uploaded on the link here https://www ashvlinance.com/finvestor-re

Since, the average net profit for immediate previous financial year is below thq

bmmittee and CSR
alicons/

threshold limit, as

specified in section 135 of the Act, your Company was not required to spend any amount towards CSR

during the financial year under review. Thus, No CSR projects recommended by
of the Board and the Board of Directors of the Company.

Lhe C5R Commitlee

4. Provide the details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursupince of sub-rule (3)

of rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Pelicy) Rules,
(attach the report): Not Applicable

5. Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7
(Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount reqguired f]
financial year, if any: Not Applicable

6. Average net profit of the Company as per section 135(5) (2018-19, 2019-20
1,99,47,236/-

2014, ifapplicable

of the Companies
br set-off for the

and 2020-21): Rs.




ASHV FINANCE LIM[TED Y = [

{Erstwhile known as Jain Sens Finlease Limited)
Annual Report: 2021-2022
Annexure-D: Corporaje Governance Report

AAVISHKEAR BEGUP

Ms. Monika Th
purpose of the 5
Company.

hwar, Company Secretary of the Company is the Compliance Officer for the
| Listing Regulations and also acting as Grievance Redressal Officer of the

In case of any quefy, stakehalders can send email on monika.thadeshwar@ashvfinance.com

As of 31-Mar-2022, there were no investor complaints pending.

5.d. General Shareholders Information:

6. Website Disclosunes:
All important infgrmation relating to the Company and its performance, induding finandal
results, are posted on the website of the Company https://fwww.ashvfinance.com

The half yearly ﬁ‘;am:ial results of the company are published in the leading newspaper viz.
Business Standar

W= =0~
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7. Computation of CSR Obligation:
{a) Two percent of average net profit of the Company as per section 135(5): Mil
{b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial
years.: Nil
{c) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if amy: Nil
(d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b-7c).: Nil

B. (a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year: Not Applicable
Amount Unspent [in Rs.)

Total Amount
Spent forthe
Financial
Year. (in Rs.)

Date of transfer Name of the Fund Amou

(b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year] Not Applicable
k) (4) (5) ] (7) (8) (9) (10) (11}

{c) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the firlancial year: Mot
Applicable
(2} (2) (4) (5] [ [7) (8)

Total
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(d) Amount spest in Administrative Overheads: Nil

(e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: Nil

(f) Total amount] spent for the Financial Year (Eb+8c+8d+8e): Nil

(g) Excess amoynt for set off, if any: Nil
Particular Amount (in Rs.)

Total amount spgnt for the Financial Year

surplus arising dut of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the
previous financialyears, it any

9. (a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years: Not Applicable
Preceding Amcunt Amount spent Amount transferred to any fund Amount
Financial transferred to in the specified under Schedule VIl as per remaining tobe
Year Unspe 1t C5R reporting section 135(6), ifany spent in
Account under Financial Year Name of Amount Date of succeeding
section 135 (6) (in Rs.) T (inRs) transfer  financlalyears.
(inkls.) (im Rs.)

Total

(b) Details of CBR amount spent in the financial yvear for ongoing projects of the preceding
financial year(s): Not Applicable
(1) (2 3

g P

Not Applicable

10. In case of creatipn or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so
created or acquined through CSR spent in the financial year: Mot Applicable
(Asset-wise details)
(a) Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s).
(b) Amount of OSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset,
{c) Details of the entity or public authority or beneficary under whase name such capital asset s
registered, their address etc.
{d) Provide detdils of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete address and
location of the capital asset).
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11.Specify the reason(s), if the Company has failed to spend two per cent of the fiverage net profit
as per section 135(5): Not Applicable

S0Y- ROV
Nikesh Kumar Sinha Matangi|Gowrishankar
(Managing Director) (Chairperson of C§R Committea)

DIN: 08268336 DIN: 01518137




m PARIKH & ASSOCIATES
COMPANY SECRETARIES

FORM No. MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022
(Pursuant to Tcticn 204 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No. 9 of the
Companies (Appgintment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014)

To,
The Members,
Ashv Finance Limjted (formerly Jain Sons Finlease Limited)

We have condu the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory
provisions and the adherence to good corperate practices by Ashv Finance Limited
(formerly Jain Soms Finlease Limited) (hereinafter called ‘the Company’). Secretarial
Audit was condu in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating
the corporate congducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and
retumns filed and| other records maintained by the company, to the extent the
information provided by the company, its officers, agents and authorised
representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, the explanations and
clarifications given to us and the representations made by the Management and
considering the redaxations granted by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs and Securities
and Exchange rd of India warranted due to the spread of the Covid-19 pandemic,
we hereby report that in our opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering
the financial year| ended on March 31, 2022 generally complied with the statutory
provisions listed Hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board processes
and compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the
reporting made hgreinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other
records made avgilable to us and maintained by the Company for the financial year
ended on March 31, 2022 according to the provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

(i) The Securties Contract (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA’) and the rules made
thereunder

(i) The Depogitories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed
thereunder

Abgrve Shabon Restaurant. Andken [West), Mumbei $00 033
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(v)

(v)

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the fi

]
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Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regy
thereunder of Foreign Direct Investment to the extent appl
Company;

The followaing Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the 3
Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 ('SEBI Act’)

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial
Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; (Mot applicable to
during the audit period)

lations made
cable to the

lecurities and

uisition of
he Company

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Ingider Trading)

Regulations, 2015;

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital a
Requirements) Regulations, 2018 and amendments from time
applicable to the Company during the audit period)

Disclosure
o time; (Not

Benefits) Regulations, 2014 and The Securities and Exchange
(Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulatio
applicable to the Company during the audit period)

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share EaE«j
0

Employee
ard of India
, 2021; (Not

() The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Li

ing of Debt

Securities) Regulations, 2008 and The Securities and Exchange Board of India

(Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) Requlations,

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to
Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Act ang
client; (Not applicable to the Company during the audit period)

() The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of E

1;

an Issue and
dealing with

quity Shares)

of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021; (Not applicable to the Co

pany during

Regulations, 2008 and The Securities and Exchange Board of I?ia {Delisting

the audit period) (Not applicable to the Company during the audi

penod) and

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback

Securities)

Regulations, 2018; (Not applicable to the Company during the audit period)

(vi) Other laws specifically applicable to the Company namely

(a) Prevention of Money Laundering Act, 2002;
{b) Credit Information Companies (Regulations) Act, 2005; and

{c) Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and the directions issued by Reserve Bank

of India thereunder and as applicable to Non-Banking Financial
so far as submission of varous returnsf/information or other p
filed with the Reserve Bank of India

ompanies in
iculars to be

pllowing:

Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretarigs of India with

respect to Board and General Meetings.
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(i) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with BSE Limited read with
the SEBI (Listing @bligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

During the period
Act, Rules, Regul

nder review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the
ions, Guidelines, standards etc. mentioned above.

We further report that:

The Board of Dirgctors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of
Executive Direcldrs, Non-Executive Direclors and Independent Directors. The
changes in the corpposition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period
under review were| carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice
and detailed not
thase held at sho
information and

meaningful partici

s given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda
on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance other than
notice, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further
arifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for
tion at the meeting.

Decisions at the B Meetings were taken unanimously.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company
commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period the Company had following events which
had bearing on Company's affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules,
regulations, guideljnes, standards, etc.

a. The Company obtained necessary approval from its Directors and Members by

+ Approvallfor Company's contribution u/s. 181 of the Companies Act, 2013;

+ Approval|for the increase in the limit of the ESOP Pool Size of IntelleGrow
Employeg Stock Option Plan 2018 ("ESOP Scheme 17);

. Authurijﬁnn to the Board to mortgage, create charges on all or any of the
assets of{the Company ws 180(1)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013

+ Approval|for fixing the borrowing limits u/s. 180(1)(c) of the Companies Act,
2013.

s Approval| for fixing of limit for issuance of Mon-Convertible Debentures
(NCDs) gn private placement basis upto INR 500,00,00,000/- (Indian Rupees
Five Hun Crore Only);
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= Redemption of Non-Convertible Debentures of the Company or} time to time
basis as under:

o 1,330 Secured, Rated, Redeemable, Non-Convertiblg Debentures

of Rs.1,00,000/- each on a private placement basis, in gonsideration

of an aggregating to Rs.13,30,00,000/-

o 4000 Rated, Listed, Transferable, Taxable, Redeefable, MNon-
Convertible Debentures of Rs.1,00,000/- each ur a private
placement basis, in consideration of an aggregate arhount of Rs.
40,00,00,000/-

o 150 Rated, Unlisted, Taxable, Senior, Redeemaé:{l, Secured,

Transferable INR Denominated Non-Convertible bentures of
Rs.10,00,000/- each on a private placement basis, in gonsideration

of an aggregate amount of Rs. 15,00,00,000/-

= Approval of change in the appointed date in the Scheme of Arrgngement for
de-merger between TribeTech Private Limited (Transferor Cqmpany) and
with Ashv Finance Limited (Earlier known as Jain Sons Finlgase Limited)
(Transferee Company) from 01-Apr-2021' to 01-Apr-2022
Allotment of 2500 Secured, Rated, Listed, Redeemable, Transferable,
Principal Protected Market Linked Non-Convertible Debentures of face value
of Rs.1,00,000/- each on private placement basis;
Allotment of 2000 Unlisted, Rated, Unsubordinated, Secured, Transferable,
Redeemable, Principal Protected Market Linked Debentures of face value of
R=.1,00,000/- each on private placement basis;
= Allatment of 3000 Rated, Unlisted, Senior, Redeemable, Trans{erable, Non-
Convertible Debentures of face value of Rs.1,00,000/- each on private

placement basis;
+ Allotment of 200 Rated, Senior, Secured, Listed, Redeemable, [Transferable
Non-Convertible Debentures of face value of Rs.10,00,000/- on private

placement basis;
Allotment of 1700 Rated, Unlisted, Senior, Secured, Redeemable, Taxable,
MNon-Convertible Debentures of face value of Rs.1,00,000/- eagh on private
placement basis;
Allotment of 37000 Secured, Rated, Unlisted, Redeemable, Transferable,
Taxable, INR denominated, Non-convertible Debentures of face value of
Rs.10,000/- each on private placement basis;
Allotment of 210 Rated, Unlisted, Senior, Secured, Redaemﬁ:. Taxable,
Non-Convertible Debentures of face value of Rs.10,00,000/- & on private
placement basis

For Parikh & Asgociates
Company Eecrgries

Place: Mumbai

Date: May 05, 2022 Pigitalty signed by MITESH
MITESH DHABLIWALA JHASLMALA e

Signature; k™

Mitesh Dhabliwal
Partner

FCS No: 8331 CH No: 9511
UDIN:F008331D000276522
PR No.: 1129/2031

This Repaort is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed ag Annexure A
and forms an integral part of this repod.




‘Annexure A’

To,

The Members,
Ashv Finance Li

(formerly Jain Sons Finlease Limited)

Our report of ever| date is to be read along with this letter.

has condug

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 05, 20

of Secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of
. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial

lowed the audit practices and process as were appropriate to obtain
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secratarial
verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are

uired, we have obtained the Management representation about
iance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events, etc.

standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination

to the verification of procedure on test basis.

22

Signature:

ial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of
y nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management
ited the affairs of the Company.

For Parikh & Associates
Company Secretaries

Digitally signed by MITESH
DHABLIWALA

Date: 2022.05.05 12:58:14
+05730°

Mitesh Dhabliwala

Partner

FCS No: 8331 CP No: 8511
UDIN:FO08331D000276522

PR No.: 1129/2021
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HEAAR GROUP

Related Party Transaction Disclosure as per Section 188 of the Companies Acf

(Pursuant to clouse (h) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the

FORM ACC- 2

{Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts / arrangements entered into by the
related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act,

certain arm’s length transactions under third proviso thereto

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis: NIl

2.i. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at arm’'s length basis: The follg
or arrangements or transactions are at arm's len

dama W) Jature ofF Nature {

onshig Contracts

Common Cost
Directors/Sh  Sharing
arecholders Agreement

| TribeTech  Common Facility

Private Directors/Sh  Agreement
Limited areholders

the

ontracts

One  year
form 01-
Apr-2021

As
mentionzd
in the
Agreement.

h basis:

Transaction done for
availment of business
support  services for
carrying out its day to
day activities,

Transaction was done
to provide top up loan
of Rs.1,00,00,000/- to
be disbursed in one or
multiple tranches.

2013

Companies

mpany with
13 including
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-2022
-2

TribeTech
Private
Limited

17-Feb-
2022

Transaction was done 09-Feb-
mentioned  to provide top up loan 2022

in the 4 be disbursed in one
Agreement. or multiple tranches.

Facility As

Agreement

Note: No advance is

Place: Mumbai
Date: gs-May-2022

payable or paid in respect of any of the above transactions.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

B0y an)-
Vineat Chandra Rai Nikesh Kumar Sinha
Chairman Managing Director
(DIN: 00606290) (DIN: 08268336)
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$.NO |

NAME OF DEBENTURE

TRUSTEE

DEBENTURE TRUSTEE DETAILS

| ADDRESS

CONTACT DETALLS

Catalyst Trusteeship Ltd.

Office No.604, 6th
Floor, Windsor,
C.5.T. Road, Kalina,
Santacruz (East),
Mumbai - 400098

ComplianceCTL-

Mumbai@ctltrustee.com

Beacon Trusteeship Ltd

4C& D,
Siddhivinayak
Chambers,

Gandhi Nagar,
Opp. M.I.G. Cricket
Club,

Bandra (East],
Mumbai - 400 051

compliancel@beacontrustee.co.in







